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ADC BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES  

ADC believes in the value of domestic banks that operate on a pan-African platform, maximizing profits in 

the retail and corporate sectors. ADC’s vision is to create a leading pan-African bank by strengthening ban-

king systems and management ability while simultaneously offering support to raise funds for rising capital 

requirements in most banking jurisdictions.

ADC fuses loCAl knowleDge with internAtionAl CApitAl AnD expertise in 
orDer to CreAte the future of pAn-AfriCAn bAnking.
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loCAtions As At 31 DeCembeR 2013 peRfoRmAnCe highlights 2013
in EUR million 2013 2012 DElta

Operating Performance

Net interest income 82.7 27.6 55.1

Net fee and commission income 37.3 16.9 20.4

Net income (loss) from equity method investments 14.5 (0.9) 15.4

Pre-tax profit (loss) 19.3 (15.9) 35.2

Net profit (loss) 12.5 (18.9) 31.4

Balance sheet Performance 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Cash and short term funds 200.9 183.4 17.5

Loans and advances 875.0 886.6 (11.6)

Total Assets 1,432.4 1,432.7 (0.3)

Borrowed funds 226.3 195.7 30.7

Deposits 1,012.1 1,041.9 (29.8)

Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders 76.9 67.7 9.2

RATIOS

ADC Group Rations / Indicators 2013 2012

Return on average Equity 9.6% -16.6%

Return on average Assets 0.9% -2.5%

Key Banking Ratios

Net Interest Margin 10.3% 9.4%*

Cost-to-income ratio 72.3% 106.5%

Loan loss ratio 2.8% 1.8%*

Key Private Equity Ratios

Gross IRR 13.5% 16.0%

Multiple 1.4x 1.3x

Non-Financial Indicators

Employees: 1,558 1,362 194

Branches: 73 61 12

ATMs: 74 62 12

Customers: 261,665 230,000 31,665

*    for comparability purposes, 2012 figures based on bancAbC subgroup stand-alone figures.

Banking operations

Private equity investments

RWANDA

KENYA

MOZAMBIQUE

SOUTH AFRICA

BOTSWANA

NIGERIA

ZAMBIA

TANZANIA

ZIMBABWE

ADC Aims to builD A pAn-AfriCAn bAnk to fACilitAte intrA-regionAl 
trADe AnD proviDe seAmless Cross-borDer bAnking funCtionAlity.
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REtURn on avERagE EqUity

-16.6 %

2012 2013

9.6 %
REtURn on avERagE assEts

-2.5 %

2012 2013

0.9 %

nEt intEREst maRgin cost-to-incomE Ratio

9.4 %

2012 2013

10.3 %

pRofit aftER tax (EUR million) EaRnings pER shaRE (EUR)

106.5 %

2012 2013

72.3 %

-18.9 

2012 2013

12.5
-2.61

2012 2013

0.68

the yeAR in Review
apriL ADC further refines its strategy to focus entirely on banking sector activities 

and to hold existing private equity investments only until market conditions 
are conducive for an exit.

May ADC exited its holding in Banco Nacional de Guinea Ecuatorial (BANGE) after 
a 4-year investment period, registering a gain of EUR 6.6 million and a gross 
IRR of 34% and total value to paid-in multiple of 3.4x.

juLy ADC completed the process of changing the Company into a stock corporati-
on, which is now trading on the Entry Standard of the Frankfurt Stock Ex-
change.

juLy A private placement raises EUR 8.2 million for ADC.

auGusT ADC’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) increases the number of Supervisory 
Board members from three to six, appointing Arnold Ekpe, Verna Eggleston 
and Oltmann Siemens.

DEcEMBEr ADC initiated a mandatory offer for all outstanding shares in BancABC as 
required by the Botswana Stock Exchange.

ADC’s 2013 figures refleCt the beginnings of A profitAble pAn-Afri-
CAn bAnking struCture, whiCh foCuses on integrAting both loCAl 
AnD internAtionAl expertise
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ADC BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES  

ADC is An emerging pAn-AfriCAn bAnking group with A bAnking network 
in 6 Countries with 4 ADDitionAl proprietAry investments in eAstern AnD  
southern AfriCA. At yeAr-enD, the group hAD eur 1,432 million in Assets AnD 
eur 122 million in totAl equity.

DEar sharEhOLDErs, BusinEss parTnErs & friEnDs Of aDc, 

the 2013 year has been a year of change and growth for ADC. in late 2012, the company began the 

process of simplifying its structure to lower operational expenses and to transform ADC into a cost 

effective bank holding company, focusing on the financial services sector in sub-saharan Africa. our 

team successfully completed this process in mid-2013 with a change in its listing from a partnership 

limited by shares (gmbh & Co. kgaA) on the prime standard to a stock corporation (Ag) on the entry 

standard of the frankfurt stock exchange in germany, which allows ADC to tap international funding 

to shore up the liquidity of its investee banks while simultaneously providing operational support to 

its portfolio of banking entities on the continent. 

ADC can look back on a successful year; one that has seen the company gain recognition within the 

international banking community and dramatically improve its financial position, registering a profit 

before tax of eur 19.3 million and a 32% decrease in the cost-to-income ratio, confirming the ad-

vantages of ADC’s new cost-effective structure and significantly exceeding its latest profit forecast 

of eur 10 million by 25%. 

Due to ADC’s successful restructuring, hard work and valuable portfolio of investments, i am pleased 

to announce that on 31 march 2014, Atlas mara Co-nvest limited (Atlas mara), founded by bob 

Diamond and Ashish J. thakkar, and ADC have entered into a business Combination Agreement 

whereby Atlas mara intends to undertake an offer for all outstanding shares in ADC at an exchange 

ratio of 1.25x Atlas mara shares for each ADC share. based on the closing prices before the date of 

announcement of the respective exchanges and current exchange rates, this ratio reflects a premium 

of more than 15% to ADC’s share price. 

Atlas mara’s board and co-founders see a perfect fit with ADC, due to its valuable holdings on the 

sub-saharan continent, to combine our visions of creating a highly scalable banking group, capable 

of offering a broad range of banking products. the structure of the transaction includes conditional 

purchase agreements with selected shareholders of ADC’s portfolio company, bancAbC, in order to 

acquire, for cash or shares, all remaining outstanding shares of bancAbC for a purchase price of usD 

0.82 per share. the completion of the transaction is condition upon regulatory approvals and certain 

conditions precedent. 

since its inception, ADC has sought to create value for its shareholders via its investments on the 

sub-saharan Africa continent. our team has worked exceptionally hard to build not only a portfo-

lio, but also a platform that merges local expertise and knowledge with international capital and 

networks. Atlas mara founders share ADC’s vision of creating a pan-African banking group. ADC’s 

Ceo letteR
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shareholders can expect an accelerated future growth based on ADC’s successful investments and 

bancAbC’s regional expertise and existing geographic banking structure and offerings, combined 

with Atlas mara’s access to funding, talent and further know-how. i, and the rest of the management 

team, look forward to the next chapter in ADC’s growth, we are confident that a combination with 

Atlas mara will accelerate our vision of creating a leading pan-African financial services institution and 

will be to the benefit of both ADC’s shareholders and also ADC and bancAbC employees who are an 

important element in realizing our aims. Atlas mara will build on the existing management teams of 

both ADC and bancAbC to drive future growth and expand across the continent.

aDc’s financial REsUlts

ADC produced solid results in 2013 with a profit after tax of eur 12.5 million compared to a negative 

result of eur 18.9 million in 2012. the Company achieved a return on equity of 9.6%, a return on 

assets of 0.9% and cost-to-income ratio of 72.3% compared to the 2012 ratios of -16.6%, -2.5% and 

106.5% respectively.

total assets at year-end reached eur 1.4 billion, stable in comparison to 2012 figures. this includes 

a 10% increase in cash and short term funds, but a 1% decrease in loans and advances and a 3% 

decrease in customer deposits due to exchange rate differences (gross loans and deposits increased 

3% and 18% respectively in local currency).

equity attributable to ordinary shareholders increased by 14% from eur 67.7 million (re-stated) in 

2012 to eur 76.9 million at year-end 2013.

Banking opERations

At the end of the 2013 financial year, the bancAbC subgroup posted a net profit of eur 15.5 milli-

on before consolidation, 29% higher than that of 2012 on a standalone basis in local currency. the 

subgroup’s total assets increased by 18% in local currency, reaching eur 1.3 billion at the end of 

December 2013. basic earnings per share were 10% higher than the previous year and the cost-to-

income ratio fell 5 percentage points to 66% in the year under review. 

in 2014, bancAbC management will focus on working with each subsidiary to tighten credit systems 

to lower the credit loss ratio and further improve lending processes.

furthermore, in December 2013, ADC completed the mandatory offer in botswana, required for all 

investors owning more than 35% of a stock-listed company. As a result of the mandatory offer, ADC 

increased its controlling position including voting pool agreements from 50.1% to 54.1% 

ubn had mixed results over the course of the year, due to planned restructuring activities. the bank 

experienced one-off costs related to personnel restructuring as well as extraordinary provisioning 

due to the bank’s exposure to the nigerian discount house sector. the bank’s new executive ma-

nagement team has now positioned the bank to successfully compete in one of the most promising 

banking markets on the continent. the bank’s deposit and credit growth in the second half of 2013 

grew faster than any other period since ADC’s original investment at the beginning of 2012 and pro-

spects for the 2014-year are strong.

partly as a result of the restructuring activities, ubn group registered a profit before tax of eur 18.0 

million, up 31% in local currency versus the 2012 financial year. the return on average equity in 2013 

was 2.1% for the group and 2.8% for the core bank, versus 0.7% and 1.8% respectively from the 

previous year.  

pRivatE EqUity invEstmEnts

ADC’s refined strategy focuses entirely on banking sector activities in order to create a pan-African 

banking group on a large enough scale to compete with existing players. As such, ADC has begun the 

process of exiting some of its private equity investments and will hold remaining investments only 

until market conditions are conducive for an exit. ADC is not expecting to acquire any new private 

equity holdings until a stronger banking platform is established.

in may 2013, ADC exited its investment in bAnge, located in equatorial guinea, for a total gain of 

eur 6.6 million. we are in the final stages of selling rswitch to an interested investor and hope to 

provide more information to shareholders in the second quarter of 2014. moreover, ADC is in discus-

sions with brainworks Capital management (bCm), located in Zimbabwe on the details of a potential 

transaction later this year. 

ADC continues to hold its investments in iveri, an electronic payments company located in south 

Africa and rheAl, a medical insurance provider active in four countries in east Africa due to the 

promising potential of both companies in the coming six months. ADC aims to finalize a sale in both 

portfolio companies by the first quarter of 2015.

BoaRD anD managEmEnt changEs

the Annual general meeting (Agm) held on 14 August 2013, strengthened the Company’s position to 

manage its growth by increasing the number of supervisory board members from three to six, elec-

ting mr. Arnold ekpe, former Ceo of ecobank, ms. verna eggleston of bloomberg philanthropies and 

mr. oltmann siemens, former representative of the world bank group in europe. mr. Jyrki koskelo 

resigned from the supervisory board at the end of october 2013 after supporting ADC through a 

period of change, making valuable contributions to the foundations of the Company’s pan-African 

banking vision. mr. Arnold ekpe resigned from the supervisory board at the end of march 2014 due 

to potential conflicts of interest relating to his roles on both the Atlas mara’s board of Directors and 

ADC’s supervisory board. we thank them both for their insight and contributions to the Company’s 

growth and wish them all the best in their future endeavors. 
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the supervisory board appointed ms. karima ola, Chief investment officer of ADC, as a member 

of the german management board. furthermore, ms. sonja rossteuscher, Chief financial officer 

of the Company, was formally appointed to the management board at the beginning of 2014. we 

welcome the strengthening of the supervisory and management boards at a time of tremendous 

financial and operational growth.

capital Raising

since its inception ADC has consistently grown, strengthening its capital base year-on-year to incre-

ase the Company’s holdings in sub-saharan banks and grow its current and potential profitability. 

ADC’s planned capital increase in April 2014 was delayed at the beginning of this year due partly to 

uncertainty in the market and as a result of increased interest from international financial services 

partners who share ADC’s vision in pan-African banking. through the signing of the business Com-

bination Agreement with Atlas mara at the end of march, ADC management expects to accelerate 

the implementation of our targets. Atlas mara’s access to funding, talent, and banking and it exper-

tise will contribute to both companies’ strategic objectives of building the premier financial services 

group with a banking presence in multiple countries across sub-saharan Africa. 

afRica Rising

in contrast to an average gDp growth of 1.3% in advanced economies in 2013, sub-saharan Africa’s 

growth recorded an average gDp growth of 5.1%, increasing from 4.8% in 2012 and is projected to 

reach 6.5% in 2014. 

over the last decade, most sub-saharan African countries have actively implemented political and 

economic reforms to reduce corruption and encourage private investment. the 2013 Doing business 

report, confirms that almost half of the top 20 “reformer states” are located in sub-saharan Africa. 

ADC’s experience on the continent reiterates this finding and we believe that stronger regulations 

will further enhance private sector investment in the years to come. 

a stRatEgy of pan-afRican Banking

Africa’s banking sector has, until recently, operated in a risky environment – both from a regulatory 

and macroeconomic perspective, which has reduced the high potential for profit as well as for inter-

national investment. growing industry and reform, however, are underlining the potential for profit 

with banks across Africa increasing their capital bases and strengthening their risk management 

practices to reduce non-performing loans and boost profits. while systems are rapidly improving, 

many banks on the continent still need support to implement international best practices, especially 

in risk management, and require management training to best succeed in a rapidly changing environ-

ment that requires local banks to compete with international conglomerates.   

Africa’s demographic dividend and large unbanked population coupled with lower cultural barriers to 

the adoption of new banking technology, could see African banks leapfrog ahead of their western 

counterparts due to lower infrastructure costs and higher profit margins. Africa contains the largest 

proportion of mobile money users in the world, reflecting the pace of financial innovation occurring 

in the region.

local banks have a unique position in banking markets, having crucial local networks that can help 

ensure credit and deposit mobilization. these banks, however, lack liquidity and increasing minimum 

capital requirements in most countries across the continent are straining banks’ ability to operate 

effectively. local banks that partner with international investors can benefit from international fun-

ding sources and operational expertise. ADC’s new structure, experienced management team and 

network of advisers coupled with its listing on the frankfurt stock exchange make it an ideal partner 

for local banks operating in sub-saharan Africa. 

oUtlook

for the 2014-year, we have set ourselves the target of leveraging our strengths and solidifying our 

relationships with existing networks and like-minded investors. ADC has positioned itself to succeed 

in building a pan-African banking group and has the management, assets, operational staff and in-

vestment expertise to do so.

ADC has a positive outlook for 2014 after achieving substantial 29% net profit growth from bancAbC 

subgroup in the 2013 financial year and with the prospective sale of some of ADC’s private equity 

portfolio in 2014. we believe that ubn will continue its upward trajectory shown in the second half of 

2013 now that the restructuring efforts are coming to a close and will positively contribute to ADC’s 

net profit in 2014.  

overall, the ADC group expects to significantly increase its net profit in 2014, with the cost-to-

income and roae ratios improving substantially from those achieved in the 2013 period towards the 

2015 targets of an roae of up to 25% and an average cost-to-income ratio of 50-55%. nevertheless, 

i would like to highlight that current forecasts could be significantly affected by the transaction with 

Atlas mara that was announced on 31 march 2014

finally, i would like to sincerely thank all of the employees of ADC, bancAbC and each of our portfolio 

companies for their hard work and perseverance. each member of the group is a dedicated force 

behind ADC’s growth story and i thank each individual employee for helping us succeed in our pan-

African banking vision.

should you have any questions regarding our strategy, future growth prospects or any other matter, 

please do not hesitate to contact us via email: investor-relations@african-development.com or via 

phone: +49 69 719 12 90 119

sincerely yours,

Dirk harbecke

Chief executive officer
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ADC African Development Corporation Ag (ADC) is a german-listed, emerging pan-African ban-

king group with a strong footprint in southern Africa via bancAbC, a regional commercial banking 

platform operating in botswana, mozambique, tanzania, Zambia and Zimbabwe as well as expo-

sure to west Africa via union bank of nigeria (ubn). ADC commenced business in november 

2007 as a partnership limited by shares with a limited liability company as general partner (gmbh 

& Co. kgaA). the company completed its initial public offering and listing on the frankfurt stock 

exchange in December 2010. in november 2012, ADC bought out its general partner, ADC ma-

nagement gmbh to transform its legal structure and eliminate the fee structure associated with 

the general partner. on 26 July 2013, ADC completed the process of legal transformation into a 

stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft). in conjunction with the transformation, ADC re-listed in the 

entry standard segment of the frankfurt stock exchange with the aim of reducing costs while 

increasing operational flexibility and maintaining a high level of reporting that exceeds entry stan-

dard requirements. 

from its founding until early 2012, ADC followed a private equity strategy that focused on the ma-

nagement of a portfolio of minority holdings in the financial services sector and related it assets 

in sub-saharan Africa. in early 2012, ADC changed its strategy to focus on acquiring controlling sta-

kes in banks solely with a view to achieving majority control in order to build a leading pan-African 

merchant banking group. ADC’s acquisition of a majority stake in bancAbC and the decision to 

transition from a private equity partnership to a stock corporation reflects this change of strategy. 

in early 2013, the ADC group refined its strategy further to focus entirely on banking sector activi-

ties to create a pan-African merchant banking group on a large enough scale to compete with exis-

ting players and made the strategic decision to streamline its private equity activities.  As such, the 

group is not expecting to acquire any new private equity holdings until a stronger banking platform 

is established, and shall hold existing investments only until market conditions and development 

stage of the individual assets are conducive for an exit.   

ADC’s management has extensive operational banking experience and follows an active manage-

ment approach. the company applies a return driven business model and optimizes the risk-re-

turn profile through a political risk insurance solution offered by migA (world bank group). the 

company’s listing and headquarters in germany provides ADC with significant advantages over 

local African banking groups, especially the ability to raise money on international capital markets, 

the application of german corporate governance standards and the creation of an international 

network of business contacts and experts. 

 

ADC’s two operating divisions, banking and private equity, are coordinated from germany by 

ADC’s management board and supported by bancAbC’s banking headquarters in Johannesburg 

and ADC’s investment and advisory activities headquartered in mauritius. ADC’s operational staff’s 

role is to expand ADC’s banking business in sub-saharan Africa together with ADC’s majority-

owned retail and corporate banking entity, bancAbC.

gRoup stRuCtuRe

PRIVATE EQUITYBANKING OPERATIONS

47.07%¹

BancABC

South-East-Africa

BancABC

Botswana

BancABC

Mozambique

BancABC

Tanzania

BancABC

Zambia

BancABC

Zimbabwe

100% 100% 97.29% 100% 100% 61.39%³

UBN

Nigeria

RHEAL

Kenya, Insurance, 38.74%

BRAINWORKS

Zimbabwe, Investments, 18.09%

RSwitch

Rwanda, Payments, 88.54%

iVeri

South Africa, Payments, 49.0%

14.74%²

UGPL

Mauritius

SUPPORTING SERVICES

ADC AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT  CORPORATION AG

ADC FINANCIAL SERVICES & CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

group structure shows direct and indirect ownership not controlling positions. Additionally ADC holds further subsidiaries that 

are either not material or just shells that are described in the notes to the financial statements. 

1 ADC holds a direct shareholding of 47.07% in bancAbC but controls additional shares through pooling agreements, for 

a share of 50.10% (54.06% prior to mandatory offer closed post balance sheet date on 17 January 2014) and a further 

10.99% with aligned bancAbC management for a total controlling position of 65.05%. 

2 ADC holds a direct shareholding of 14.74% in ugpl (union global partners limited) (indirect 9.58% in ubn) but has a total 

representation of 20.04% in ugpl (indirect 12.30% in ubn) via co-investments that are managed by ADC. 

3 out of 65.00% shareholding in ubn, 3.61% are controlled by ugpl through a pooling agreement but held outside ugpl. 

the activities of ADC group are headquartered in germany as ADC African Development Corpo-

ration Ag (ADC Ag). ADC Ag owns 100% of ADC financial services and Corporate Development 

(ADC fs & CD) located in mauritius, which is the African investment originator of ADC’s assets via 

several holding companies and special purpose entities.

CoRpoRAte pRofile 

AnD overview
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ADC vision is to become one of the leading pan-African merchant banking groups in sub-saharan 

Africa (ssA) by acquiring majority interests in other banks, which will be subsequently integrated 

into a common merchant banking group. ADC focuses on specific target markets in ssA and aims 

to be among the top three banks in terms of banking assets in each of the target countries in the 

near future. next to ADC’s current operational countries, the Company’s medium-term expansion 

plans are to enter the economic Community of Central African states (CemAC), the west African 

economic and monetary union (uemoA) and the east African Community (eAC) via the most 

important country in the region as well as Angola as large standalone market. 

in addition to establishing a pan-African banking group through further acquisitions, ADC’s vision 

is to grow bancAbC from a second tier bank into a first tier bank in all countries in which it ope-

rates. ADC will operate within its capacity to ensure that both bancAbC and ubn are sufficiently 

capitalized to expand their activities in the corporate lending market and capture growth in the 

emerging retail market.

As at the reporting date, ADC has secured initial stakes in six fast-growing ssA markets, providing 

the group with its initial, critically important footholds for the creation of its pan-African banking 

platform.

aDc cOMpETiTivE sTrEnGThs

ADC’s competitive strengths are key factors relating to the Company’s business and consist of 

the following:

aDc’s pRincipal BUsinEss is Banking, focUsED on thE fast gRowing maRkEts of ssa.

ADC focuses on fast growing markets within ssA, specifically botswana, mozambique, tanzania, 

Zambia, Zimbabwe and nigeria and has medium term plans to enter other economic growth regi-

ons in ssA such as CemAC, uemoA, eAC and the strong stand-alone country of Angola. these 

markets are predominantly at an earlier stage of their economic and financial market development 

compared to other emerging markets. in addition to favorable macroeconomic factors supporting 

general business growth in ADC target markets, the financial sector has a particularly high growth 

potential in these markets due to the increasing urbanization of the population in ssA and techni-

cal advancements.

 
aDc pRoviDEs intERnational Banking ExpERiEncE as wEll as accEss to tEchnology sERvi-
cEs anD intERnational capital maRkEts to aDc’s invEstEE Banks 

the Company utilizes ADC’s management experience and business networks and advises ma-

nagement of both ADC’s majority controlled bancAbC subsidiary and ubn on the implementation 

of modern banking systems including technical advancements. ADC closely cooperates on stra-

tegic matters and operational excellence initiatives. the Company’s active management approach 

enables ADC to supervise the growth of the Company’s bank holdings and to introduce state-of-

the art industry standards used in banks in the industrialized world and the implementation of 

successful models from other emerging markets. 

aDc’s cURREnt Bank holDings havE a stRong footpRint in thEiR maRkEts, ExpERiEncED 

local managEmEnt anD known local BRanDs.

bancAbC is among the leading banks in five ssA countries and by year-end 2012 among the top 

five banks in two of those five countries. ubn is the ninth largest bank in nigeria by assets1. As 

a result of their strong positions in local markets and strong brands, ADC’s current bank holdings 

are ideally positioned to capture future growth in our current markets, both with corporate clients 

as well as retail clients. 

aDc has ExtEnsivE ExpERiEncE in acqUisitions in ssa, spEcifically RElating to Banks.

since ADC’s first acquisition in 2008, the Company has completed a multitude of merger and 

acquisition transactions, specifically in the financial sector in ssA. most notably, the company 

successfully achieved majority control of bancAbC in July 2012, after acquiring its initial 20.1% 

stake in 2011. similarly, ADC has a strategic and important role as the member of the investment 

consortium that purchased 65% of ubn in 2012, which was the largest banking transaction in Af-

rica in the year. ADC has also acquired minority stakes in several banks, such as the Development 

bank of rwanda (brD), banco nacional de guinea ecuatorial (bAnge) and ecobank Zimbabwe, 

which were successfully divested as part of the Company’s former private equity focus strategy. 

ADC believes that its pan-African strategy will succeed due to strong macroeconomic conditions 

and high industry profitability with few pan-African competitors. the attractiveness of sub-saharan 

Africa’s overall financial sector is complimented by a strong group executive management team 

and experienced supervisory board members in combination with in-country management who 

are empowered to tailor services within their home markets. ADC’s new strategy aims to genera-

te value for its stakeholders by delivering more stability and less volatility.

1 ADC internal calculations from bankscope, bureau van Dijk electronic publishing gmbh, 2012 data, accessed on January 

24, 2014.

ADC’s stRAtegy 

AnD Competitive strengths
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business segments
ADC’s strategic focus is on the banking sector in sub-saharan Africa, which represents 98.2% 

of ADC’s total asset base at year-end 2013, inclusive of wholesale banking, retail banking and 

consumer finance. ADC’s private equity business encompasses legacy proprietary shareholdings 

which the Company acquired before the re-focused strategy was implemented in 2012 from an 

investment company to a banking group. As such, the group structure is divided into two main 

divisions: banking operations and private equity activities. 

BanKinG OpEraTiOns

the main focus of ADC is on banking sector activities. within the banking sector, ADC targets 

commercial banks with promising potential in retail and corporate banking. ADC aims to form a 

pan-African banking group through its controlling interest in AbC holdings limited (bancAbC) and 

other potential majority stakes. opportunities in the banking market in Africa are vast due to in-

adequate supply and favorable demographic conditions in which both population and incomes are 

rising. Currently, both retail and corporate banking are at a relatively early stage of development 

across most of sub-saharan Africa, offering investors the opportunity to leverage both their ex-

pertise and capital. Demand for banking services is expanding and becoming more sophisticated 

as economies develop. many banks are now seeking to enhance their product and distribution 

capabilities to tap into this expanding market.

ADC’s banking operations division manages the group’s existing portfolio of banking investments 

organized into two separate segments: banking operations bancAbC; and banking operations 

ubn. 

Banking opERations BancaBc

bancAbC subgroup is ADC’s core banking operation and the foundation for the establishment of 

a pan-African banking group. AbC holdings limited is the parent company of its five licensed and 

operational banking entities active in botswana, mozambique, tanzania, Zambia and Zimbabwe as 

well as a shared services center located in south Africa. the shares of bancAbC are listed on the 

stock exchanges in botswana (AbCh.bg) and Zimbabwe (AbC.Zh). 

the subgroup’s origin dates back to 1956 and it was rebranded in 2009 as bancAbC after a num-

ber of mergers and acquisitions. the bank started with a definitive focus on corporate customers, 

but expanded into the retail segment in 2008. in september 2013, bancAbC was ranked within 

the top 200 banks in sub-saharan Africa holding the 110th spot (2012: 127th), and its largest sub-

sidiary, bancAbC botswana, was included in the rankings on a stand-alone basis for the first time 

at 190th1.

1 the Africa report, september 30, 2013, http://www.theafricareport.com/top-200-banks/top-200-banks-2013

ADC’s banking strategy focuses on expanding bancAbC branded operations into 2-3 additional 

sub-saharan core markets by the end of 2015 and on optimizing performance in current countries 

with the aim of becoming one of the top three banks in each of its operational subsidiaries. Achie-

ving scale affords greater operating efficiency and a larger balance sheet size in core markets that 

will attract pan-African and multinational clients. 

ADC is actively implementing its strategy by helping bancAbC to create an innovative wholesale 

banking structure with technology suitable for corporate customers who require specialized pan-

African products and services, while at the same time expanding its retail business to promote 

financial inclusion via flexible and innovative products and technology that serve the whole value 

chain, including the suppliers and clients of the bank‘s biggest customers. 

the 2013 financial year was the first full year of consolidation of bancAbC, after ADC purchased a 

majority stake in the banking group in July 2012. following dilution of the equity stake in bancAbC 

due to the conversion in may 2013 of a convertible bond issued by bancAbC to the international 

finance Corporation (ifC), ADC directly holds 47.07% of the shares, but controls an additional 3%1 

stake via pooling agreements with aligned investors, and a further 11% with aligned bancAbC 

management. 

Union Bank of nigERia (UBn)

ubn is one of the longest-standing banks in nigeria. its roots date back to 1917, when ubn was 

part of barclays bank. over the years, the bank has evolved into an established brand with one of 

the largest networks of branches throughout nigeria. in 2009, ubn was one of eight banks res-

cued from insolvency with the aid of a cash injection from the government’s Asset management 

Corporation of nigeria (AmCon). A net asset value of zero was attained by the end of 2011 and 

the non-performing loans from the years 2010-2012 were purchased by the nigerian Central bank 

in order to re-establish a non-performing loan (npl) ratio of close to 5%. between January and 

mid-2012, a consortium of international investors stepped in to finance ubn’s total recapitalization 

with usD 500 million. 

ADC, as part of the investor consortium, completed its investment in ubn together with internati-

onal partners with a wealth of experience, including a nigerian private equity fund African Capital 

Alliance (ACA), global financial services private equity firm Corsair Capital, the Dutch development 

bank, fmo, international business group richard Chandler Corporation and global private equity 

investor standard Chartered private equity. the consortium invested via an intermediary vehicle, 

union global partners limited (ugpl), a limited liability company with its corporate seat in mauri-

tius. the skills of the consortium vary from local investors, financial services and emerging market 

specialists, to family offices and development finance institutions. the broad group will ensure 

a balanced transfer of international best practice in financial services and environmental, social 

and governance (esg) standards, and a deeply embedded local network to the new management 

team at ubn. ADC plays an active role in shaping ubn’s current strategy via its directorship within 

ugpl, held by ADC’s Chief investment officer (Cio), karima ola. Douglas munatsi, Ceo of ban-

cAbC, also represents ADC on the board of ubn itself. 

1 A mandatory offer initiated prior to year-end, and closed 17 January 2014 increased pooling agreements from 3% to 7%.



22 23group management report   ADC AnnuAl report 2013

ADC’s investment in ugpl was made via two separate investment vehicles and amounts to 

14.74% of the ugpl consortium. the initial investment of usD 30 million in ugpl was made in Ja-

nuary 2012 and represents a direct stake of 6.35% (3.9% indirect stake in ubn) in the consortium 

group that invested usD 500 million for a total shareholding of 65%1 in ubn. further to this, ADC 

co-invested in a special purpose vehicle (ADC ventures) in July 2012, giving ADC exposure to an 

additional 8.39% stake in ugpl (5.2% indirect stake in ubn). the ADC ventures spv is majority 

financed as mezzanine debt, and is consolidated for the first time in ADC’s financial accounts in 

2013 following the early adoption of ifrs 10. ADC manages a further 5.0% stake in ugpl (3.2% 

indirect stake in ubn) on behalf of co-investors, to which ADC is entitled to a performance related 

share of profits. 

privaTE EQuiTy

ADC’s private equity (pe) portfolio at the end of December 2013 consisted of investments in a 

private equity company located in Zimbabwe (brainworks Capital management), a company in the 

insurance sector in kenya, tanzania and south sudan (rheAl) and two companies in the payment 

solutions sector located in rwanda and south Africa (rswitch in rwanda and iveri in south Africa). 

ADC’s refined strategy focuses entirely on banking sector activities in order to create a pan-African 

banking group on a large enough scale to compete with existing players. As such, ADC will not 

acquire any new private equity holdings and hold existing investments only until market conditions 

are conducive for an exit. 

Rswitch is rwanda’s national payment switch, in which ADC acquired a 70.0% stake in June 

2008. the company’s main business is to facilitate payment transactions and to ensure interope-

rability amongst all banks in rwanda as well as production of payment cards for rwandan banks. 

in January 2012, ADC participated in a capital increase via a debt-to-equity swap that increased 

ADC’s shareholding in the company from 70.0% to its current shareholding of 88.54%.

REsolUtion hEalth East afRica limitED (RhEal) is a medical insurance provider, with a ge-

neral insurance license, that began operations in kenya in 2001 and has since expanded to other 

east African countries with underwriting in tanzania, uganda, sudan and south sudan. ADC holds 

an equity stake of 38.74% in rheAl, including a 25.1% direct stake that was purchased by ADC 

fs&CD in December 2010 and a 13.64% stake that was originally held in a special purpose vehicle 

in mauritius and later transferred to ADC fs & CD in June 2013 after ADC took up its rights in a 

capital increase issued by the company.  

ivERi paymEnt tEchnologiEs (ivERi) provides best-of-breed eCommerce solutions for mer-

chants in Africa and is used by banks in six countries across the continent. ADC purchased a 

49.0% stake in iveri in november 2008.

BRainwoRks capital managEmEnt (Bcm) is a Zimbabwean indigenous controlled and managed 

private equity investment firm that invests in diverse sectors within Zimbabwe with a holding pe-

1 out of 65.00% shareholding in ubn, 3.61% are controlled by ugpl through a pooling agreement held outside the ugpl 

legal entity.

riod of between 3-5 years. ADC originally acquired a 28.23% stake in the company in December 

2011 that was diluted earlier this year after brainworks issued a pre-ipo private placement, which 

raised a total of usD 17.5 million that was closed in the fourth quarter of 2013 at usD 0.10 per 

share, diluting ADC’s stake from 28.23% to 18.09%. 

suppOrTinG sErvicEs

ADC’s supporting services segment is a cost center for the group and comprises areas of activity 

such as identifying investment opportunities, monitoring the financial position and performances 

of group companies and portfolio companies, and providing them with professional support. in 

addition, strategic portfolio structuring is pursued, active risk management coordinated, capital-

raising measures implemented, and relationships with investors maintained. As these activities 

relate to both banking operations and private equity activities of the group, they are monitored in 

a separate reporting segment. 
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ADC carefully monitors its performance via performance metrics to measure profitability, growth 

and efficiency, while regularly evaluating macroeconomic and sector specific risk. the finance 

team provides management and the supervisory board regular reporting and analysis to identify 

risks and opportunities for the group on a timely basis.

GrOup

the following ratios are used to present and monitor the ADC group’s overall performance:

1. the key profitability ratio for the group is return on average equity 

after taxes (roae), in which the ifrs consolidated group after-tax 

result (including non-controlling interests) is divided by the average 

total equity (including minorities) in the period (beginning of period + 

end of period / 2). 

2. return on Average Assets (roaA) is an indicator used to assess the 

profitability of a firm’s assets. roaA is calculated taking ifrs conso-

lidated group after-tax result (including non-controlling interests) and 

dividing by average total assets in the period (beginning of period + 

end of period / 2). 

3. Cost-to-income ratio (C/i) is used to monitor cost discipline in relation 

to group income, and is the ratio between operating expenses and 

operating income less provision for credit losses, expressed as a 

percentage. 

the following indicators are used to present the ADC group’s non-financial performance:

1. employees: number of employees at year-end including temporary 

staff.

2. Attrition rate: monthly average termination rates. 

BanKinG OpEraTiOns

three ratios are derived to describe the performance of ADC’s banking segments: 

1. net interest margin (nim) measures the difference between the 

interest generated by banks and the amount of interest paid to their 

lenders, relative to the amount of the interest earning assets. nim is 

expressed as a percentage of what the bank earns on loans and other 

assets within a defined period minus the interest paid on borrowed 

funds divided by the average amount of assets on which it earned 

income in that time period; 

peRfoRmAnCe metRiCs 2. Cost-to-income ratio (C/i) is used to monitor cost discipline in relation 

to segment income, and is the ratio between operating expenses 

and operating income less provision for credit losses, expressed as a 

percentage; and 

3. loan loss ratio is used to measure a bank’s effectiveness in mana-

ging its loan book, and is the ratio of loan losses taken on the income 

statement to average loans outstanding during the period. it is ex-

pressed as a percentage.

the following indicators are used to present the ADC banking segment’s non-financial perfor-

mance:

1. branches: the number of bank branches at year-end

2. Atms: the number of Automatic teller machines (Atms) at year-end

3. Customers: the number of active bank customers at year-end

4. employees: the number of employees at year-end 

privaTE EQuiTy

two main ratios are derived to describe the performance of the private equity segment: 

1.  internal rate of return (irr) is a rate of return used to measure and 

compare the profitability of investments. the calculation of the irr 

includes dividend payments and reflects the cashflow at the time 

it is calculated and is derived as the rate of return that equates the 

present value of a project’s cash inflows with the present value of its 

cash outflows.  

2. total value to paid-in (tvpi) multiple, which is the ratio of the current 

value of remaining investments within the private equity portfolio plus 

the total value of all distributions to date to the total amount of capital 

paid into the individual investment to date. 

All calculations are gross amounts excluding transactions costs or cash holdings. 

suppOrTinG sErvicEs

As a cost center to the group, a single main performance metric is monitored for the segment.  

Cost-to-income ratio (C/i) is used to monitor cost discipline in relation to group income, and is the 

ratio between operating expenses incurred in the segment and overall group operating income 

less provision for credit losses, expressed as a percentage. 
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aDc BOnD WiTh WarranTs aTTachED

in June 2012, ADC issued a 3-year term bond (valid to 31 may 2015) with a fixed interest rate of 

6% per annum. the bond was listed on the frankfurt stock exchange on 02 July 2012 with the 

isin De000A1pgny4. next to the solid coupon of 6%, the bond has warrants of a total of 2.0 

million shares attached, entitling the holders to subscribe to up to 2.0 million new ordinary regis-

tered shares of the company at a share price of eur 14.00, which offers an upside potential to the 

subscribed bond holders. the main reason for the bond issue was the acquisition of a controlling 

stake in bancAbC at the end of July 2012. 

the bond price started the year at eur 75.0, and closed the year at virtually the same price - eur 

75.1. trading in the bond with warrants was very low in 2013 with a liquidity of just eur 39k traded 

in the course of the year.pErfOrMancE Of ThE aDc sTOcK 

in 2013, ADC’s stock price increased year-on-year by 8%, rising from eur 8.4 in January to eur 

9.1 at the end of December. the market capitalization increased 19%, rising from eur 72.3 million 

to eur 86.0 million at the end of December, also due to a private placement issued in July 2013, 

which raised eur 8.2 million for ADC through the issue of 860,676 new registered shares. by 

year-end, the number of shares outstanding therefore increased to 9,467,440.

over the course of the year ADC’s share price outperformed the msCi emerging and frontier 

markets Africa index, which dropped 7% since the end of 2012, but underperformed the german 

sDAx by 29% due to a slower overall trend in emerging markets worldwide.

CApitAl mARkets
sharE infOrMaTiOn

legal Domicile
frankfurt, germany

legal form
stock Corporation (Ag)

shares in issue 
9,467,440

listing 
xetrA, frankfurt, stuttgart, berlin, Duesseldorf, tradegate

market segment 
Deutsche börse / entry standard (open market)

isin 
De000A1e8nw9

bloomberg 
AZC.gr

reuters 
AZCgne.De
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ADC As An employeR

CoRpoRAte goveRnAnCe 

DeClArAtion

in total, ADC employed 1,558 people as of year-end 2013 (2012: 1,361), with most of them em-

ployed in its African operations, and particularly within bancAbC subgroup (2013: 1,501 vs. 2012: 

1,310). An average attrition rate of only 0.80% (2012: 0.75%) over the course of 2013 makes ADC 

confident that the group is a reliable employer and will continue to source highly-skilled emplo-

yees.

the management and supervisory board of ADC African Development Corporation Ag submitted 

a voluntary declaration of conformity with the german Corporate governance Code pursuant to 

Articles 161 of the german stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz) in march 2014. the Corporate 

governance code can be accessed on the groups website: 

http://www.african-development.com/en/investor-relations/corporate-governance/

MacrOEcOnOMic EnvirOnMEnT

sUB sahaRan afRica

improved macroeconomic policies are among the top factors that have led to an average gDp 

growth of 5.5% in sub-saharan Africa over the last decade1. in contrast to an average gDp growth 

of 1.3% in advanced economies in 2013, sub-saharan Africa’s growth beat international monetary 

fund (imf) october 2013 forecasts, recording a growth of 5.1% in 2013, increasing from 4.8% in 

20122.

the following table shows key economic and demographic metrics for our current operational 

markets in sub saharan Africa. the data provided in the table below is as of year-end 20133.

Economic anD DEmogRaphic mEtRics foR aDc opERational maRkEts

coUntRiEs /
cURREnt 
opERational 
maRkEts

gDp (in UsD 
Billion)

popUlation 
(in million)

gDp pER ca-
pita (in UsD)

gDp gRowth 
(annUal %)

Rank in 
„Doing 

BUsinEss“ 
REpoRt4

classifi-
cation in 
„fREEDom 

on thE 
woRlD”5

Botswana 15.5 2.1 7,470 3.9 56 F

Kenya 45.3 43.3 1,046 5.9 129 PF

Mozambique 14.7 22.9 640 7.0 139 PF

Nigeria 292.0 169.3 1,725 6.2 147 PF

Rwanda 7.7 10.6 724 7.5 32 NF

South Africa 353.9 51.7 6,847 2.0 41 F

Tanzania 31.9 46.3 690 7.0 145 PF

Zambia 22.2 14.5 1,530 6.0 83 PF

Zimbabwe 10.5 13.1 799 3.2 170 NF

1 imf Data, world economic outlook, october 2013, includes gDp growth from 2004 – 2013.

2 world economic outlook update, 21 January 2014.

3 imf Data, world economic outlook, october 2013.

4 economy rankings, world bank Doing business, http://www.doingbusiness.org/rankings; rankings include a total of 189 

countries (f = free, pf = partially free, nf = not free).

5 freedom house, freedom in the world, 2014.

finAnCiAl Rep0Rt

The management and supervisory board of ADC African Development Corporation AG submitted a voluntary declaration of conformity with the German Corporate Governance Code pursuant to Articles 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz) in March 2014. The Corporate Governance code can be accessed on the Groups website: http://www.african-development.com/en/investor-relations/corporate-governance/ 
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the key elements contributing to sub-saharan Africa’s improved economic performance in recent 

years include the following:

 — macroeconomic policies

sub-saharan Africa’s growth since the mid-1990s can be attributed, in part, by favorable macroe-

conomic policies including the strengthening of fiscal positions, an enhanced effort to contain 

inflation (inflation rates in ssA have steadily declined and averaged 6.9% in 2013, compared to 

9.0% in 20121), the liberalization of exchange rates and the build up of foreign reserves to contain 

the impact of adverse external shocks2.

According to the imf, international debt relief to highly indebted poor countries in sub-saharan 

Africa eased external payment pressures, which has allowed governments to build up foreign 

reserves to contain the impact of any potential adverse shocks and as a result of widespread ma-

croeconomic improvements, many countries are increasingly investing in infrastructure, education 

and their industrial sectors rather than servicing debt3. previous high levels of external debt in 

countries across the continent have declined from 63% of gDp in 2000 to 25% in 20134. 

 — political and economic reform

 

most sub-saharan African countries have implemented political and economic reforms over the 

last two decades to reduce corruption, increase local consumer demand, improve the enforcea-

bility of contracts and privatize government-owned enterprise. the 2013 Doing business report, 

published annually by the world bank, shows that 45% percent of the 20 countries that showed 

the most significant progress in 2013 were located in sub saharan Africa and 66% of the countries 

in the region improved regulatory reforms in at least one area measured by the report5. Despite 

improvements in institutional capacity, more needs to be done to improve intraregional trade by 

reducing gaps in infrastructure and harmonizing export and import regulations in order to diversify 

and protect itself from fluctuating commodity prices.  

 — increased investment

 

net foreign Direct investment (fDi) flows on the continent improved in 2013, increasing from 

usD 37 billion in 2012 to usD 43 billion in 2013, while private capital flows doubled, increasing 

from usD 14.9 billion in 2012 to usD 30.2 billion in 20136. the investment-to-gDp ratio increased 

marginally from 22.6% of gDp in 2012 to 23.2% of gDp in 2013, but still remains the lowest 

among developing regions7.

According to the world bank, investment in infrastructure has played a significant role in the 

growth of the continent over the last decade, but remains a major constraint on doing business 

and estimates that a total of 12% of Africa’s gDp each year is required to address the continent’s 

1 imf Data, world economic outlook, october 2013.

2 european investment bank, banking in sub-saharan Africa: Challenges and opportunities, January 2013.

3 ibid.

4 imf Data, world economic outlook, october 2013.

5 world bank, 2013, Doing business 2014: understanding regulations for small and medium-size enterprises. washing-

ton, DC: world bank group. Doi: 10.1596/978-0-8213-9984-2. license: Creative Commons Attribution CC by 3.0.

6 worldbank, global economic prospects, regional ssA, January 2014.

7 ibid.

infrastructure deficit1, which could boost sub-saharan Africa’s gDp by more than usD 20 billion 

annually and increase trade by up to 51%, providing the most economic benefit to intraregional 

trade2. 

 — favorable commodity price trends and new resource discoveries

 

in recent years, there has been a steady inflow of investments into the African mining and natural 

resources sectors. the main raw materials that are exported from ssA are crude oil and natural 

gas, copper and cobalt, iron ore, gold, silver, platinum and palladium as well as other rare earth 

materials and diamonds. favorable commodity prices and new resource discoveries have been an 

important catalyst for growth; however growth has also been strong in some non-resource rich 

countries such as burkina faso, ethiopia, mozambique, rwanda and uganda3.

 — political stability and improved governance

 

political stability has significantly improved in sub-saharan Africa over the last two decades. Ac-

cording to the 2014 freedom house rankings, the number of countries in sub-saharan Africa 

classified as „free & partially free“ remained stable at 29 in 2013 compared with 2012, which is 

an increase of 70% over the last 20 years, while the number of states classified as “not free” has 

declined by 47% in the same period4.

 — Demographic growth

 

the population of sub-saharan Africa continues to grow with the highest fertility rates in the 

world. According to the population reference bureau, sub-saharan Africa’s population totaled 926 

million in mid-2013 and is projected to increase to 1.3 billion by 2025 and 2.2 billion by 2050, with 

37% of the population living in urban areas5. in recent years, population growth and economic libe-

ralization has contributed to increasing consumer demand for basic needs as well as for a broader 

range of products and services, particularly from a growing African middle-class. Demographic 

changes are transforming the continent from a commodities-led growth story to a consumer-led 

one with total consumer spending estimated to increase from usD 860 billion in 2008 to usD 1.4 

trillion by 20206. 

1 world bank, fact sheet: infrastructure in sub-saharan Africa.

2 international trade Centre, Africa’s trade potential: export opportunities in growth markets. geneva: itC, 2012.

3 european investment bank, banking in sub-saharan Africa: Challenges and opportunities, January 2013.

4 freedom house, freedom in the world, 2014.

5 Carl haub and toshiko kaneda, 2013 world population Data sheet (washington, DC: population reference bureau, 2013).

6 ernst & young, private equity roundup – Africa, february 2013.
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sUB-sahaRan afRica’s Banking sEctoR

the growth of sub-saharan Africa’s economy and the stabilization of its macroeconomic and finan-

cial environment has led to the overall development of its banking sector. nevertheless, banking 

sectors across the continent remain underdeveloped. 

banking systems in sub-saharan Africa are heavily concentrated in urban centers and financial 

inclusion remains low. while sub-saharan Africa’s financial services market is developing at a fast 

pace, access is still relatively low with only 24% of adults (age 15+) having an account at a formal 

financial institution as of 2011 with only 2.7 branches per 100,000 adults1. one of the most im-

portant factors contributing to the low levels of access to financial services is income level, with 

those with incomes in the top 60% being 123% more likely to have an account versus those with 

incomes in the bottom 40%2.

sub-saharan Africa’s market structures are typically oligopolistic, as exemplified by the high share 

of total assets accounted for the three largest banks in most of ADC’s banking markets, which 

ranges from 39% - 78%3. the banking sector is characterized by high interest rate spreads and low 

loan-to-deposit ratios with a large share of banking assets in the form of government securities 

and liquid assets with about 60% of loans having a maturity of less than one year4.

through shareholdings in bancAbC and ubn, ADC is active in the commercial banking sector in 

botswana, mozambique, nigeria, tanzania, Zambia, and Zimbabwe. the table below shows the 

key banking metrics for these markets and clearly demonstrates that the commercial banking 

sector is growing rapidly with an average year-on-year growth rate for total assets of 9.8% from 

mid-2012 to mid-2013 with client loans and deposits having grown an average of 12.5% and 6.5% 

respectively over the same time period. the growth rate in deposits in most markets has lagged 

behind that of loans, but almost all markets are maintaining conservative loan-to-deposit ratios 

varying between 66% - 85% with an average interest rate spread of 8.4% in 2012, which trans-

lates into a healthy average return on average equity of 25.4% in all ADC operational countries. 

the assets-to-gDp ratio varies between 35% – 53%, showing a low level of financial inclusion, 

providing confidence that these markets are established, but in a stage of growth which indicates 

strong profits ahead.

1 world bank findex Database.

2 ibid.

3 ADC calculations from bankscope, bureau van Dijk electronic publishing gmbh, 2012 data, accessed on January 24, 

2014, from year-end 2012 data.

4 european investment bank, banking in sub-saharan Africa: Challenges and opportunities, January 2013.

aDc Banking maRkEt statistics

total 
assEts 

(UsD Bn)

total 
assEts % 
changE  

y-o-y

cliEnt 
loans % 
changE  

y-o-y

cliEnt 
DEpo-
sits  % 

changE 
y-o-y

loan / 
DEposit 

Ratio 
(%)1

assEts / 
gDp (%)2

nEt 
intEREst 

maRgin 
(%) 2

REtURn 
on 

avERagE 
EqUity 

(%)3

Botswana 7.0 -3.8% 8.8% -5.2% 76.1% 45.1% 7.0% 34.8%

Mozambique 7.7 12.8% 28.6% 20.3% 79.4% 52.5% 6.9% 25.0%

Nigeria 136.5 8.7% 8.7% -1.4% 82.9% 46.7% 8.1% 20.8%

Tanzania 12.5 16.0% 13.8% 12.7% 71.6% 39.1% 9.1% 19.9%

Zambia 7.8 17.2% 10.4% 18.4% 66.0% 35.1% 9.0% 25.8%

Zimbabwe 5.2 11.6% 11.0% -1.8% 84.7% 49.6% 10.2% 26.0%

Average - 9.8% 12.5% 6.5% 77.1% 44.4% 8.4% 25.4%

incREasing DomEstic lEnDing will BE cRitical foR gRowth 

many countries on the continent are now depositing at least 30-50% of national gDp4 in local bank 

accounts, which is a positive development for economic progress and financial inclusion; however, 

domestic credit provided by the banking sector has lagged behind and ranges between 15-36% of 

gDp5 in ADC banking markets (excluding Zimbabwe) versus 123% in germany and 229% in the 

united states6. As such, narrowing the gap in the credit-to-deposit ratio is critical for the develop-

ment of local businesses and the economy by providing more growth capital to local businesses.

significant REgUlatoRy & sUpERvisoRy REfoRms sUppoRt gRowth of afRican Banking 

sEctoR 

while sub-saharan Africa’s financial system did not experience direct shocks from the 2008-09 

financial crisis, an imf study indicates that the financial health of many banks were affected as 

borrowers experienced financial distress in the economic downturn, which affected the banks’ 

financial stability indicators in the region from 2009 – 2011. the report shows that banks’ capital 

adequacy ratios deteriorated in 2010 with a rising share of npls, which affected overall profita-

bility. in 2011, there was a drop in the npl ratio and an improvement in capital adequacy ratios; 

however there was a declining rate of return and bank equity from 2009 – 2011, which is likely due 

to losses on loan portfolios and increased competition in some markets7.

1 bmi statistics [total assets, client loans, client deposits and loan-to-deposit ratio. information accurate as of: botswana, 

oct 2013; mozambique, Aug 2013; nigeria, nov 2013; tanzania, sep 2013; Zambia, oct 2013; Zimbabwe, sept 2013.

2 bmi total asset figures used with gDp figures from world economic outlook, october 2013.

3 DC calculations from bankscope, bureau van Dijk electronic publishing gmbh, 2012 data, accessed on January 24, 2014, 

from year-end 2012 data.

4 world bank, global financial Development Database, January 2014.

5 world bank, global financial Development Database, January 2014.

6 world bank financial structure Database, 2012 figures.

7 international monetary fund. regional economic outlook, sub-saharan Africa: maintaining growth in an uncertain 

world. washington, D.C., october 2012 excluding Zimbabwe.

seCtoR speCifiC ConDitions
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since the global financial crisis, banks across Africa are striving to implement international best 

practices and adhere to the basel iii accords. A report published by moody’s in June 2013 com-

mends the region’s progress in regulatory and supervisory practices, which are moving closer to 

international standards but states that credit agencies need to be strengthened to improve the 

quality of information about borrowers. moody’s predicts, however, that npls will not dramatically 

increase owing to an improvement in both the management of the financial institutions and regu-

latory scrutiny, which is a positive sign for the strength of the banking system as a whole. 

tEchnology is lowERing costs anD incREasing financial inclUsion

A 2013 kpmg study on African banking finds that alternative banking channels are starting to 

gain traction in many African markets and customers are increasingly demanding new products 

and technologies from their banks1. the study finds that young professionals dominate the use 

of Atms and that Africans are early adopters to mobile money with 16% of adults in sub-saharan 

Africa having used a mobile phone in 2011 to pay bills or to send or receive money2. the world 

bank calculates that 12% of people without a formal account used mobile phones to conduct 

financial transactions in 2011, which is the highest proportion of mobile money users in the world 

and reflects the pace of financial innovation occurring in the region.

According to the economist, bankers typically regard markets as being ripe for banking once gDp 

per capita reaches usD 10,0003. ADC’s active banking markets have a gDp per capita range of 

between usD 640 – usD 7,470 (see economic and Demographic metrics table) with a median 

gDp per capita of usD 1,046. technology, however is lowering that hurdle rate as the traditional 

brick and mortar model is replaced by technological innovations such as mobile banking and pre-

paid cards. 

with new, innovative technology taking off on the continent, banks are partnering with mobile 

phone companies and developing new products to better suit the needs of the population while 

simultaneously bypassing infrastructure weaknesses and saving money. A recent study of ban-

king channels finds that it is 10 times cheaper to serve a customer via mobile than an Atm and 45 

times cheaper than a traditional branch structure4.

REgional intEgRation DRiving consoliDation

A characteristic of the African banking market is the emergence of increasingly pan-African ban-

king groups, which have been rapidly expanding across borders from some of the region’s largest 

economies. According to the european investment bank, there are at least nine sub-saharan-

domiciled financial groups that operate banks in seven or more sub-saharan countries5.

ADC’s main banking asset, bancAbC, is becoming a larger player in the pan-African banking space 

with operational entities in five sub-saharan markets. At the end of september, the magazine 

“the Africa report” published the 2013 rankings for Africa’s top 200 banks based on total assets. 

while the ranking continue to be dominated by south African banks, which occupy the top five 

places on the list, pan-African players outside of south Africa are gaining ground. 

1 kpmg, African banking industry Customer satisfaction survey, April 2013.

2 world bank - Demirguc-kunt, klapper, measuring financial inclusion, 2012.

3 the economist. banking in Africa: Continent of Dreams. march 2013.

4 kpmg, African banking industry Customer satisfaction survey, April 2013.

5 european investment bank, banking in sub-saharan Africa: Challenges and opportunities, January 2013.

oveRAll business peRfoRmAnCe 
positive economic growth in sub-saharan Africa combined with solid performance of ADC’s ban-

king activities on the continent has led to favorable overall business performance for ADC in 2013 

compared to that of 2012. 

in early 2013, ADC further refined its strategy to focus exclusively on the rapidly expanding retail, 

corporate and consumer banking operations on the continent and made the strategic decision to 

streamline the Company’s private equity portfolio in order to concentrate on implementing its pan-

African banking strategy. this strategic shift started in 2012 has begun to bear fruit, with the group 

posting a pre-tax profit from continuing operations of eur 19.3 million in 2013, primarily driven by 

profits from the consolidation and at equity measurement of its banking operations and profit on 

sale of its minority stake in banco nacional de guinea ecuatorial. 

in July, the supervisory board approved a private placement of 10% of share capital, which was 

subscribed at eur 9.50 per share, raising eur 8.2 million for ADC and securing operational finan-

cing through mid-2015.

in December, ADC made a mandatory offer to acquire the outstanding, issued ordinary shares of 

bancAbC not already owned by ADC, as required by the botswana stock exchange (bse) for any 

shareholder owning more than 35% of a listed company in botswana. the mandatory offer was 

financed by ADC’s largest shareholder trafigura, and closed on 17 January 2014. the mandatory 

offer increased ADC’s voting control by 4.0% to 54.1%.

the following sections provide an overview of the overall business performance at each of ADC’s 

operational banking units, as well as for the investments in ADC’s private equity portfolio.

aBc holDings limitED (BancaBc sUBgRoUp)

bancAbC achieved a profit after tax of bwp 174.4 million before consolidation into ADC for the 

2013 financial year. this is an increase of 29% compared with bancAbC’s 2012 result of bwp 

135.2 million.

total operating income excluding impairments for the year under review was bwp 2.6 billion 

before consolidation at the bancAbC subgroup level, up 35% from 2012. total income on a stand-

alone basis includes net interest income after impairments of bwp 682.1 million and non-interest 

income of bwp 692.1 million, up 28% and 25% respectively from year-end 2012. bancAbC regis-

tered a net interest margin of 10.1% in 2013 on the back of high lending rates especially to the 

retail sector.

provisions for credit losses were bwp 328.0 million on a stand-alone basis, up 137% when com-

paring to the 2012 financial year. the ten largest impairment charges represent 82% of the total 

impairment charges with two impairments in tanzania representing almost a third of the total. As 

a result, gross non-performing loans increased from 9.2% in December 2012 to 10.0% at the end 

of December 2013.
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bancAbC subgroup deliberately slowed its lending growth due to liquidity constraints; however, 

all entities had significant growth in net interest income due largely to growth in balance sheet 

sizes. bancAbC botswana, Zambia and Zimbabwe saw increases in high-yielding consumer loans 

on payroll deduction schemes, while bancAbC tanzania faced challenges in growing the business 

in the first half of the year due to depleted regulatory capital levels which placed the entity’s 

capital adequacy ratio below the minimum required by regulation. the operating subsidiary was 

re-capitalized in July 2013 and restructuring activities continue in order to position the entity to 

make a positive contribution in 2014.

At the end of December 2013, net loans and advances were at bwp 10.6 billion on a stand-alone 

basis, up 15% from December 2012. total assets as at 31 December 2013 were up 18% on a 

stand-alone basis at bwp 15.8 billion versus bwp 13.4 billion in 2012. total deposits were up 

14%, totaling bwp 12.2 billion; all bancAbC operational countries except Zimbabwe increased 

their deposit base compared to December 2012. Zimbabwe experienced a significant drop in 

deposits prior to the Zimbabwe elections in July 2013, however the operational entity was rated 

as the most customer-focused bank in a 2013 kpmg banking Customer satisfaction survey1 and 

the decrease in deposits in Zimbabwe can be attributed to macro-level customer concern versus 

dissatisfaction with the bank itself. 

group operational costs were 29% higher than 2012; however the cost-to-income ratio fell from 

71% at the end of 2012 to 66% for the same period in 2013 as total income excluding impairments 

rose by 39% year over year. bancAbC’s nAv per share of bwp 5.64 grew 15.5% versus year-end 

2012, ending the year trading at a price-to-book ratio of 0.9.

Despite registering a substantially higher net profit year-over-year, the bank’s management under-

achieved its targets as a result of liquidity challenges limiting balance sheet growth, and substan-

tial individual impairments on large corporate accounts which adversely affected revenue growth 

and impairment losses respectively. 

bancAbC’s main areas of focus in the coming year will be to address liquidity challenges via vari-

ous fundraising and deposit mobilization efforts and to tighten management of the credit process 

in order to mitigate and reduce non-performing loans and future impairment risks. further to this, 

management has targeted operating efficiency in order to further improve its cost-to-income ratio.

Union Bank of nigERia (UBn)2

ubn’s transformation was a core part of the 2013 financial year, with multiple projects across 

all areas of the bank’s business. personnel restructuring was successfully executed, with an on-

going recruitment process to improve the average quality of personnel, while corporate and retail 

divisions put significant efforts into their marketing, with targeted sales efforts and customized 

products. the bank has invested significantly into technology and operations as well as risk ma-

nagement and financial control. the overall transformation aims to give the bank a competitive ad-

vantage in the nigerian banking industry, enabling ubn to outperform its peers in an increasingly 

hawkish regulatory environment. 

the restructuring activities impacted ubn’s performance in 2013, with group level profit before tax 

(pbt) of ngn 3.8 billion, up 31% versus the 2012 financial year. pbt for the core bank, excluding 

1 kpmg, African banking industry Customer satisfaction survey, April 2013.

2 minor changes compared to status on 31 march 2014.

ubn uk and all non-banking operations, was ngn 4.2 billion, up 22% from prior year results. 

ubn was exposed to developments in the nigerian discount house sector in the second half of 

the year, which contributed to an increase in the overall impairment charge of ngn 12.1 billion at 

group level. the return on average equity (roae) in 2013 was 2.1% for group and 2.8% for the 

core bank, versus 0.7% and 1.8% respectively from the previous year, reflecting the negative im-

pact of one-off restructuring costs and extraordinary provisioning due to the discount house crisis. 

2013 was the first full year with ubn’s new core executive management in place. the manage-

ment have been successful in making ubn a more stable and more customer-focused bank with 

the underlying core business showing strong growth, particularly in the second half of the year. 

group net interest income at the end of 2013, totaled ngn 57.4 billion, a decline of 9% compared 

with year-end 2012, while core bank net interest income of ngn 55.1 billion declined by 6%. the 

reduction in net interest largely reflects declines in nigerian treasury yields, since 65% of ubn’s 

interest earning assets at year end are held in either investment securities or interest earning 

cash. furthermore, interest from loans & advances was relatively inflated in 2012 due to accrued 

interest on a large AmCon bond receivable which was repaid in 2013. group and core bank 

non-interest income increased to ngn 24.5 billion and ngn 24.2 billion respectively. operating 

expenses were down 18% at group level to ngn 60.0 billion (2012: ngn 73.0 billion) and down 

20% at core bank level to ngn 56.7 billion (2012: ngn 70.9 billion) versus prior year figures, de-

spite including non-recurring expenses of ngn 7.8 billion related to staff restructuring, which is 

expected to achieve annual savings of ngn 8.1 billion starting in 2014.  

total assets at year-end totaled ngn 1,002.8 billion at group level and ngn 882.1 billion at core 

bank level, down 1.2% and 0.5% at group and bank level respectively. 

Deposits decreased by 8% at group level, but remained stable at core bank level, ending the year 

at ngn 480.0 billion. the cash reserve requirement (Crr) on public sector funds increased to 

50% in 2013, and 75% in January 2014 and will likely increase further to 100% later in 2014; redu-

cing the banks yield on public sector deposits. in the first half of 2013, deposits decreased to ngn 

456.9 billion, partly because of the loss of public sector deposits, the second half of 2013, how-

ever, saw deposits grow 5.0%, an annualized rate of 10.0%, which is the fastest deposit growth 

rate since ADC invested at the beginning of 2012 reflecting the bank’s new marketing strategies to 

convert dormant accounts into active accounts as well as enhancements to the branch network.

net loans were up 43% to ngn 229.5 billion at group level compared to the 2012 financial year 

and up 53% to ngn 210.1 billion at core bank level. 85% of the total credit growth since the be-

ginning of 2012 at core bank level occurred in the second half of 2013, which is largely attributable 

to the growth in corporate accounts. the recently appointed head of Corporate banking is building 

stronger relationships with blue chip corporates and reactivating dormant accounts. 

gross loan-to-deposit ratio was 48.1% at core bank level. liquidity remains strong with room to 

grow its loan book by a further 52% without raising more capital, or breaching the 80% regulatory 

threshold for the loan-to-deposit ratio. ubn finished the year with a Capital Adequacy ratio (CAr) 

of 25.0%, well above the regulatory requirement of 15%.
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pRivatE EqUity invEstmEnts

 
Banco nacional DE gUinEa EcUatoRial (BangE)

 

in may 2013, ADC exited its investment in bAnge after the opportunity to acquire a majority did 

not materialize over the four-year investment period. negotiations successfully concluded with co-

shareholders of the bank who took over ADC’s stake. inclusive of dividend payments, a total gain 

of eur 6.6 million was realized, reflecting a gross irr of 34% and a total value to paid in (tvpi) 

multiple of 3.4x.

BRainwoRks capital managEmEnt (Bcm)

bCm made operational and financial gains in its private equity based business located in Zimbab-

we during 2013. the company entered the tourism sector during the year in review with an invest-

ment in African sun limited (46.9% stake) and Dawn properties limited (15.3% stake) together 

with international co-investors. it’s 29.4% investment in ecobank turned a profit in 2013 while 

majority-owned fml oil Zimbabwe secured American co-investors and obtained exchange control 

approval which will enable the company to ramp up its logistics operations to fuel companies in 

2014. bCm’s 45% equity investment in getbucks Zimbabwe is on an upward trend with lucrative 

profit projections by mid-2014. 

bCm completed a pre-ipo private placement which, at final closing, in December 2013, raised a 

total of usD 17.5 million at a price of usD 0.10 and comes prior to the completion of a planned 

reverse takeover of a toronto stock exchange tier 2 listed company, which is set to be finalized in 

q2 2014. the capital increase diluted ADC’s shareholding from 28.23% in 2012 to 18.09% at the 

end of 2013.

in line with its strategy to pursue divestiture of non-core assets, on 31 December 2013, ADC and 

bCm entered into a put / call agreement whereby ADC granted the founders of bCm a call option 

to buy ADC’s shares in bCm and ADC was granted a put option by bCm founders to sell ADC’s 

shares in bCm for the equivalent amount. the call and put options are valid until 30 June 2014. 

bCm is classified as held for sale at year end 2013. further information about the call and put op-

tions can be found in note 6.14 to the financial statements.

ivERi paymEnt tEchnologiEs (ivERi)

ADC has a 49% shareholding in iveri and a 25.1% shareholding in iveri’s subsidiary company 

evripay. iveri provides best-of-breed eCommerce solutions for merchants in Africa and is used in 

the following countries across the continent: south Africa, namibia, lesotho, swaziland, kenya, 

Angola, tanzania, rwanda, nigeria and Zimbabwe.

in late november 2012, iveri launched mpress, a mobile Chip & pin solution, which allows the 

processing of major credit cards as well as local debit card schemes. mpress was deployed by 

its first customer in february 2013, and was the first mobile point-of-sale (mpos) deployment in 

Africa. one year after the launch, iveri’s mpress is live, certified (visa and masterCard compliant) 

and a leader in the field of e-payments. 

iveri’s increasing array of products and services available to banks across Africa translated into 

positive developments in 2013, resulting in a 26% increase in revenues, totaling ZAr 19.5 million 

(eur 1.7 million) in the year under review, compared to ZAr 15.5 million (eur 1.4 million) in 2012. 

pbt at iveri more than tripled year-on-year, totaling ZAr 4.1 million (eur 281.5k) compared to ZAr 

905k (eur 86k) in 2012. ADC has commenced activities in order to divest its stake in iveri, and as 

such is classified as available for sale at year end 2013.

REsolUtion hEalth East afRica limitED (RhEal)

ADC owns a 38.74% stake in rheAl, kenya’s first medical insurance provider under kenya’s 

new insurance act. in January 2013, rheAl received its new license from kenya’s insurance 

regulatory Authority (irA), which registers the company as a general insurer, licensed to provide 

a range of medical and other general insurance products. rheAl is now active under the reso-

lution insurance brand name, whose primary focus is the medical insurance business, with over 

60,000 members in three countries in east Africa. in september 2013, the east African Johnnie 

walker blue label CnbC Africa All Africa business leaders Awards named the founder and Ceo 

of rehAl, peter nduati, entrepreneur of the year for his innovative work in the field of medical 

insurance provision in Africa.

Despite strengthening its network to over 750 medical service providers in east Africa (2012: 

400+) and increasing its active members by 13%1, rheAl suffered a loss of kes 492.8 million 

(eur 4.1 million) despite a 21% growth in net premiums in 2013. rheAl’s negative earnings are 

partly due to the reorganization of the company to fulfill new licensing requirements for insurance 

companies and partly due to rheAl’s expansion into tanzania and uganda with partnerships in 

sudan and the south sudanese insurance sector.

Rswitch

ADC’s acquisition of rswitch in June 2008 aimed to transform rwanda’s beleaguered payments 

switch into a modern e-payment system, delivering technological solutions to rwandan banks and 

to increase financial inclusion within the country while simultaneously complying with internatio-

nal standards to conduct and settle payments across systems. 

rswitch has made significant progress on enabling the e-payment sector to grow within the coun-

try over the last five years. At the end of 2008 there were less than 25 Atms in rwanda and a total 

of 12,045 debit cards nationwide that collectively made 177,503 Atm withdrawals at local Atms. 

At the end of 2013, the country had increased the number of Atms to 326 with over 273,000 debit 

cards, which made close to three million Atm withdrawals over the year on rswitch’s integrated 

payments system. 

rswitch’s local management, headed by konde bugingo, spearheaded rswitch’s turnaround and 

successfully delivered the company’s first profitable year in 2013, registering a profit before tax of 

rwf 161.2 million (eur 169.1k). ADC is proud to have contributed to rwanda’s financial deepe-

ning and believes that the company has a prosperous future ahead.

in line with ADC’s strategic shift to exit its investments in its private equity arm, ADC has received 

an offer from an interested party for ADC’s majority shareholding in rswitch; due to its conso-

lidated status, it is now classified as an asset available for sale and shown under discontinued 

operations in the consolidated income statement and balance sheet.

1 5% increase in kenya and the balance are new customers in tanzania and uganda.
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gRoUp

net profit in the financial year was eur 12.5 million, this is a significant improvement from the 

2012 full year figure which was very much affected by exceptional factors. the development of 

results in 2013 compared with the previous year is detailed in the following table. All comparisons 

to 2012 reference re-stated figures1. with 2012 figures including only 5-months of consolidated 

bancAbC subgroup results, relevant comparisons to previous year income statement items re-

main limited:

in EUR million 2013 2012
∆ in EUR 
million

Operating Performance

Gross Operating income 159.5 53.8 105.7

Net interest income 82.7 27.6 55.1

Net fee and commission income 37.3 16.9 20.4

Net trading income 16.2 2.6 13.6

Net gains (losses) on financial instruments designated at fair 
value through profit or loss

3.2 (12.7) 15.9

Net income (loss) from equity method investments 14.5 (0.9) 15.4

Other non-interest income 5.6 20.3 (14.7)

Provisions for credit losses (24.9) (8.1) (16.8)

Operating Income 134.6 45.7 88.9

Operating Expenses (115.4) (57.2) (58.2)

Staff costs (44.0) (18.7) (25.3)

Administration expenses (35.5) (19.2) (16.3)

Depreciation & Amortization (17.3) (11.5) (5.8)

Other operating expenses (18.6) (7.8) (10.8)

Pre-tax profit (loss) 19.3 (15.9) 35.2

Profit from discontinued operations 0.2 (0.9) 1.1

Net profit (loss) 12.5 (18.9) 31.4

Ratios & Indicators

Return on average Equity 9.6% -16.6%

Return on average Assets 0.9% -2.5%

Cost-to-income ratio 72.3% 106.5%

Employees: 1,558 1,362 194

Attrition rate:  0.80% 0.75%

1 2012 accounts re-stated to align with bancAbC subgroup’s requirement to adopt ifrs 10, including consolidation of 

ADC’s stake in ADC ventures previously accounted for as a derivative financial instrument, and application of the invest-

ment entity Approach to the accounts of ugpl taken into ADC group accounts at equity. further details on re-statement 

of 2012 figures available in note 2.2 to the financial statements.

Development in eARnings opERating incomE During 2013, operating income amounted to eur 134.6 million (2012: eur 

45.7 million). the increase was in significant part due to the integration of a full 12-months of ope-

rating results from bancAbC subgroup compared with consolidation of only 5-months in 2012 as 

well as operational growth at bancAbC subgroup and increased gains recognized on associates. 

net interest income reached eur 82.6 million in 2013 compared with eur 27.6 million in prior 

year, indicating a year-over-year growth of 25% excluding run rate effects (i.e. consolidation of 12 

vs. 5 months results), and is related directly to underlying growth and improved of net interest 

margin at bancAbC subgroup.

net fee and commission income of eur 37.3 million (2012: eur 16.9 million) and relates primarily 

to fee income on loans and advances (eur 15.2 million), fee income from trust and fiduciary acti-

vities (eur 10.9 million), and fee income on available for sale securities (eur 9.8 million). 

net trading income increased substantially to eur 16.2 million in the financial year (2012: eur 2.6 

million) relating primarily to eur 14.6 million in net trading gains on foreign exchange differences 

realized at bancAbC subgroup, eur 3.6 million in gains on available for sale investments, and 

losses on derivative financial instruments of eur 2.1 million.  

net gains on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss were eur 3.2 

million in 2013 (2012: loss of eur 12.7 million). the gains in 2013 relate primarily to gains on sale 

of ADC’s 25% minority stake in bAnge in equatorial guinea for eur 1.4 million.  furthermore, a 

eur 0.7 million gain was booked on its minority stake in resolution health, and a eur 0.3 million 

loss in brainworks. the balance of eur 1.4 million relates to movements in fair value investments 

at bancAbC subgroup, primarily driven by gains recorded in the various equity investments of its 

tanzanian subsidiary. 

net income from equity method investments increased to eur 14.5 million in the financial year 

(2012: eur -0.9 million). the income relates to ADC’s total 14.74% holdings in ugpl, and its un-

derlying valuation of its shareholding in union bank of nigeria at 9.63 naira per share at year end 

2013.

other non-interest income was eur 5.6 million (2012: eur 20.3 million).  income relates to ren-

tal income, and miscellaneous other non-interest income at bancAbC subgroup. the 2012 gains 

included a one-time gain of eur 17.1 million from the release of negative goodwill arising from 

the first time consolidation of bancAbC subgroup and intangible assets created through purchase 

price allocation.

pRovisions foR cREDit lossEs were eur 24.9 million in 2013 (2012: eur 8.1 million). the 2013 

full year credit loss ratio was 2.8% compared with 1.8%1 as bancAbC’s standalone ratio in 2012. 

main contributor to credit loss provisions were corporate lending activities with the top 5 individu-

al impairments accounting for eur 16.9 million or 68% of total losses in the year, and with the 5 

largest exposures in tanzania accounting for eur 11.0 million or 44% of losses.    

opERating ExpEnsEs in the financial year 2013, operating expenses increased by eur 58.2 mil-

lion to eur 115.4 million (2012: eur 57.2 million), mainly due to the consolidation of a full year 

of bancAbC subgroup compared to 5 months in 2012. Compared to the previous year, staff ex-

1 based on 2012 full year credit loss ratio from AbC holdings 2012 Annual report.
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penses increased to eur 44.0 million (2012: eur 18.7 million), with underlying headcount growth 

of 14.5% year-over-year, exclusively at bancAbC subgroup.  

operating expenses further include eur 17.3 million in depreciation and amortization including 

eur 17.4 million relating to bancAbC subgroup, eur 10.2 million in it services expenses primarily 

relating to operating and maintenance of bancAbC’s banking software programs, eur 8.3 million 

in rental expense mainly relating to bancAbC’s pan-African branch network, eur 6.9 million in 

commissions expenses relating primarily to bancAbC’s easyloan activities in botswana, eur 5.3 

million in audit, legal and other professional fees and administrative services, eur 4.9 million in 

marketing expenses, eur 3.6 million in travel expenses. the remaining eur 14.9 million relate to 

other operating and administrative costs and expenses.

because of the reduction in costs at ADC holding level, and the consolidation of full-year re-

sults from bancAbC, the cost-to-income ratio for ADC group was 72.3% in 2013, compared with 

107.8% in 2012. this compares with an average cost-to-income ratio of 65.5% for all banks in 

ADC’s banking markets1.

pRE-tax pRofit (loss) the profit before tax amounted to eur 19.3 million (2012: eur -15.9 mil-

lion). 

taxEs on incomE expenses of eur 11.5 million from current taxes (2012: eur 4.6 million) and 

income of eur 4.6 million for deferred taxes (2012: eur 2.5 million) combine to form a net tax 

expense of eur 6.9 million (2012: eur 2.1 million). in 2013, current taxes relate primarily to in-

come taxes due from banking operations in botswana, Zimbabwe and Zambia within bancAbC 

subgroup respectively.

pRofit fRom DiscontinUED opERations the activities of ADC’s consolidated subsidiary 

rswitch, held for sale at year end 2013, contributed eur 157k profit to ADC group in the year 

(2012: eur -863k)

nEt pRofit (loss) the profit after tax of ADC group amounted to eur 12.5 million (2012: eur 

-18.9 million). return on average equity amounted to 9.3% (2012: -16.6%) and return on average 

assets to 0.9% (2012:  -2.5%).

1 ADC calculations from bankscope, bureau van Dijk electronic publishing gmbh, 2012 data, accessed on January 24, 

2014, from year-end 2012 data.

sEgmEnt REpoRting 

 
Banking opERations BancaBc

in EUR million 2013 2012
∆  in EUR 
million

Operating Performance

Gross Operating income 151.4 57.7 93.7

Net interest income 91.4 31.7 59.7

Net fee and commission income 37.3 16.9 20.4

Net trading income 16.5 7.3 9.2

Other non-interest income 6.2 1.8 4.4

Provisions for credit losses (24.8) (8.1) (16.7)

Operating income 126.6 49.5 77.1

Operating expenses (107.2) (43.2) (64.0)

Pre-tax profit (loss) 19.4 6.3 13.1

Net profit (loss) 12.7 4.3 8.4

Ratios & Indicators

Net Interest Margin 10.6% 9.4%1 

Cost-to-income ratio 70.8% 74.9%

Loan loss ratio 2.8% 1.8%2 

Employees: 1,501 1,310 191

Branches: 733 61 12

ATMs: 74 62 12

Customers: 278,217 188,693 89,524

the segment banking operations bancAbC comprises the consolidated activities of bancAbC 

subgroup across its five operational countries. relevant comparisons to previous year figures are 

limited due to the first time integration of 12-months of subgroup financial data versus 5-months 

in 2012.

the segment banking operations bancAbC achieved a net profit of eur 12.7 million 2013 (2012: 

eur 4.3 million). while the performance of the bank improved, the segment continues to ex-

perience higher-than-budgeted impairments and tight liquidity, which affected the net result as 

compared to forecasts. Despite lower than forecast profits, net profit growth was substantial 

year over year.

opERating incomE During 2013, operating income amounted to eur 126.6 million (2012: eur 

49.6 million). 

1 for comparability purposes, 2012 net interest margin based on bancAbC subgroup stand-alone figures.

2 for comparability purposes, 2012 loan loss ratio based on bancAbC subgroup stand-alone figures.

3 includes 4 easy Centres located in tanzania that target specifically to public sector employees.
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net interest income reached eur 91.4 million in 2013 (2012: eur 31.7 million) indicating a year-

over-year growth of 20.1% excluding run rate effects (i.e. consolidation of 12 vs. 5 months results), 

and is related directly to underlying growth and a net interest margin of 10.6% in 2013 versus 

9.3% stand-alone in 2012.

pRovisions foR cREDit lossEs increased significantly, rising from eur 8.1 million in 2012 to eur 

24.8 million at end of year 2013. the resulting loan loss ratio increased from 1.8% to 2.8%. 

opERating ExpEnsEs increased by 3.4%, excluding run rate effects to eur 107.2 million, from 

2012 but the cost-to-income ratio fell from 74.9% in 2012 to 70.8% in 2013 as income growth 

outpaced expense growth. 

nEt pRofit the profit after tax of the segment banking operations bancAbC amounted to eur 

12.7 million (2012: eur 4.3 million). 

Banking opERations UBn

in EUR million 2013 2012
∆ in EUR 
million

Operating Performance

Gross Operating income 9.6 (2.5) 12.1

Net interest income (expense) (5.3) (2.3) (3.0)

Net income from equity method investments 14.9 (0.5) 15.4

Other non-interest income 0.1 0.3 0.2

Provision for credit losses 0.0 0.0 0.0

Operating income 9.6 (2.5) 12.1

Operating expenses (0.4) (2.6) 2.2

Pre-tax profit (loss) 9.2 (5.1) 14.3

Net profit (loss) 9.2 (5.1) 14.3

Ratios & Indicators of the Underlying Asset1

Net Interest Margin: 9.4% 11.0%

Cost-to-income ratio: 71.5% 96.0%

Employees: 3,959 4,794

the segment banking operations ubn comprises ADC’s at equity interest of 14.74% in ugpl, 

the investor consortium holding a 61.39%2 stake in union bank of nigeria plc (ubn), including the 

consolidation of both the previously consolidated vehicle ADC enterprises; as well as its special 

purpose vehicle ADC ventures, previously accounted for as a derivative financial instrument3. ADC 

ventures is a non-recourse vehicle financed with usD 3 million by ADC, and a mezzanine loan fa-

cility of usD 41.3 million in order to increase ADC upside opportunity in the ubn asset. the ratios 

and indicators are shown based on the underlying performance of ubn, which is taken into ugpl 

accounts at fair value, and thus not on a consolidated basis of measurement.

in the year under review, the net profit of the segment of eur 9.2 million was higher than the 

corresponding previous year figure (2012: eur -5.1 million) as a result of the underlying valuation 

increase in ugpl’s stake in ubn to the closing share price of 9.63 naira at year end. 

opERating incomE totalled eur 9.6 million in 2013 (2012: eur -2.5 million) owing to the under-

lying revaluation of ubn to the closing share price at year end of 9.63 naira compared with 7.35 

naira at year end 2012.

opERating ExpEnsEs were eur -0.4 million in the year, significantly lower than prior year figures 

(2012: eur -2.6 million), which included the one-time costs relating to legal & other professional 

advisory expenses and facilities arranging fees relating to the initial entry into the assets.

nEt pRofit (loss)  the profit after tax of the segment banking operations ubn amounted to eur 

9.2 million (2012: eur -5.1 million)

pRivatE EqUity

in EUR million 2013 2012
∆  in EUR 
million

Operating Performance

Gross Operating income 5.2 (14.7) 19.9

Net interest income (0.0) (0.0) (0.0)

Net gains (losses) on financial instruments designated at fair 
value through profit or loss

1.9 (13.2) 15.1

Other non-interest income 3.6 3.2 0.4

Provisions for credit losses (0.5) 0.0 (0.5)

Operating income 4.7 (14.7) 19.4

Operating expenses (4.2) (7.6) (3.4)

Pre-tax profit (loss) 0.4 (22.3) 22.7

Profit from discontinued operations 0.2 (0.9) 1.1

Net profit (loss) 0.4 (23.2) 23.6

Ratios

Gross IRR 13.5% 16.0%

Multiple 1.4x 1.3x

the segment private equity Activities comprises the activities relating to the holding of ADC’s 

private equity portfolio, including the consolidated results of rwandan payment solutions provider 
1 ubn ratios added for informational purposes only and are presented and are based on audited accounts of union bank 

of nigeria plc ratios. they are not consolidated into ADC’s financial accounts.

2 the consortium controls an additional stake of 3.6% in ubn, but is held outside ugpl resulting in a 65% controlling 

stake of ugpl in ubn.

3 Accounting treatment of ADC ventures changed due to ADC’s early adoption of ifrs 10 in 2013.
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rswitch currently held as available for sale. in the year under review, the net loss of the segment 

was eur 136k from continuing operations, with a slightly positive result, when the net profits of 

discontinued operations are included. 

opERating incomE the private equity segment had two primary income streams in the 2013 

financial year underlying its operating income of eur 4.7 million versus a loss of eur 14.7 million 

in 2012. Dividend payments from bancAbC accounted for eur 3.4 million in other non-interest 

income, and net gains realized on the exit of ADC’s investment in bAnge in the amount of eur 

1.4 million made up the majority of the difference. the overall performance of the private equity 

segment as of 31 December 2013 is an irr of 13.5% and a multiple of 1.4x. 

opERating ExpEnsEs the segment significantly reduced its operating expenses in the financial 

year to eur 4.0 million (2012: eur 7.6 million) largely due to reductions in administration fees and 

other operating expenses.

nEt pRofit (loss) the profit after tax of the private equity segment amounted to eur 27k (2012: 

eur -23.2 million) driven largely by dividends received from bancAbC and net gains realized from 

the sale of bAnge in the first half of the year.  

sUppoRting sERvicEs

in EUR million 2013 2012
∆ in EUR 
million

Operating Performance

Gross operating income (2.8) (1.3) (2.4)

Net interest income (3.5) (1.8) (1.7)

Other non-interest income 0.7 0.4 0.3

Operating income (2.8) (1.3) (1.5)

Operating expenses (4.8) (4.6) (0.2)

Staff (0.8) (0.1) (0.7)

Professional services and consulting (1.5) (0.3) (1.2)

Accounting and audit (0.5) (0.7) 0.2

Other operating & administrative expenses (2.0) (3.6) 1.6

Net profit (loss) (7.7) (10.3) (2.7)

Ratios

Cost-to-income ratio1 3.0% 8.4%

the segment supporting services comprise areas of activity such as identifying investment op-

portunities, monitoring the financial position and performances of group companies and portfolio 

companies, and providing them with professional support. in addition, we pursue strategic port-

folio structuring, coordinate active risk management, implement capital-raising measures, and 

maintain relationships with investors. the segment is a cost center for the group.

opERating ExpEnsEs remained relatively stable at eur 4.8 million versus eur 4.6 million in 2012. 

the cost of the supporting services segment in relation to overall group income decreased from 

8.4% in 2012 to 3.0% in 2013 due to higher income at group level and stable operating expenses 

during the year.

nEt pRofit (loss) the loss after tax of the supporting services segment amounted to eur 7.7 

million (2012: eur 5.9 million) driven largely by interest charges carried at holding level relating to 

the 3-year bond with warrants, and the operating expenses described above.  

consoliDation & aDJUstmEnts

in EUR million 2013 2012
∆ in EUR 
million

Operating Performance

Gross Operating income (3.9) 14.7 18.6

Net interest income 0.0 0.0 0.0

Net fee and commission income 0.0 0.0 0.0

Net trading income 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other non-interest income (3.9) 14.7 18.8

Provisions for credit losses 0.4 0.0 0.4

Operating expenses 1.3 0.8 0.5

Pre-tax profit (loss) (2.2) 15.4 17.6

Net profit (loss) (2.2) 15.4 17.6

in Consolidation & Adjustments, the sum of the segment results is reconciled with the consolida-

ted results. this column contains consolidation and adjustment entries which do not fall under the 

scope of the various operating segments.

thE nEt loss in Consolidation & Adjustments was eur 2.4 million in 2013 (2012: profit of eur 

11.1 million) mainly relating to the elimination of intercompany dividends paid from bancAbC sub-

group to ADC as well as elimination of intercompany operating expense recharges.

1 operating expenses of the segment in relation to overall group income.
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the net loan book by segment remained relatively stable vs. prior year and mainly comprises of 

eur 406.4 million in corporate lending (2012: eur 450.1 million), eur 381.9 million consumer 

lending (2012: eur 387.0 million), eur 53.5 million in installment finance (2012: eur 54.8 million), 

eur 28.8 million mortgage lending (2012: eur 26.2 million) and eur 4.5 million in commercial 

and property finance (2012: eur 5.3 million). 

in EUR million 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
∆ in EUR
million

Assets

Cash and short term funds 200.9 183.4 17.5

Other financial assets held for trading 104.5 99.8 4.6

Financial assets designated at fair value 11.4 10.7 0.8

Derivative Financial Instruments 2.6 3.3 (0.7)

Loans and advances 875.0 886.6 (11.6)

Investment securities 5.6 5.3 0.3

Other current assets 25.3 24.4 0.9

Investment in associates 72.3 74.9 (2.5)

Property, plant and equipment 62.8 64.9 (2.2)

Other intangible assets and goodwill 51.8 70.7 (18.9)

Deferred tax assets 9.3 8.7 0.7

Non-current assets and disposal groups held-for-sale 10.8 0 10.8

Total Assets 1,432.4 1,432.7 (0.3)

gEnERal DEvElopmEnt in assEts  the total assets of ADC group amounted to eur 1,432.3 

million and were thus stable compared with the corresponding figure at the end of the previous 

year (2012:  eur 1,432.7 million).  while the balance sheet of bancAbC subgroup increased by 

18% in local currency, the depreciation of the bwp versus the eur in the course of 2013 by 18% 

counteracted this growth.

the group held eur 200.9 million in cash and cash equivalents compared to eur 183.4 million at 

year-end 2012. of this, eur 191.0 million was held by bancAbC subgroup and eur 10.1 million by 

ADC holding entities. Cash and equivalents increased eur 9.5 million at bancAbC subgroup, as 

well as eur 8.3 million at ADC holding level.

nEt loans anD aDvancEs amounted to eur 875.0 million at year-end 2013 compared to eur 

886.6 million as at December 31 2012, all relating to bancAbC subgroup.  while gross loans in-

creased by 18.0% in local currency to bwp 11,166 million and 0.3% in euro to eur 925.7 million 

compared to year end 2012, increased balance sheet impairments resulted in an overall decline in 

net loans and advances.  

the major parts of the net loan book come from botswana with eur 290.3 million (2012: eur 

295.1 million) and Zimbabwe with eur 282.2 million (2012: eur 325.3 million). the loan book in 

the other country subsidiaries amounts to eur 117.5 million in Zambia (2012: eur 103.4 million), 

eur 122.0 million in mozambique (2012: eur 85.6 million) and eur 62.5 million in tanzania (2012: 

eur 73.6 million). Additionally eur 0.4 million loans and advances are allocated to the holding 

company (2012: eur 3.6 million).  Declining values of net loans and advances in tanzania (-15%) 

and Zimbabwe (-13%) tied largely to increases in impairments in the year, and currency translation 

effects on a relatively stable loan book.  the decline in botswana’s net loan book is tied to currency 

translation effects.

Development in Assets

CORPORATE LENDING

46%

CONSUMER LENDING

44%

INSTALLMENT FINANCE

6%

MORTGAGE LENDING

3%

COMMERCIAL AND 
PROPERTY FINANCE
1%

composition of nEt loan Book By maRkEt sEgmEnt (in % of total)

BOTSWANA

33%

ZIMBABWE

32%

MOZAMBIQUE

14%

TANZANIA

7%

ZAMBIA

14%

composition of nEt loan Book By coUntRy (in % of total)
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in EUR million 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
∆ in EUR 
million

Liabilities

Deposits 1,012.1 1,041.9 (29.8)

Derivative financial instruments 3.8 2.2 1.6

Creditors and accruals 54.0 36.2 17.7

Current tax liabilities 1.1 2.0 (0.9)

Deferred tax liability 12.2 15.9 (3.7)

Borrowed funds 226.3 195.7 30.7

Non-current liabilities and disposal groups held-for-sale 0.4 0 0.4

Total Liabilities 1,309.9 1,293.9 16.0

liabilities

total group liabilities as of 31 December 2013 amounted to eur 1.3 billion, stable compared with 

same date in the previous year.  the stability in euro basis was mainly attributable to a reduction in 

deposits, compensated for by increased borrowed funds both at bancAbC subgroup.

DEposits at balance sheet date came in at eur 1,012.1 million, a 2.9% decrease compared to 

deposits of eur 1,041.9 million at the end of 2012 in euro terms, despite showing growth of 14% 

in local currency basis (bwp). the major parts of the depositor base came from botswana with 

eur 377.5 million and Zimbabwe with eur 238.8 million. the deposit base in the other country 

subsidiaries amounts to eur 192.5 million in mozambique, eur 107.6 million in tanzania and eur 

95.7 million in Zambia. eur 894.3 million are deposits from customers, while eur 117.9 million 

are deposits from banks. the high concentration of group deposits coming from botswana and 

Zimbabwe reduced slightly during the financial year, from 69% at year-end 2012 to 61% at year-

end 2013.

the deposit base comprises of corporate customers (eur 372.4 million), public sector (eur 260.9 

million), other financial institutions (eur 137.3 million), retail customers (eur 123.8 million), and 

banks (eur 117.9 million). the main part of the deposit base are term deposits (eur 664.2 million), 

while eur 347.9 million are payable on demand.  the concentration of deposit base in corporate 

and public sector deposits remained high at 63% in 2013, but reduced from 68% at year-end 2012. 

total impairments amount to eur 57.3 million at year-end 2013 (2012: eur 36.7 million), with 

individual impairments of eur 48.2 million increasing from 79% to 84% of total impairments and 

collective impairments increasing to eur 9.1 million. the main impairments stem from the corpo-

rate lending (eur 44.9 million) and the consumer lending (eur 9.8 million).  

invEstmEnts in associatEs were eur 72.3 million at balance sheet date compared to eur 74.9 

million at year-end 2012. At year-end 2013, the position includes eur 66.8 million relating to ADC’s 

investments in ugpl measured in accordance with the equity method. furthermore, it includes 

eur 4.4 million relating to ADC’s investment in rheAl (kenya) which is measured at fair value 

through profit and loss. the remaining eur 1.1 million relate to investments in lion of tanzania and 

Credit insurance of Zimbabwe jointly. All other investments in ADC’s private equity portfolio are 

held as available for sale at year end 2013. 

non-cURREnt assEts anD Disposal gRoUps hElD foR salE were eur 10.8 million at balance 

sheet date (2012: eur 0), and include ADC’s fair value investments held in brainworks (eur 6.3 

million), and iveri and evripay (eur 1.1 million), as well as the consolidated assets of rswitch (eur 

3.4 million).

othER intangiBlE assEts anD gooDwill ended the year with a balance of eur 51.8 million 

(2012:  eur 70.7 million).  the change related primarily to amortization taken on intangible assets, 

including currency translation effects on the intangible assets booked as part of the first time 

consolidation of bancAbC subgroup.

Development in eQuity 

AnD liAbilities
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shareholders‘ equity

the equity attributable to shareholders has developed as follows:

in EUR million 31.12.2013 31.12.2012
∆ in EUR 
million

Equity in accordance with IFRS

Share Capital 9.5 8.6 0.9

Capital Reserve 60.5 53.1 7.4

Other Reserves 3.1 8.2 (5.1)

Retained Earnings 3.8 (2.3) 6.1

Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders 76.9 67.7 9.2

Non-controlling interests 45.5 71.1 (25.6)

Total equity 122.4 138.8 (16.3)

total equity amounted to eur 122.4 million as of the reporting date (2012: eur 138.8 million). 

share capital and capital reserves increased in total by eur 8.2 million relating to the private 

placement of shares in mid-2013 at eur 9.50 per share through the issuance of 860,676 ordinary 

shares. other reserves reduced by eur 5.1 million relating primarily to a reduction in foreign 

currency translation reserves by eur 4.7 million in the year.  non-controlling interests reduced 

by eur 25.6 million, primarily relating to a eur 25.4 million liability taken at year end relating to 

the maximum liability associated with the open mandatory offer (see notes 6.13 and 6.15 to the 

financial statements), which subsequently closed in January 2014 and was financed by ADC’s 

shareholder trafigura. 

 
liquidity

pRinciplEs anD oBJEctivEs of liqUiDity anD financial managEmEnt   the primary objective 

of financial and treasury management of ADC group is to ensure liquidity of the operations at 

all times while limiting interest expenses accruing to the group. in addition, the financial ma-

nagement activities focus on establishing financing flexibility and aims to decrease the cost of 

capital while securing adequate funding. the group treasury office of ADC’s subsidiary bancAbC 

is Johannesburg, south Africa ensures adequate financial management is in place for its licensed 

banks in its five countries of operations. in the future ADC aims to use synergies between the 

group treasury office of bancAbC and its head office in germany; for example, by applying best 

practices from bancAbC’s treasury management processes to the whole ADC group and conver-

sely by providing bancAbC with access to international capital markets and ADC’s wide network 

of banks and other financiers. Currently, there is no central treasury function established which 

integrates bancAbC. the management of financial risks is reported in the risk management sec-

tion in more detail. ADC is not currently hedging itself against fluctuations in exchange rates or 

interest rates as these currency exposures are multi-year in nature with uncertain payback timeli-

nes related to investment exits. 

composition of DEposit BasE By maRkEt sEgmEnt (in % of total)

CORPORATE CUSTOMERS
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composition of DEposit BasE By coUntRy (in % of total)
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19%

ZAMBIA

9%

As a result, the loan to deposit ratio stood at 86.4% at the end of 2013, compared to 57.8%1 for 

sub-saharan African banks and 85.7% at year-end 2012.

BoRRowED fUnDs amounted to eur 226.3 million at year-end in comparison to eur 195.7 million 

at year-end 2012. the net increase of eur 30.7 million in 2013 is driven largely by the addition new 

credit facilities during the year at bancAbC subgroup level. At ADC level, the short-term financing 

of eur 1.0 million that was drawn at year end 2012 from trafigura relating to the buy-out of ADC’s 

general partner was paid back in may 2012.

1 ADC calculations from bankscope, bureau van Dijk electronic publishing gmbh, 2012 data, accessed on January 24, 

2014, from year-end 2012 data.
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oveRAll finAnCiAl position
ADC has achieved success with its transformation process and simplifying its corporate structure 

to reduce costs and increase transparency as well as efficiency. ADC group closed the financial 

year 2013 with a net profit from continuing operations of eur 12.3 million (2012 re-stated: eur 

-18.0 million), and thus returned to profitability after a loss-making year in 2012 associated with its 

corporate transformation and one-time impacts. the 2013 result was in line with management ex-

pectations and exceeded target forecasts of a group net profit of eur 10 million for 2013. return 

on average equity after taxes equaled 9.6% compared to -16.6% in prior year re-stated figures.the 

fact that ADC has been able to meet its objective in terms of net profit despite constrained growth 

and high impairments at bancAbC subgroup show that the refocused strategy on banking opera-

tions in ssA is beginning to bear fruit.  the lack of growth in euro terms in assets and liabilities is 

mainly attributable to declining currency rates with the botswana pula during 2013 and underlying 

liquidity constraints preventing more aggressive growth of the loan book.

information regarding post balance sheet events can be found in note 13 to the financial state-

ments.

ADC is managing its cash reserves prudently, monitoring the outflows on a weekly basis with a 

12-week rolling cash forecast as well as a diligent underlying cash budgeting process. ADC is cur-

rently evaluating the right time to market for further capital raising which will be needed until the 

second quarter of 2015 when the bond with warrants attached issued in June 2012 will mature. 

ADC can increase its equity from authorized capital by the issue of up to 4,303,382 shares, if re-

quired. management believes that existing key shareholders are supportive to the group and sees 

a good interest in the market from potential new shareholders to allocate funds to sub-saharan 

Africa. 

As such, ADC is in a position to fund its operations although further expansion into additional 

countries and expansion of operating subsidiaries in sub-saharan Africa might require additional 

financing. management has so far not committed material financial resources to further invest-

ments. 

Debt Facilities 

further to its equity capital, ADC has a listed eur 40 million bond with warrants attached at an 

interest rate of 6% with a term of 3 years (01 June 2012 until 31 may 2015). this is currently the 

only debt facility of the company. in may 2013, the short-term loan facility agreement with trafigu-

ra holding limited of eur 4.3 million was repaid in full.

Off-balance sheet financial facilities 

As of the balance sheet date, ADC has no off-balance sheet financial facilities such as Asset ba-

cked securities, or factoring.  information regarding operating leases can be found in note 10 to 

the financial statements.

supplementAl report of 

 post bAlAnCe sheet events
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ADC’s group management governance framework is outlined in the diagram below:

SUPERVISORY BOARD
Oversight of risk management

Audit & Risk committee of
the Supervisory Board

Nominations & Remunerations
committee of the 
Supervisory Board

GROUP MANAGEMENT BOARD (VORSTAND)
Responsible for consolidated risk management across the Group

ADC RISK MANAGER
Responsible for assessing and calculating Group-wide risk

Banking operations
—Monthly financial reports
—Monthly risk reports

PE Portfolio Investments
—Monthly company reports incl.
    risk analysis

each of ADC’s consolidated investments, particularly within the banking operations division is res-

ponsible for submitting monthly financial reports and individual risk reports to ADC’s risk manager. 

furthermore, ADC’s unconsolidated private equity investments provide monthly company reports 

including a risk analysis. ADC’s risk manager is responsible for assessing and calculating operatio-

nal risk and the wider market risks for ADC group, based on inputs received from its investments 

and further analysis relating to ADC entities specifically. A monthly ADC risk report and a summary 

of bancAbC’s monthly risk report, as the only material consolidated banking subgroup, are disse-

minated to ADC’s management board on a monthly basis. ADC management provides a quarterly 

report to the supervisory board and to the risk and audit committee with an action plan as to how 

risks are being managed and mitigated. 

ADC’s management board is responsible for risk management across the group and the following 

supervisory board sub-committees oversee ADC’s risk management framework:

 — Audit and risk Committee – overall responsibility for risk management activities of ADC inclu-

sive of operational risk, regulatory risk, financial and accounting risk; and

 — nominations and remunerations Committee – responsible for personnel risk, including suc-

cession planning and incentivization of management and the supervisory board.

risK ManaGEMEnT sysTEM

oBJEctivEs

ADC’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, 

evaluation, acceptance and management of a single risk or a combination of risks. taking risk is 

core to the financial business and operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in 

business. the ADC group’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and 

to minimize potential adverse effects on the group’s financial performance.

most assets on ADC’s group balance sheet are assets from the banking operations in the ban-

cAbC subgroup, whereas the other ADC activities make up a smaller part of the asset base. As 

such, the risk management system of bancAbC subgroup is particularly highlighted alongside 

ADC‘s group risk management system (rms) due to ADC‘s majority ownership of the subgroup 

and the consolidation thereof. 

ADC group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set 

appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of 

reliable and up-to-date information systems. ADC regularly reviews its risk management policies 

and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

bancAbC subgroup carries out risk management across all its subsidiaries, under policies appro-

ved by their board of directors. bancAbC’s board approves overall risk management practices, as 

well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of derivative 

financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments. in addition, internal audit imple-

mented on the bancAbC subgroup level is responsible for the independent review of risk manage-

ment and the control environment. the most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, 

market risk and operational risk. market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and price risk.

ADC’s rms was developed to keep management and the supervisory board up-to-date about on-

going political, economic, financial, legal and operational risks across ADC’s group and portfolio 

companies as well as the wider market risks affecting sub-saharan Africa. management ensures 

that risks are systematically identified, measured and managed using the rms. the results of the 

analysis influence the company’s strategic, financial and operational decision-making processes.

Risk managEmEnt

ADC strengthened its risk management structure in 2013 by expanding and strengthening its su-

pervisory and management boards and by formalizing a risk management governance framework 

to reinforce the risks inherent in investing in the financial services sector in sub-saharan Africa. 

Risk AnD oppoRtunities RepoRt
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bancAbC’s subgroup risk management unit is responsible for maintaining a culture of risk awa-

reness. each business unit is responsible for managing its own risks, but the group risk manage-

ment unit independently monitors, manages and reports on all risks facing bancAbC subgroup, as 

mandated by the board of directors. bancAbC regularly reports to the executive committee and to 

the risk and audit committee to provide the board of directors with assurance that risks are being 

identified, managed and controlled appropriately. the executive manager of the risk management 

unit reports to the Ceo of bancAbC.

the following sub-committees, comprising of executives and senior management, are responsible 

for dealing with the risks affecting the bancAbC subgroup in a structured manner:

 — Credit Committee (“CreDCo”) – responsible for credit appraisal;

 — Asset and liability Committee (“AlCo”) – responsible for interest rate, market, liquidity, coun-

terparty, currency and capital adequacy risk; and

 — operational risk Committee (“orCo”) – responsible for technology, compliance, legal, human 

resources, reputational, operational and regulatory risk

 

the board of directors reviews a risk report by each subsidiary or business unit as well as a detailed 

risk report provided by bancAbC risk management. the risk report presents a balanced assess-

ment of significant risks and the effectiveness of risk management procedures, and management 

actions in mitigating those risks. 

Risk qUantification anD mEasUREmEnt

both ADC and bancAbC utilize a stress-testing framework for assessing the impact of various 

shocks on earnings and capital. the stress testing tool covers sensitivity analysis with respect to 

credit, liquidity and foreign currency risks at the bancAbC subgroup and foreign exchange and 

asset value stress testing on a monthly basis at the ADC group level. the results of the stress 

tests are particularly important for assessing the likely impact of various shocks. Contingent mea-

sures can then be designed and put in place in preparation of a case where the stress scenarios 

crystalize. 

bancAbC risk management
 

ADC’s majority control and consolidation of bancAbC exposes ADC group to bancAbC’s opera-

tional risks to a substantial degree. the board of directors of bancAbC recognizes that effective 

risk management is fundamental to the sustainability of its business and has created a strong risk 

management culture within bancAbC subgroup. internal audit is additionally responsible for the 

independent review of risk management and the control environment. nevertheless, in the course 

of conducting business, bancAbC subgroup is exposed to various risks inherent in providing finan-

cial services. 

bancAbC’s risk management governance framework is outlined in the diagram below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Ultimately responsible for risk management

SPECIALISED COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Responsible for enterprise-wide risk management

GROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Responsible for overseeing day-to-day risk

management across the Group

ALCO
—Interest rate
—Liquidity
—Market
—Currency
—Capital 
    adequacy

Loans Review 
Committee

Audit and Risk
Management Committee

Operational Risk
—Technology
—Operational
—Compliance
—Legal
—Regulatory 
—Reputational

Credit
—Credit

Group Head
—Internal Audit

Group ALCO Group Credit
Committee Group ORCO
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foREign ExchangE Risk: ADC calculates its foreign exchange risk monthly based on fluctuations 

over a 12-month period to monitor possible losses on its exposure to foreign currency, based on 

its portfolio of investments which includes the following currencies: united states Dollars (usD), 

botswana pula (bwp), kenyan shilling (kes), rwandan franc (rwf) south African rand (ZAr) 

and nigerian naira (ngn). ADC’s risk exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations is calculated and 

classified as follows:

1. low risk: period fluctuation of between 0-5%

2. medium risk: period fluctuation of between 5-10%

3. high risk: period fluctuation > 10%

liqUiDity Risk: ADC’s risk position is impacted by its ability to meet its financial obligations. 

further to the annual budgeting and forecasting process, single entity directors provide weekly 

12-week rolling cash forecasting to the Cfo, which is then monitored on a consolidated basis and 

reported to the rest of the management board. ADC’s liquidity risk is assessed as per the ability of 

ADC to meet both its short- and mid-term liabilities. 

ADC’s overall risk is assessed internally by staff and management and reviewed by the supervi-

sory board within the audit and risk committee, including the action plans to mitigate particularly 

the risks deemed high or extreme. the nominations and remunerations committee reviews risks 

relating to personnel.

bancAbC risk quantification and measurement
 

bancAbC’s monthly risk report amalgamates a risk report from each subsidiary operation. the sub-

group uses a combination of a risk matrix (risks are ranked from minor to extreme and is similar to 

ADC’s risk matrix above) and stress tests to calculate the value-at-risk (var) for each type of risk. 

var is a technique to measure and quantify the level of financial risk within the bank‘s portfolio 

over a specific timeframe. the calculated var is used in conjunction with the probability of the 

amount of that loss as defined in the risk matrix to control the level of risk that the bank is willing 

to undertake. 

bancAbC subgroup is in the process of implementing a methodology to calculate economic capital 

(eC) for each risk type during the 2014 financial year. Currently, ADC uses bancAbC subgroup’s 

results from their stress tests to calculate var for each of the following risk types: 

1. Credit risk – for each subsidiary, perform a stress test to determine 

the value-at-risk (var) for all of the following:

 — Correction for under-provisioning

 — special mention migration (50%)

 — Class migration (50-25-15)

 — top exposure migration to npl

the sum of the above calculations is used to compute the total var for credit risk at bancAbC 

subgroup.

ADC’s risk quantification and measurement
 

ADC’s monthly risk report utilizes a risk matrix, which categorizes each risk according to its poten-

tial impact and likelihood of occurrence, in order to classify the risks between low and extreme. 

each risk is calculated and classified according to the matrix below by ADC’s risk manager who 

oversees the development of all portfolio companies. 

the method of calculating the likelihood and impact of each risk is outlined as follows:

opERational Risk: ADC’s private equity investments provide monthly company reports (mCrs) 

including monthly financials and risk assessments to ADC. ADC’s risk manager assesses the per-

formance of each investment and provides the ADC management board with an overview of the 

key risks associated with each investment based on the above classification.

maRkEt Risk: mCrs and subsidiary risk reports include up-to-date assessments of country spe-

cific risk factors as assessed by staff on-the-ground in the individual entities. ADC’s head office 

monitors the macroeconomic and political developments of each portfolio company on a regular 

basis and weekly developments within active ADC banking markets are amalgamated by the head 

office in germany and distributed to staff. ADC’s risk manager does a desk review of all available 

information and classifies country risk based on a summary revision of all information provided. 

going concern 
at risk

critical

sensible

low

immaterial

very 
unlikely
<5%

unlikely

5-25%

medium

25-50%

high

50-80%

very
high
80-100%

im
p

ac
t

extreme risk; risk responses urgently needed

high risk; risk responses needed

medium risk; risk responses to check and verify

low risk; no risk responses required
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tively influence the decisions on the basis of the economic decisions of the users of the financial 

statements. to counter this risk, ADC applies a four-eye principle for the preparation of financial 

statements and accounting. in addition, professional, licensed service providers and professio-

nally certified staff members in mauritius and germany, which are subject to strict controls, are 

responsible for the Company’s accounting during the consolidation process of the mauritian and 

german holding entities. 

ADC’s internal control system has been established for a pan-African banking group and concen-

trates on the following main aspects:

1. the application of a single set of group accounting policies. further-

more, all consolidated ADC group companies report in a standardized 

structure to ensure effective consolidation on a monthly basis. 

2. the organization and control of finance and accounting: further to 

the dedicated accounting teams in each of the bancAbC subgroup’s 

subsidiaries, ADC utilizes licensed service providers and certified 

professionals for execution of its bookkeeping activities and support 

on preparation of statutory accounts and tax filings in mauritius and 

germany. these resources work under the direct supervision of ADC 

finance managers and the Cfo who ensure compliance with group 

rules, procedures and policies. 

3. principles of separation of functions between departments: the 

control system defines which tasks are fulfilled by which resources 

within the ADC group.    

4. Assignment of tasks in the preparation of financial statements: the 

control system defines who is responsible to report which input, in 

which form, and to which deadline. 

5. Access rules in the computer system: four eyes principles and other 

access rules such as password composition and administrator func-

tions are defined. 

6. ADC’s Audit and risk Committee supports ADC’s supervisory board 

in overseeing accounting and financial reporting and compliance with 

legal regulations and risk management and ensures that appropriate 

internal control structures are in place. the Audit and risk Committee 

further oversees the implementation of board decisions and the work 

of the auditors. 

7. functions related to accounting, which are carried out by internal 

Audit: the internal Audit function is currently operational on the 

bancAbC subgroup level. internal Audit plays a key role in maintaining 

and improving the internal control environment within the bancAbC 

subgroup. bancAbC’s head of internal Audit reports directly to the 

2. market risk – ADC uses the following methodology to calculate the 

var for bancAbC market risk: 

 — foreign exchange: for each subsidiary, perform a stress test to 

determine the value-at-risk (var) for a foreign exchange depre-

ciation of 20% and then compute the total var for the bancAbC 

subgroup. Currencies included in bancAbC’s analysis include: 

euro, usD, botswana pula, south African rand, tanzanian shilling, 

Zambian kwacha, mozambique new metical, Japanese yen and a 

small percentage of other currencies.

 — market movement: for each subsidiary, perform a stress test to 

determine the var for an increase in irr by 1% and 5% and then 

compute the total var for bancAbC subgroup

3. liquidity risk – for each subsidiary, perform a stress test to determi-

ne the var for the stressed liquidity position and then compute the 

total var for bancAbC subgroup 

Risk pREvEntion

ADC actively monitors group-wide risk via the risk management framework and proactively mana-

ges each identified risk, reporting on progress at least each month to the management board and 

quarterly to the supervisory board.

bancAbC completed the new enterprise risk management (erm) framework, with a target rollout 

before the end of 2014. the bancAbC subgroup also developed an economic Capital framework 

which started in mid-2013 with further implementation planned throughout 2014. the internal Ca-

pital Adequacy Assessment process (iCAAp) will cover economic Capital (eC) for Credit and trans-

lation risk, operational risk, market risk (trading), interest rate risk (banking book), business 

risk and other risk types. the framework will cover aspects of risk-based capital measurement 

and allocation. the major objective of moving towards eC is that value creation can be embedded 

in the pricing of transactions taking into account the level of risk the subgroup is exposed to as 

measured by bancAbC internal risk models.

intERnal contRol anD Risk managEmEnt systEm foR thE consoliDatED financial REpoRting pRocEss

ADC is responsible for establishing, applying and maintaining an adequate internal control system 

for its accounting process and that of its consolidated subsidiaries. it is intended to provide reaso-

nable assurances that the composition of the consolidated financial statements are in accordance 

with international financial reporting standards (ifrs) as adopted in the eu and that the external 

financial reporting is reliable. 

the main risk in the financial reporting process is that ADC’s group and portfolio companies’ 

financial statements may be subject to intentional or unintentional errors that do not provide a 

true and fair view of their assets, liabilities and overall financial position or that the publication of 

the results may be delayed, which would subsequently impact the asset, financial and earnings 

position of the Company. Deviations are considered significant if they could, individually or collec-
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the subgroup’s manage-

ment, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the basel Committee and the 

relevant Central bank Authorities. the required information is filed with authorities on a monthly 

basis. the subgroup’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor 

and market confidence and to sustain future developments of the business. 

the bancAbC board of directors reviews the subgroup’s policies in respect to capital management 

and allocation regularly. there have been no material changes to the subgroup’s management of 

capital during the year. 

At 31 December 2013 all regulated banking operations complied with all externally imposed capi-

tal requirements. the minimum ratio of regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets for all bancAbC 

subsidiary countries are as follows: botswana (15%), mozambique (8%), Zambia (10%), tanzania 

(12%), Zimbabwe (12%).

in 2013, risk-weighted assets rose by 15% from bwp 11.3 billion in December 2012 to bwp 13.0 

billion, largely by an increase in loans and advances (bwp 1.5 billion, 64% of the increase). the 

unimpaired capital, increased from bwp 1.2 billion in December 2012 to bwp 1.5 billion in Decem-

ber 2013 (25% increase) due to increases in share capital and premium and capital reserves and 

retained earnings.

the subgroup’s risk-weighted assets were concentrated in the following subsidiaries: botswana 

(29%), mozambique (12%), tanzania (8%), Zambia (11%), Zimbabwe (34%) and AbCh and other 

(7%).

Accordingly, the subgroup’s capital regulatory capital was calculated as at 31 December 2013 on 

the basis of the financial statements of the banking subsidiaries and amounted to bwp 1,450 

million vs. bwp 1,156 million at year end 2012. bancAbC improved its capital adequacy ratio as a 

subgroup from 10% at year-end 2012 to 11% in fy 2013, meeting current basel standards.  ADC 

monitors the regulatory capital and capital adequacy calculations of bancAbC subgroup in bwp 

currency, as this is the reporting currency of the subgroup, and translations to euro may lead to 

incorrect conclusions regarding the development of the figures for regulatory purposes.

in Bwpk 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Tier 1 capital 1,449,556 1,137,044

Tier 2 capital  - 19,040

Total Capital 1,449,556 1,156,084

Total Risk Weighted Assets 13,016,498 11,299,752

Capital Adequacy ratio 11% 10%

bancAbC risk and Audit Committee of the board. the primary func-

tion of internal audit is to give objective assurance to the bancAbC 

board that adequate management processes are in place to identify 

and monitor risks, and that effective internal controls are in place 

to manage those risks. the internal Audit independently audits and 

evaluates the effectiveness of the bancAbC subgroup’s risk manage-

ment, internal controls and governance processes. internal audit ope-

rates under terms of reference approved by the bancAbC risk and 

Audit Committee. the terms of reference define the role and objec-

tives, authority and responsibility of the audit function. the reporting 

structures ensure that the bancAbC internal Auditor has unrestricted 

access to the Chairman of the risk and Audit Committee of bancAbC 

and the subgroup Ceo of bancAbC. At the outset of each financial 

year, bancAbC internal Audit carries out a risk assessment for all 

business units and subsidiaries. A comprehensive audit plan for the 

year that identifies specific areas of focus is then derived from this as-

sessment. the audit plan is reviewed regularly and any changes must 

be approved by the bancAbC risk and Audit Committee. the areas of 

focus are confirmed with executive management before being sub-

mitted to the bancAbC risk and Audit Committee for approval. 

risK capiTaL ManaGEMEnT 

managEmEnt of REgUlatoRy capital aDEqUacy

Capital adequacy ratios are a measure of the amount of a bank’s core capital expressed as a per-

centage of its risk-weighted assets. the percent threshold varies from country to country in sub-

saharan Africa, but a common requirement for regulators conforming to basel Accords is 10%. 

for ADC group, regulatory capital requirements are currently those applied to the subsidiaries 

of bancAbC subgroup as ADC’s only fully consolidated banking investment, and are defined by 

the regulatory minimum ratios in each of bancAbC’s licensed banking countries. bancAbC is 

responsible for risk and capital management and for complying with capital adequacy across the 

subgroup. internal targets of regulatory capital ratios are set at least 2% above the minimum re-

gulatory requirements as buffers in all subsidiaries. 

bancAbC’s objectives when managing its capital are:

 — to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the 

banking markets where the entities within the subgroup operate; 

 — to safeguard the subgroup‘s ability to continue as a going concern so 

that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits 

for other stakeholders; and

 — to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its 

business.
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ment policies. there is also a board Credit Committee on bancAbC level that approves any loans 

above the limit to be approved by the bancAbC executive Committee.

BancaBc Risk limit contRol anD mitigation policiEs

bancAbC manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk in respect of individual coun-

terparties and groups, and to industries and countries. the subgroup structures the levels of credit 

risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or 

groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. such risks are monitored on a 

revolving basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. 

limits on the level of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved by the 

bancAbC board of directors, and reviewed regularly. exposure to credit risk is also managed 

through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and 

capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate. some other 

specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

1. Collateral

bancAbC employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. the most traditional 

of these is the taking of security for funds advanced, which is common practice. the bancAbC 

subgroup implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral for credit risk 

mitigation. the principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

 — cash collateral;

 — charges over assets financed;

 — mortgages over residential and commercial properties;

 — charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and ac-

counts receivable;

 — charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equi-

ties.

loans and advances to corporates are generally secured. in addition, in order to minimize credit 

loss, the subgroup will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment 

indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances. Collateral held as security 

for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the nature of the instrument. 

Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured, with the exception of 

asset-backed securities and similar instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial ins-

truments.

2. master netting arrangements

bancAbC further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into master netting arrange-

ments with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions. master 

netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as 

transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. however, the credit risk associated with favora-

ble contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if a default occurs, all 

amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis. bancAbC’s overall expo-

sure to credit risk on derivative instruments subject to master netting arrangements can change 

substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each transaction subject to the arrangement.

Risk position

the capital adequacy ratios in all bancAbC operational countries are above minimum levels and 

the overall risk position was rated low as at 31 December 2013.  

crEDiT risK 

DEfinition

Credit risk is the risk that a borrower will default on any type of debt by failing to make payments. 

the loss may be complete or partial. Country risk is an element of credit risk relating to the risk 

of default by a borrower abroad resulting from interruptions to the international payment transfer 

system in the borrower’s country of residence (transfer risk). Country risk also refers to the risk 

that governments are unable or only partially able to meet their contractual obligations.

bancAbC takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a 

financial loss for the subgroup by failing to discharge an obligation. significant changes in the 

economy, or in the health of a particular segment that represents a concentration in bancAbC’s 

portfolio could result in losses that are different from those provided for at the balance sheet date. 

Country (or sovereign) risk is part of overall credit risk and is managed as part of the credit risk. 

Credit exposures arise principally in loans and advances, debt securities and other bills. there is 

also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan commitments. Credit risk 

is the single largest risk for the bancAbC subgroup’s business.

BancaBc sUBgRoUp Risk stRatEgy

independent credit risk committees in each of bancAbC’s operating countries are responsible for 

managing, measuring and mitigating credit risk. the bancAbC board has defined and documented 

a credit policy for bancAbC subgroup, which forms the basis of credit decisions. this policy inclu-

des a framework of limits and delegation of credit approval authority, which are strictly adhered to. 

no one individual has the power to authorize credit exposures. each subsidiary has a credit com-

mittee, which operates within the defined limits set by the bancAbC board. these committees 

are responsible for the management of credit risk within their country including credit decisions, 

processes, legal and documentation risk and compliance with impairment policies. 

BancaBc Risk REpoRting

Credit risk management is overseen by the CreDCo, a management committee that reports to 

the board Credit Committee. there is a high level of executive management involved in the credit 

decision-making team, which includes: bancAbC’s Chief executive officer, Chief operating of-

ficer, Chief financial officer, Chief risk officer, Chief Credit officer and the managing director of 

bancAbC Zimbabwe. 

the bancAbC executive Committee reports to the bancAbC board and is responsible for approval 

of credit decisions that are above country limits, recommendations on exposure limits and impair-
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subgroup regularly validates the performance of the rating and their predictive power with regard 

to default events. 

BancABC’s internal rating scale

catEgoRy DEscRiption pRovisioning 

Performing The credit appears satisfactory 1%

Special men-
tion

The credit appears satisfactory but exhibits potential or inherence weaknesses 
which, if not attended to, may weaken the asset or prospects of collection in 
full e.g. full documentation or 30 days but less than 90 days in arrears

3%

Sub-standard
The credit has defined weaknesses that may jeopardize liquidation of the 
debit i.e. the paying capacity of the borrower is in doubtful or inadequate, or 
more than 90 days but less than 180 days in arrears

20%

Doubtful
Credit facilities with above weaknesses and has deteriorated further to the 
extent that even with the existing security, full recovery will not be possible, 
or 180 days but less than 12 months in arrears

50%

Loss
Facilities considered impossible to collect with little or no realizable security, 
or more than 12 months in arrears

100%

BancaBc impaiRmEnt policiEs

the impairments at the end of fy 2013 are derived from each of the five internal rating grades, 

adjusted for the provisions required by ifrs under iAs 39. the internal rating tool assists manage-

ment to determine whether objective evidence of impairment exists under iAs 39, based on the 

following criteria set out by the bancAbC subgroup:

 — delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

 — cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower;

 — breach of loan covenants or conditions;

 — initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

 — deterioration of the borrower‘s competitive position;

 — deterioration in the value of collateral; and

 — downgrading below „performing“ level.

bancAbC’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets at least once a month, or more 

regularly when individual circumstances require. impairment allowances on individually assessed 

accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance-sheet date on a case-

by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts. the assessment normally 

encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and the anticipated 

receipts for that individual account. Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided 

for: (i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality thresholds; and (ii) 

losses that have been incurred but have not yet been identified, by using the available historical 

experience, experienced judgment and statistical techniques.

3. Credit-related commitments

the primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as 

required. guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documen-

tary and commercial letters of credit - which are written undertakings by the subgroup on behalf 

of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the subgroup up to a stipulated amount 

under specific terms and conditions - are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to 

which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct loan. 

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in 

the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. with respect to credit risk on commitments to 

extend credit, bancAbC is potentially exposed to a loss in an amount equal to the total unused 

commitments. however, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as 

most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit 

standards. bancAbC monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term 

commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

4. Derivatives

the bancAbC subgroup maintains strict control limits on net open derivative positions (that is, the 

difference between purchase and sale contracts) by both amount and term. the amount subject 

to credit risk is limited to expected future net cash inflows of instruments, which in relation to 

derivatives are only a fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express the volume of 

instruments outstanding. this credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall lending limits 

with customers, together with potential exposures from market movements. Collateral or other 

security is not always obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the 

subgroup requires margin deposits from counterparties.

BancaBc Risk managEmEnt

in measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparty level, 

the subgroup considers three components: the probability of default by the client or counterparty 

on its contractual obligations; the current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future deve-

lopment; and the likely recovery on the defaulted obligations.

these credit risk measurements, which reflect expected loss, are embedded in the bancAbC 

subgroup’s daily operational management. the operational measurements are contrasted with 

impairment allowances required under iAs 39, which are based on losses that have been incurred 

at the balance sheet date. 

the bancAbC subgroup assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using in-

ternal rating tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties. they have been developed 

internally and combine statistical analysis for certain categories, as well as credit officer judgment. 

Clients of bancAbC are segmented into five rating classes. the subgroup’s rating scale, which is 

shown below, reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class. this means 

that, in principle, exposures migrate between classes as the assessment of their probability of 

default changes. the rating tools are kept under review and upgraded as necessary. the bancAbC 
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Credit risk at bancAbC is high and most subsidiary countries’ non-performing loan ratio is abo-

ve the 3% subgroup’s target. the subgroup’s credit risk was rated as high as at 31 December 

2013 with tanzania’s risk rated as extreme and Zimbabwe’s as high; botswana, mozambique and 

Zambia’s credit risk was rated as moderate.

oppoRtUnitiEs

bancAbC’s exposure to credit risk could be reduced if fewer loans are affected by default as is 

assumed in the risk quantification process. furthermore, there are opportunities to reduce the risk 

position if there are fewer migrations to the less positive rating categories than is currently calcula-

ted in bancAbC’s model or if presently rated npls become performing or if the security is higher 

than assumed as part of the risk quantification process. the potential impact of this opportunity is 

low-to-moderate with positive effects ensuing if achieved. 

MarKET risK

DEfinition

the ADC group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value of cash 

flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. market risks 

arise from open positions in interest rates, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed 

to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or 

prices such as interest rate, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. 

Risk stRatEgy

market and foreign currency exposures related to dealing positions at bancAbC are housed and 

managed in the treasury division within a framework of pre-approved dealer, currency and coun-

terparty limits. All bancAbC trading positions are marked to market as required by iAs 39.

Risk REpoRting

ADC monitors market risks, inclusive of foreign exchange risk and market movements on a month-

ly basis. these reports are prepared by senior staff and presented to ADC executive management 

and supervisory board via the Audit and risk Committee.

bancAbC subgroup’s risk management unit is responsible for monitoring of limits and pricing, 

thereby ensuring that any errors or unauthorized transactions are promptly identified. the currency 

exposure that arises as a result of bancAbC’s continuing expansion and cross border investment 

activities is managed through the bancAbC executive Committee and the bancAbC’s Asset and 

liability Committee. 

note 9.2.1 shows the percentage of the bancAbC subgroup‘s on-and-off balance sheet items 

relating to loans and advances and the associated impairment for each of the group‘s internal 

rating categories.

cREDit qUality

note 9.2.1 reflects broadly, stable credit quality across the majority of bancAbC’s operations. 

the total impairment of loans and advances in fy 2013 is eur 50.6 million (fy 2012:  eur 36.7 

million). 

As at 31 December 2013, the overall size of bancAbC’s total gross loan portfolio increased to eur 

925.7 million (fy 2012: eur 923.3 million) with three countries decreasing slightly. net loans and 

advances increased 15% from December 2012 in local currency, but were stable in euro terms 

because of exchange rate differences, while the composition of the book continues to change 

with retail lending accounting for 51% of the total loan book.

maximUm ExposURE to cREDit Risk BEfoRE collatERal hElD oR othER cREDit EnhancEmEnts

A table in note 9.2.1 presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of balance sheet and off-

balance sheet financial instruments, before taking into account any collateral held or other credit 

enhancements unless such credit enhancements meet offsetting requirements. 

Approximately 72% (2012: 75%) of the total maximum exposure is derived from loans and advan-

ces in fy 2013, while 8% (2012:  8%) represents financial assets held for trading.

management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of 

credit risk to the subgroup resulting from both its loan and advances portfolio and financial assets 

held for trading based on the following:

 — 90% (2012: 91%) of the gross loans and advances portfolio is catego-

rized in the top two grades of the internal rating system

 — 77% (2012: 75%) of the gross loans and advances portfolio is consi-

dered to be “neither past due nor impaired”

 — 10% (2012: 9%) of gross loans and advances are “individually im-

paired”

 — the bancAbC subgroup continues to improve its credit selection and 

monitoring processes; and

 — loans and advances to corporates are generally backed by collateral

Risk position

the amount of capital required to cover credit risk is determined by a variety of factors including 

the size of single borrower exposures, individual ratings and the industry sector of each exposure. 

As at 31 December 2013 the risk capital requirement at bancAbC amounted to eur 125.9 million 

vs. eur 104.7 million in 2012.
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ADC group holds, directly or through its associates, financial assets with a fair value of eur 124.5 

million (2012: eur 133.7 million). the ADC group is therefore exposed to gains or losses related to 

the variability in the market prices of the equities held. if the fair value were to increase (decrease) 

by 10% as of the reporting date, financial assets would increase (decrease) by eur 12.5 million 

(2012: eur 13.4 million).

bancAbC subgroup is exposed to gains or losses related to the variability in the market prices of 

all equities held. An irr stress test at bancAbC yields a positive value at risk of usD 6.9 million 

(eur 5.0 million) vs. eur 1.1 million in 2012 or usD 34.3 million (eur 24.9 million) vs. 5.4 million 

in 2012 based on a scenario of 1% and 5% irr variation respectively.

ADC’s foreign currency risk is rated as high with a critical potential impact and a medium likelihood 

of occurrence (25%-50%).  the risk capital requirement amounted to eur 21.4 million at year end.

bancAbC’s interest rate risk was rated high in botswana, mozambique and Zambia with moderate 

rating in tanzania and Zimbabwe at the end of December 2013. foreign currency risk was rated 

low and minor in tanzania and botswana respectively with a moderate rating in mozambique, 

Zambia and Zimbabwe. the overall subgroup rating for foreign currency risk exposure was rated 

moderate at the end of December 2013.  the risk capital requirement amounted to eur 9.9 million 

at year end.

oppoRtUnitiEs

Any possible losses due to unfavorable market developments may also result in economic gains 

should there be more positive market developments than assumed in the above calculations or if 

the sale of an asset is above the fair value calculation. the potential impact of this opportunity are 

moderate with positive results ensuing if achieved. 

LiQuiDiTy risK

DEfinition

liquidity risk is the risk that the ADC or bancAbC subgroup is unable to meet its obligations 

when they fall due as a result of customer deposits being withdrawn, cash requirements from 

contractual commitments, or other cash outflows, such as debt maturities or margin calls for 

derivatives. such outflows would deplete available cash resources for client lending, trading ac-

tivities and investments. in extreme circumstances, lack of liquidity could result in reductions in 

the consolidated statement of financial position and sales of assets, or potentially an inability to 

fulfill lending commitments. the risk that the subgroup will be unable to do so is inherent in all 

banking operations and can be affected by a range of institution-specific and market-wide events 

including, but not limited to, credit events, merger and acquisition activity, systemic shocks and 

natural disasters.

Risk position

1. foreign exchange risk

ADC calculates its foreign exchange risk monthly to monitor possible losses on its exposure to 

foreign currency, based on its portfolio of investments and includes the following currencies: 

usD, botswana pula (p), kenyan shilling (kes), rwandan franc (rwf) south African rand (ZAr) 

and nigerian naira (ngn). ADC’s var for foreign exchange risk equals eur 8.9 million. further 

information relating to foreign exchange risk exposure can be found in note 9.2.2 to the financial 

statements.

bancAbC subgroup takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign cur-

rency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. bancAbC’s risk unit sets limits on 

the level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for both overnight and intraday positions, which 

are monitored daily. 

bancAbC carries out a scenario analysis to measure the foreign exchange risk on its foreign cur-

rency exposure. these scenarios demonstrate the effect of different potential changes. for foreign 

exchange, the effects of a 10% and 20% currency depreciation is simulated to calculate the value 

at risk position. the results show that a 20% currency deprecation would have a potential gain of 

usD 3.0 million (eur 2.2 million) vs. eur 1.2 million in 2012. 

2. interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. fair value interest rate risk is the risk that 

the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

bancAbC takes on exposure to the effects or fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest 

rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. interest margins may increase as a result of such 

changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. the bancAbC 

Asset and liability Committee (AlCo) is responsible for managing interest rate and liquidity risk 

in the bancAbC subgroup. Asset and liability management committees have been established in 

each subsidiary and meet on a monthly basis. they operate within the prudential guidelines and 

policies established by the subgroup’s AlCo. 

in order to reduce interest rate risk, the majority of bancAbC subgroup’s lending is on a variable 

interest rate with a term of less than one year. this approach has been adopted as a result of the 

scarcity of term deposits in the region, which limits the subgroup’s ability to build a substantial, 

stable pool of fixed rate funding. see note 9.2.2, which summarizes bancAbC’s exposure to inte-

rest rate risk at year-end.

3. market movements

stress tests are carried out to estimate potential losses in special market conditions and describe 

the variation of the ADC group’s current positions based on possible fluctuations in market con-

ditions. 
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Risk stRatEgy

the ADC group manages liquidity risks with a strict annual budgeting process. Adjustments to 

the budgets are monitored by rolling 12-week cash forecasts. weekly cash forecasting is reported 

from single entity Directors to the Cfo and monitored on a consolidated basis and reported to 

the Ceo.

bancAbC subgroup holds liquidity reserves in highly tradable instruments or money market place-

ments, which are immediately available if required. liquidity is assessed by currency as well as by 

time bracket. bancAbC liquidity management is dependent upon accurate cash flow projections 

and the monitoring of its future funding requirements. bancAbC’s liquidity management process 

is monitored by the subgroup’s treasury and includes:

 — Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to 

ensure that requirements can be met. this includes replenishment 

of funds as they mature or as they are borrowed by customers. the 

subgroup maintains an active presence in global money markets to 

enable this to happen

 — maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be 

liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash 

flow

 — monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulato-

ry requirements

 — managing concentration and profile of debt maturities

Risk REpoRting

bancAbC’s monitoring and reporting takes the form of cash flow measurement and projections 

for the next day, week and month respectively as these are key periods for liquidity management. 

the starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial 

liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

bancAbC’s treasury department also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and 

type of undrawn lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities and the impact of contin-

gent liabilities such as standby letter of credit and guarantees.

Risk managEmEnt

bancAbC’s liquidity is managed by the AlCo, which approaches liquidity cautiously and conser-

vatively by managing the liquidity profile with a preference for long-term, fixed-rate funding. A 

liquidity risk committee meets weekly to assess and manage the overall liquidity of the bancAbC 

subgroup. AlCo reviews a stress mismatch report monthly, which simulates scenarios based on 

the current asset and liability structure of the bancAbC subgroup for the reporting month. the 

report also considers the available sources of stress funding to address any potential strain on 

the cash flows of the bancAbC subgroup. bancAbC additionally has a documented contingency 

funding plan (Cfp) that specifies measures that must be monitored to identify indications of li-

quidity stress early. the Cfp operates in conjunction with the finance and treasury management 

policy and the assets and liabilities management (Alm) policy to ensure a coordinated approach 

to liquidity management. 

As part of its monthly meetings, AlCo considers bancAbC sensitivity to interest rate movements 

and reviews the results of management’s analysis of the impact of interest rate movements.

BancaBc Risk position

results from bancAbC’s risk scenario and in the stress scenarios as at 31 December 2013 amoun-

ted to a stressed liquidity position of usD 307.3 million (eur 223.2 million) vs. eur 134.9 million 

in 2012. the minimum liquidity surplus, or the required, contingency capital, of bancAbC in the risk 

scenario measured as at 31 December 2013 amounted to usD 144.8 million (eur 105.2 million) 

vs. eur 72.8 million in 2012.

furthermore, with regards to compliance with regulatory liquidity ratio minimums, bancAbC sub-

group was in compliance in all countries as of 31 December 2013. 

the below table shows the key liquidity ratios1 by country at the end of each quarter in 2013 in rela-

tion to the regulatory minimums:

REgUlatoRy 
minimUm

actUal 
Ratio 

31 maRch 
2013

actUal 
Ratio 

30 JUnE 2013

actUal 
Ratio 

30 sEptEmBER 
2013  

actUal 
Ratio 

31 DEcEmBER 
2013

Botswana 10% 10.4% 12.9% 13.0% 12.0%

Mozambique 100% 101.5% 102.5% 112.3% 107.5%

Tanzania 20% 20.4% 20.6% 20.7% 20.9%

Zambia 6% 9.9% 11.2% 18.4% 28.1%

Zimbabwe 30% 44.4% 32.3% 31.8% 35.4%

bancAbC’s maturity analysis can be found in note 9.2.3 to the financial statements.

aDc Risk position

the financial condition of the ADC group may be adversely impacted by an inability to borrow funds 

or sell assets to meet its obligations. ADC has an interest payment of eur 2.4 million due on 01 June 

2014 and the payment of the principal of ADC’s bond with warrants attached (eur 40.0 million) is 

due 31 may 2015. if ADC is unable to pay back its obligations, inclusive of annual interest payments, 

or maintain a debt to equity ratio as defined in the indebtedness put option within the terms and 

conditions of the bond, ADC may be forced to sell assets at a discount to their fair value to repay 

bondholders.  the calculation of the indebtedness put option is subject to significant interpretation, 

1 liquidity ratio calculated defined as total demand liabilities / total liquid assets
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however by management estimation this results nevertheless only in a low liquidity risk for the com-

pany prior to the bond’s maturity in June 2015. 

At bancAbC subgroup level, liquidity risk was rated high in botswana and Zambia and moderate in 

mozambique, tanzania and Zimbabwe.  the risk capital requirement amounted to eur 223.2 million 

at year end.

management of ADC group assesses the possibility that the current liquidity risks result in a going 

concern risk as unlikely.  As mentioned in the financial report (Development of equity & liabilities), 

ADC would have several available responses in such a case. firstly, it can increase its equity from 

authorized capital, if required. management believes that existing key shareholders are supportive 

to the group and sees a good interest in the market from potential new shareholders to allocate 

funds to sub-saharan Africa. furthermore, there are several sales of associates planned during the 

year which will yield cash inflows for the group. finally, further sales of other core assets could be 

undertaken, if such measures were required.  As such, management has made an assessment of its 

ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that is has the resources to continue business 

for the foreseeable future.

oppoRtUnitiEs

A successful capital raising exercise (e.g. bond placement or capital increase) would reduce liquidity 

pressures in bancAbC’s operational countries and would significantly improve ADC’s ability to rede-

em its issued bond with warrants attached due in June 2015. Additional capital would provide ADC 

the opportunity to expand to new markets and reduce the risk that the company would be forced to 

sell assets at a discount to their fair value to satisfy redemption obligations on its warrant bond. the 

potential impact of this opportunity are moderate to high, with positive results ensuing if achieved.

OpEraTiOnaL risK

DEfinition

ADC defines operational risk as the risk of unexpected loss from human error, information tech-

nology failure, weakness in processes and / or management as well as external events. legal, 

regulatory and reputational risks are also included in this definition.

Risk REpoRting

ADC’s monthly risk report analyzes the top risks impacting the group, including the likelihood and 

potential severity of each risk. the report includes an analysis of each banking or private equity 

investment with an assessment of internal and external events that may affect each business line, 

inclusive of all known operational risks affecting the ADC group.

bancAbC has a network of systems and tools throughout the bank to facilitate the collection of 

data used to analyze and asses operational risk exposure which is amalgamated a by the Chief 

risk officer and disseminated to relevant parties on a monthly basis. 

Risk managEmEnt

operational risk is managed by ADC’s executive management team located in germany based, in 

part, by information provided by the risk manager located in mauritius.

bancAbC operational risk framework is designed to comply with operational risk measurement 

and assessment rules under basel ii. the management processes focus primarily on risk assess-

ment, loss data collection and tracking key risk indicators. the results of these processes are used 

to raise awareness of operational risk management and to enhance internal control environment, 

with the ultimate aim of reducing losses. legal and compliance risks are dealt with by orCo, with 

the Chief legal Counsel being a member of orCo. 

Risk position 

1. personnel risk

ADC and bancAbC’s operational management is dependent on a number of key individuals. the 

ADC group and the bancAbC subgroup’s core team has sectoral and geographical expertise and 

the networks and contacts to successfully grow the overall group. performance related compen-

sation packages at ADC minimize turnover and the nomination and remuneration subgroup of 

ADC’s supervisory board ensures continuity and leadership should a member of the management 

team leave the company for any reason. bancAbC’s executive management are cofounders of the 

subgroup and hold a significant shareholding in the banking group in addition to receiving perfor-

mance related compensation, which reduces the risk that there will be unnecessary turnover in 

executive management. 

2. legal risks

legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may disrupt or 

otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial condition of the ADC group.

ADC uses specialized external legal counsel in germany with corporate experience in sub-saharan 

Africa. the management team choses local external counsel based on a combination of factors 

including: lawyer expertise, experience and available of international referrals. 

ADC has Directors and officers (D&o) insurance, which is a liability insurance payable to the 

directors and officers of ADC, or to ADC itself as indemnification for losses or costs incurred in 

the event of legal action brought against ADC personnel in their capacity as directors and officers. 

ADC’s D&o insurance covers the following people: ADC management board, supervisory board 

and proxies, directors of ADC’s subsidiaries in mauritius as well as any representative acting on 

behalf of ADC on portfolio company’s board or sub-committee. the covered amount is eur 10 mil-

lion for D&o insurance with a sublimit of eur 5 million for errors & omissions (e&o) insurance.  

the Chief legal Counsel of the bancAbC subgroup is responsible for ensuring that legal risk is ma-

naged adequately at subgroup level. this is achieved through standard approved legal documen-

tation wherever possible. however, specialized external legal advisers are used when required for 
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non-standard transactions. the Chief legal Counsel of bancAbC ensures that only approved legal 

advisers provide legal opinions or draw up specialized agreements for bancAbC subgroup.

3. Compliance risk

Compliance risk is the risk of legal and regulatory sanctions, which may directly result in financial 

loss, or affect the reputation of the ADC group and bancAbC subgroup caused by non-compliance 

to applicable laws, regulations and best industry practices. there is a risk that the regulatory 

environment in any one of ADC’s banking or private equity investments could suddenly change 

in an unpredictable manner. Changes may result from new laws, court decisions, administrative 

decisions or regulations. it is possible that a government may violate international statutes or 

agreements, resulting in the loss of associated companies, financial difficulties or bankruptcy of 

the company. ADC or one of its portfolio companies may face difficulties to enforce contracts due 

to weaker judicial enforcement and rule of law. ADC may not comply with corporate governance 

in the capital markets environment or on regulatory requirements in banking industry. moreover, 

the operations and investments of ADC in the banking sector is vulnerable to national and interna-

tional changes in the capital requirements that are set by the central banks and / or by new inter-

national standards such as basel iii. ADC’s banking investments risk losing their license if capital 

requirements change suddenly and additional capital is not available. 

ADC’s completion of the mandatory offer in January 2014, as required by the botswana stock 

exchange (bse) for any shareholder owning more than 35% of a listed company in botswana, re-

duces regulatory risk for ADC, having officially closed the 2013 outstanding regulatory compliance 

issue with the bse.

the compliance function is an integral part of bancAbC subgroup’s risk management function. A 

decentralized compliance function has been implemented within business units and subsidiaries, 

and compliance officers have been appointed in each operating entity. Compliance risk is mana-

ged effectively through developing and implementing compliance processes, developing effective 

policies and procedures affecting the respective regulatory frameworks, and providing advice and 

training on the constantly changing regulatory environment. A key role of compliance officers in 

the bancAbC subgroup is to develop and maintain sound working relationships with its various 

regulators in the subgroup’s operating countries. 

over the last decade, Zimbabwe has experienced turmoil in its financial sector inclusive of hyperin-

flation, lapses in corporate governance and illegal activities by banking executives and inadequate 

supervision by the reserve bank of Zimbabwe. Zimbabwe has experienced unprecedented loss 

of capital due to hyperinflation, but banks in the country are subject to increasing capital adequacy 

requirements and to comply with basel iii requirements, which may lead to banks to devise ways 

to circumvent the current legislation. furthermore, the reserve bank of Zimbabwe announced on 

31 July 2012 that while it supported the government’s indigenization and empowerment policies, 

the bank had reservations on the sector-wide implementation of the policy. As such, all institutions 

within the financial sector in Zimbabwe have not adopted the indigenization Act and any change in 

such policy by the reserve bank would have significantly adverse effects on the banking sector. 

required regulatory capital for Zambia was raised to usD 100 million for foreign banks and usD 

20 million for local banks. Zambia was adequately capitalized as at 31 December 2013 in terms of 

the Central bank’s requirement of usD 100 million.

4. information technology

information technology risk is the risk that ADC’s or bancAbC’s information technology could lead 

to quantifiable losses should disaster recovery systems not be in place to minimize the informati-

on that could be lost should there be a system failure.

An external provider manages ADC’s information technology and communication (iCt) services, 

with oversight provided by ADC appointed staff. A disaster recovery system is in place via a cloud 

storage system with back-up capacity. 

bancAbC subgroup’s it service delivery has significantly improved over the year and disaster 

recovery sites are now functional in all countries. subgroup management is close to 100% prepa-

redness in all critical areas of operations to ensure continuity in case of a crippling crisis. there is, 

however, a need to ensure that testing is done at least twice yearly and recovery times are aligned 

with business requirements. 

5. reputational risk

reputational risk is the risk of a loss resulting from damages to a firm’s reputation, in lost revenue 

or destruction of shareholder value. reputational risk can arise from negative publicity and lead 

to a loss or revenue or litigation or a loss or clients, a share price decline or difficulty in recruiting 

investors or human resource talent.

6. fraud risk

the bancAbC subgroup is exposed to fraud risk, which can arise in banking operations when there 

is an intentional act to dishonestly for personal gain by falsifying or altering records or making an 

intentional omission or misrepresentation of a business activity. 

7. business continuity risk

business continuity risk is the risk that the ADC group of the bancAbC subgroup will incur losses 

because of the interruption of business activities from external forces such as deliberate acts of 

sabotage, terrorism, bomb threats, strikes, riots or natural weather calamities or unseen events 

such as fires, explosion, war or political unrest. 

8. emerging market risk

investments in emerging and developing markets are subject to greater risks than investments 

in developed countries. investments in such markets may carry the risk of less publicly available 

information, relatively more volatile markets, less developed security market regulation and less 

favorable tax provisions than investments in securities of issuers based in developed countries. 

9. political risk

A government’s political inexperience or the instability of the political system increases the risk of 

short-term, fundamental shifts in a nation’s economy and politics. insufficient governance struc-

tures in frontier markets bear considerable risk of unforeseeable changes in the political climate, 
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which could affect ADC’s group or portfolio companies and, in extreme cases, lead to partial 

loss or total expropriation of assets. where possible, ADC mitigates its exposure to political risk 

with political insurance policies underwritten by the multilateral investment guarantee Agency 

(migA), a subsidiary of the world bank. rheAl and bancAbC in botswana are insured against 

the following: exchange controls, foreign exchange transfer risk, war and civil disturbance and 

expropriation of assets (incl. creeping). the policy guarantees a 90% repayment of the invested 

capital inclusive of retained earnings. 

ADC’s investment in Zimbabwe exposes the Company to additional political risk. in the recent 

past, Zimbabwe has experienced extreme socio-economic difficulties and political instability. with 

the adoption of the multicurrency regime in Zimbabwe and effective dollarization of the economy 

in early 2009, the economy has gone through a period of stability and modest growth. it remains 

to be seen, post the election of 31 July 2013, whether stability will prevail and allow for continued 

economic growth. ADC will only be able to profit from its investments in Zimbabwe in the event 

that the Zimbabwean economy continues to improve and such improvement is sustained. As a 

result of the under-performance of the economy in Zimbabwe, ADC’s investments may not appre-

ciate and may decline in value or result in a total loss.

Risk position

ADC’s operational risk was rated as moderate at the end of December 2013. 

bancAbC’s operational risk was rated high with botswana, mozambique, tanzania and Zambia ha-

ving a high risk rating at the end of December 2013 and Zimbabwe’s risk was rated as moderate. 

the subgroup had a moderate rating for both compliance and reputational risk.

oppoRtUnitiEs

the ADC group and bancAbC subgroup strive to reduce their operational risk by actively docu-

menting, mitigating and acting on all known operational risks. operational risk was reduced after 

ADC completed the mandatory offer as required by the bse in January 2014, thereby reducing 

regulatory and compliance risk but other operational risks remain. both companies are improving 

their risk management systems to reduce reliance on key management members and improve 

institutional memory. the bancAbC subgroup is in the process of continuously refining the ope-

rational risk monitoring mechanism to ensure that operational losses are recorded, rated, moni-

tored and tracked through the use of the operational risk system aCCelerate. All countries with 

the exception of tanzania are now imputing incidents and losses in the system. tanzania is in the 

preliminary stages of rolling out the operational risk management system. the potential impact of 

these opportunities are moderate with positive results ensuing if achieved. 

suMMary Of risKs

the management of risk is at the forefront of the strategic planning and operational models at 

ADC and bancAbC. the following is a summary of the risk position of the ADC group as at 31 

December 2013:

1. risk Capital management – the overall risk rating is low with all ban-

king subsidiaries meeting their Capital Adequacy ratios

2. Credit – the risk rating is high with a risk capital requirement at  

bancAbC of eur 125.9 million

3. market – the overall risk rating is high with a risk capital requirement 

of eur 21.4 million at ADC and eur 9.9 million at bancAbC

4. liquidity – the overall risk rating is high with a risk capital requirement 

at bancAbC of eur 223.2 million

5. operational – the overall risk rating is moderate.

the overall risk rating for the ADC group is high at the end of December 2013, based on the rating 

of key risk factors at bancAbC subgroup as at year-end 2013. 

Risk intERDEpEnDEnciEs

political and market risks are interdependent and often unpredictable. while ADC and its group of 

portfolio companies make every effort to identify, assess, aggregate, respond and monitor identi-

fied risks, it is possible that one or more risks could rapidly escalate without prior warning. ADC’s 

on-the-ground presence and active management approach reduces the likelihood of unforeseen 

events, but two or more risks occurring spontaneously and without warning could have negative 

repercussions. An example of such a situation would be an unexpected personnel loss combined 

with a sudden change in market environment due to a global economic recession, which would 

affect the Company and its investments in the short and medium term. if the market environ-

ment suddenly changes, the group could also be affected by a changing interest rate or foreign 

exchange rates.
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MacrO-EcOnOMic fOrEcasT 

in January 2014, the international monetary fund (imf) updated its predictions for global and regi-

onal growth, noting that global economic activity had strengthened during the second half of 2013 

and predicting that growth will further improve in 2014-2015. the imf forecasts that global growth 

will be approximately 3.7% in 2014, rising to 3.9% in 2015, with sub-saharan Africa’s (excluding 

south Africa) growth reaching 6.5% in 2014 and 5.8% in 20151. inflation continues to decrease and 

is forecasted to decline from an average of 6.8% in 2013 to an average of 5.8% in 20142. 

ADC is active in three of the top 10 biggest economies in sub-saharan Africa (nigeria, kenya and 

tanzania), with two smaller economies (Zambia and mozambique) predicted to have some of the 

fastest gDp growth rates over the medium-term according to the imf. botswana’s more mature 

economy is forecasted to grow at an average rate of 4.1% in 2014, while Zimbabwe’s growth is 

subdued, at 3.6%, due to tight liquidity in the market.

2014 gDp, gDp gRowth anD inflation pRoJEctions foR aDc opERational coUntRiEs3

2014
gDp

(cURREnt pRicEs in  
UsD Bn)

2014
gDp gRowth  
pRoJEctions
(in pERcEnt)

2014
inflation  

pRoJEctions
(in pERcEnt)

BOTSWANA 16.0 4.1 5.8

KENYA 51.1 6.2 5.0

MOZAMBIQUE 16.0 8.5 5.6

NIGERIA 318.5 7.4 8.2

SOUTH AFRICA 371.2 2.9 5.5

TANZANIA 34.9 7.2 5.8

ZAMBIA 23.7 6.5 7.3

ZIMBABWE 11.3 3.6 3.3

sEcTOr spEcific

the commercial banking sector in ADC’s active markets is estimated to grow significantly over 

the next 5 years with total assets forecasted to grow at an average rate of 15% from 2014 – 2017, 

with an average growth of client loans and client deposits of 16% and 14% respectively4. the table 

1 world economic outlook update, “is the tide rising”, http://www.imf.org/external/pubs/ft/weo/2014/update/01/pdf/0114.

pdf, 21 January 2014.

2 imf, world economic outlook Database, october 2013.

3 ibid.

4 business monitor international (bmi) forecasts for Commercial banking industry.

outlook below provides a breakdown of the commercial banking projections in ADC active markets from 

2014 – 2017.

commERcial Bank annUal gRowth RatE pRoJEctions (%) 2014 - 20171

total assEts (%) cliEnt loans (%) cliEnt DEposits (%)

Botswana 13% 15% 12%

Mozambique 20% 20% 15%

Nigeria 20% 20% 22%

Tanzania 15% 20% 15%

Zambia 17% 20% 17%

Zimbabwe 5% 3% 4%

Average 15% 16% 14%

in 2011, the economist intelligence unit (eiu) predicted that the commercial banking industry in 

16 key African markets would boost their financial assets by between 178% - 248% by 2020. the 

growth projections vary by market, with above average growth projections for tanzania, mozam-

bique, nigeria and Zambia and more subdued growth in botswana because of its more mature 

banking industry2.

A 2013 report released by the european investment bank confirms this optimism, stating that 

while sub-saharan Africa’s financial and banking systems remain underdeveloped, the reform mo-

mentum and expected strong economic growth in many countries throughout the region, bode 

well for the development of the banking system3.

BusinEss prOjEcTiOns 

the forecasts presented in this section are estimates, which have been calculated on the basis of 

information available at present. if the assumptions to the underlying forecasts are inaccurate or if 

risk and opportunities occur beyond the scope of what has been assumed, the actual results will 

differ from what is currently expected.

the ADC group closed the 2013 year with a net profit of eur 12.3 million from continuing opera-

tions. the net profit was in-line with ADC’s year-end 2012 forecast that predicted a positive group 

net profit by the end of 2013 and above ADC’s forecast at the end of the third quarter of a eur 10 

million profit by the end of the year. the average cost-to-income ratio improved from 106.5% in 

1 ibid.

2 economist intelligence unit, banking in sub-saharan Africa to 2020: promising frontiers, 2011.

3 european investment bank, banking in sub-saharan Africa: Challenges and opportunities, January 2013.
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2012 to 72.3% in 2013, and roae improved to 9.6% from a negative figure in 2012, coming closer 

to ADC’s target to achieve an average cost-to-income ratio of 50-55% in its banking operations by 

2015 with a target roae of up to 25%, and roaA of 2.5%. During 2014, ADC expects to further 

improve both cost-to-income ratio, roae and roaA towards the 2015 year end targets. As the 

business continues to expand, employee growth is expected to continue in relation to growth 

requirements.

in the banking operations segments, net interest margin is expected to stay relatively stable 

compared with 2013 performance while cost-to-income ratios are targeted to improve towards 

the group’s 2015 overall targets.  Also, substantial improvements in loan loss ratio are expected, 

as the operations have taken significant provisions on underperforming credits in the 2013 year.  

in the private equity segment, performance relating to the irr and tvpi multiples is expected to 

remain stable in the year. supporting services is expected to further improve its cost-to-group 

income ratio as further operational efficiencies are achieved.

ADC has a positive overall outlook for the 2014 year after achieving substantial net profit growth 

from bancAbC subgroup in the 2013 financial year and with the prospective sale of three of ADC’s 

private equity portfolio investments (rswitch, brainworks, and iveri) in 2014. ADC believes that 

ubn’s 2013 financial performance is not representative of its potential and is confident that this 

asset will contribute to ADC’s net profit in 2014.

overall, the ADC group forecasts a substantially higher net profit in 2014, with the cost-to-income 

ratio improving moderately and roae and roaA improving significantly from those achieved in 

the 2013 period towards the 2015 targets. management would like to highlight that current fore-

casts could be significantly affected by the transaction with Atlas mara that was announced on 

31 march 2014.

frankfurt/ main, 31 march 2014

the management board

Dirk harbecke   sonja rossteuscher  karima ola
CEO     CFO    CIO
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ConsoliDAteD inCome stAtement 
foR thE yEaR EnDED 31 DEcEmBER 2013

aDc afRican DEvElopmEnt coRpoRation ag

in EURk notEs
01.01.2013-
31.12.2013

restated1 
01.01.2012-
31.12.2012

Continuing operations

Interest and similar income 5.1. 173,173 65,365

Interest and similar expense 5.2. -90,497 -37,753

Net interest income 82,676 27,612

Provision for credit losses 5.3. -24,918 -8,133

Net interest income after provision for credit 
losses 57,758 19,479

Net fee and commission income 5.4. 37,338 16,878

Net gains (losses) on financial instruments desi-
gnated at fair value through profit or loss

5.5. 3,249 -12,697

Net trading income 5.6. 16,197 2,570

Net income (loss) from equity method invest-
ments

5.7. 14,497 -856

Other non-interest income 5.8. 5,582 20,259

Total operating income 134,621 45,634

Operating expenses 5.9. -115,356 -57,245

Reorganization expenses 5.10. 0 -4,327

Profit/loss before tax from continuing opera-
tions 19,265 -15,939

Income tax expense 5.11. -6,918 -2,078

Result for the year 12,348 -18,017

Discontinued operations:

Profit after tax for the year from discontinued 
operations

6.19. 157 -863

Profit/loss for the year 12,505 -18,880

attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 6,109 -21,985

Non-controlling interests 6,396 3,105

Average number of shares (basic/diluted) 8,969,899 8,433,326

8,969,899 8,433,326

Earnings per share (basic/diluted) 7.

basic, for profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

0.68 -2.61

diluted, for the year attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the parent

0.68 -2.61

1     Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2011 consolidated financial statements and reflect adjustments made as  
       detailed in note 2.2.

note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures.

ConsoliDAteD stAtement of CompRehensive inCome
foR thE yEaR EnDED 31 DEcEmBER 2013
(aUDitED)

aDc afRican DEvElopmEnt coRpoRation ag

in EURk
01.01.2013-
31.12.2013

restated1

01.01.2012-
31.12.2012

Profit / (loss) for the period 12,505 -18,880

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  
 
Net (loss)/gain on available-for-sale financial assets -154 296

Exchange differences on translating foreign operatings -7,532 -9,383

Net gain / (loss) on hedge of net investment -1,355 0

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the period, net of tax -9,041 -9,087

Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 3,464 -27,967

   

Attributable to:   

Equity holders of the parent 990 -26,807

Non-controlling interests 2,474 -1,160

3,464 -27,967

 

1     Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2011 consolidated financial statements and reflect adjustments made as  
       detailed in note 2.2.

note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures.
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ConsoliDAteD stAtement of finAnCiAl position
as of 31 DEcEmBER 2013 

aDc afRican DEvElopmEnt coRpoRation ag

in EURk

assEts notEs 31 DEcEmBER 2013
restated1 

31 DEcEmBER 2012

Cash and short term funds 6.1.  200,897  183,380 

Other financial assets held for 
trading

6.2.  104,458  99,832 

Financial assets designated at fair 
value

6.3.  11,454  10,701 

Derivative financial instruments 6.14.  2,621  3,296 

Loans and advances 6.4.  874,985  886,572 

Investment securities 6.5.  5,635  5,319 

Other current assets 6.6.  22,429  21,277 

Current tax assets 6.6.  2,866  3,165 

Investment in associates 6.7.  72,334  74,883 

Property, plant and equipment 6.8.  62,750  64,905 

Other intangible assets and good-
will

6.9.  51,827  70,694 

Deferred tax assets 6.10.  9,340  8,650 

Non-current assets and disposal 
groups held-for-sale

6.19.  10,777  0 

Total assets 1,432,373 1,432,673

1     Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2011 consolidated financial statements and reflect adjustments  
       made as detailed in note 2.2.

note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures.

in EURk

EqUity anD liaBilitiEs notEs 31 DEcEmBER 2013
restated1 

31 DEcEmBER 2012

Deposits 6.11.  1,012,133  1,041,891 

Derivative financial instruments 6.14.  3,792  2,208 

Creditors and accruals 6.13.  53,964  36,243 

Current tax liabilities  1,137  2,018 

Deferred tax liabilty 6.10.  12,160  15,871 

Borrowed funds 6.12.  226,318  195,667 

Non-current liabilities and dis-
posal groups held-for-sale

6.19.  428  0 

Total liabilities  1,309,933  1,293,899 

Share Capital 6.15.  9,467  8,607 

Capital Reserve 6.15.  60,499  53,137 

Other reserves 6.15.  3,111  8,231 

Retained Earnings  3,825 (2,284)

Equity attributable to ordi-
nary shareholders  76,902  67,691 

Non-controlling interests 6.15.  45,537   71,084 

Total equity  122,440  138,775 

Total equity and liabilities  1,432,373  1,432,673
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ConsoliDAteD stAtement of ChAnges in eQuity
foR thE yEaR EnDED 31 DEcEmBER 2013

aDc afRican DEvElopmEnt coRpoRation ag

EqUity attRiBUtaBlE to EqUity holDERs of thE paREnt

in EURk
shaRE

capital
capital
REsERvE

REtainED
EaRnings

availaBlE-
foR-salE 
REsERvE

foREign cURREncy  
tRansaction  

REsERvE

othER  
capital  
REsERvE total

non-cont-
Rolling

intEREsts
total

EqUity

Note 6,15 Note 6,15 Note 6,15 Note 6,15 Note 6,15

At 1 January 2012 8,411 50,030 19,701 0 99 11,187 89,428 -1,103 88,325

Exchange differences 0 0 0 0 -4,978 0 -4,978 -4,405 -9,383

net gains on available-for-sale financial assets 0 0 0 156 0 0 156 140 296

Other comprehensive income (restated)* 0 0 0 156 -4,978 0 -4,822 -4,265 -9,087

Result for the period 0 0 -21,985 0 0 0 -21,985 3,105 -18,880

Total comprehensive income (restated)* 0 0 -21,985 156 -4,978 0 -26,807 -1,160 -27,967

Acquisition of a subsidiary 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 71,167 71,167

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 0 0 0 0 0 -2,181 -2,181 2,181 0

Transaction costs (net of tax) 0 -34 0 0 0 0 -34 0 -34

Capital increase 196 784 0 0 0 0 980 0 980

Capital contribution 0 495 0 0 0 0 495 0 495

Other equity movements 0 1,862 0 0 0 3,947 5,809 0 5,809

At 31 December 2012 (restated)* 8,607 53,137 -2,284 156 -4,879 12,953 67,690 71,085 138,775

At 1 January 2013 (restated)* 8,607 53,137 -2,284 156 -4,879 12,953 67,690 71,085 138,775

Exchange differences 0 0 0 0 -4,054 -273 -4,327 -3,205 -7,532

net loss on hedge of net investment 0 0 0 0 -638 0 -638 -717 -1,355

net losses on available-for-sale financial assets 0 0 0 -154 0 0 -154 0 -154

Total other comprehensive income 0 0 0 -154 -4,692 -273 -5,119 -3,922 -9,041

Result for the year 0 0 6,109 0 0 0 6,109 6,396 12,505

Total comprehensive income 0 0 6,109 -154 -4,692 -273 990 2,474 3,464

issue of share capital 860 7,352 0 0 0 0 8,212 0 8,212

dividends of subsidiaries 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -2,592 -2,592

equity-settled share-based payment (note 6,18) 0 10 0 0 0 0 10 0 10

mandatory offer liability (note 6,13 & note 6,15) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -25,430 -25,430

At 31 December 2013 9,467 60,499 3,825 2 -9,571 12,680 76,902 45,537 122,439

*Note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures,
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ConsoliDAteD stAtement of CAsh flows
foR thE yEaR EnDED 31 DEcEmBER 2013

aDc afRican DEvElopmEnt coRpoRation ag

in EURk notEs 2013
restated1

2012

Profit / loss for the period 12,505 -18,880

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

- Income taxes paid (-)/ received (+) 5.11. -11,501 -4,621

+ Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 6.8. 6,786 2,530

+ Amortization and impairment of intangible assets 6.9. 10,556 4,619

+/(-)
Net (gains)/losses on financial instruments designated at fair 
value through profit or loss 5.5. -3,249 12,697

+ Net (gains)/losses on derivative financial instruments 5.6. 2,054 5,721

+/(-) Gain/(Loss) from associates 5.7. -14,497 856

+/(-) Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.8. 3 -5

+/(-) Impairment of loans and advances 5.3. 24,918 8,133

+/(-) other non-cash items included in the result before tax * 0 -17,096

+/(-) Increase (-)/ decrease (+) in operating assets -13,376 -46,802

+/(-) Increase (+)/ decrease (-) in operating liabilities -9,851 100,276

= Net cash flows from operating activities 4,346 47,428

- Purchase of intangible assets 6.9. -1,950 -2,033

- Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6.8. -9,548 -4,062

- Purchase of associates 6.7.2. -435 -55,220

+
Proceeds from sale of associates measured at fair value 
through profit or loss 6.7.1. 9,000 0

+ Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 58 242

- Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired 4. 0 86,672

= Net cash flows from/(used in)  investing activities -2,875 25,599

- Transaction costs of issue of shares 0 -34

- Dividends of subsidiaries paid 6.15. -2,592 0

+ Proceeds from capital increase 6.15. 8,176 495

+ Proceeds from convertible bond 0 980

+ Proceeds from bond with warrants (2012) 6.12. 0 38,178

+ Proceeds from borrowed funds 0 31,268

- Acquisition of treasury stock 0 -2,762

+ Sale of treasury stock 0 2,676

+ Proceeds from loans and other debentures 3,300 1,000

- Repayments of loans and other debentures -4,300 -4,000

= Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 4,584 67,801

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,056 140,828

+ Net foreign exchange difference 11,462 -726

+ Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 6.1. 183,380 43,278

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 200,897 183,380

Operational cash flows from interest and dividends

Interest paid 84,045 33,501

Interest received 173,173 65,367

Dividend received 472 904

1     in 2012: release of negative goodwill to profit or loss (note 5.8.).

note: Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the actual figures.
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notes to the ConsoliDAteD finAnCiAl stAtements
of aDc afRican DEvElopmEnt coRpoRation ag, fRankfURt, 
(intERnational financial REpoRting stanDaRDs - ifRs) as of 31 DEcEmBER 2013

1. GEnEraL infOrMaTiOn

ADC is a german listed pan-African banking group focused on frontier markets in sub-saharan 

Africa. 

the transformation of ADC African Development Corporation gmbh & Co. kgaA, isin De000A-

1e8nw9, into a stock corporation (Ag) was successfully completed on 26 July 2013 with its entry 

into the commercial register of the local Court of frankfurt am main. the unchanged supervisory 

board under the chairmanship of Alastair newton resumed its work in the newly formed stock 

corporation. the existing managing Director of the general partner, Dirk harbecke, has been ap-

pointed to the management board (vorstand) of ADC African Development Corporation Ag.

trading of ADC African Development Corporation gmbh & Co. kgaA’s shares in the prime standard 

of the frankfurt stock exchange ceased on 26 July 2013 after the close of trading. the inclusion as 

well as the immediate resumption of trading of ADC African Development Corporation Ag’s shares 

in the entry standard of the frankfurt stock exchange commenced on monday, 29 July 2013.

the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in euro (eur). All figures including the 

prior-year figures are stated in thousands of euro (eur k) in these notes to the consolidated finan-

cial statements. 

Due to rounding differences, figures in tables and cross-references may differ slightly from the 

actual figures.

the income statement has been prepared using the nature of expense method. the Company’s 

fiscal year is the calendar year. 

Areas that involve a greater degree of judgment or higher complexity or areas where assumptions 

and estimates are of material significance for the consolidated financial statements are listed in 

note 2.3.

by a resolution of management on 28 march 2014, the consolidated financial statements and the 

group management report for the fiscal year 2013 were released to the supervisory board for ap-

proval and publication. 

2. accOunTinG pOLiciEs

2.1 Basis of pREpaRation

the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fi-

nancial instruments classified as available-for-sale, financial assets and liabilities held “at fair value 

through profit or loss”, land and buildings all of which have been measured at fair value. 

the consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated income statement and the 

statement of comprehensive income shown as two statements, the statement of financial posi-

tion, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes. the carrying 

values of recognized assets and liabilities that are hedged items in fair value hedges, and otherwi-

se carried at amortized cost, are adjusted to record changes in fair value attributable to the risks 

that are being hedged.

statEmEnt of compliancE with ifRss

the consolidated financial statements of ADC African Development Corporation Ag as of the 

reporting date 31 December 2013 were prepared in accordance with the international financial 

reporting standards (ifrss), international Accounting standards (iAs), the interpretations of the 

international financial reporting interpretations Committee (ifriC) and the standing interpreta-

tions Committee (siC) – as adopted by the european Commission for application in the eu – and 

the additional requirements of german commercial law pursuant to sec. 315a (3) hgb as well as 

the supplementary provisions of the articles of incorporation and bylaws.

pREsEntation of financial statEmEnts

ADC presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recove-

ry or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after 

the reporting date (non–current) is presented in note 9.2.3 (group’s maturity analysis).

financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated 

statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recog-

nized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle 

the liability simultaneously. income and expenses are not offset in the consolidated income state-

ment unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically 

disclosed in the accounting policies of ADC.

2.2 nEw stanDaRDs anD intERpREtations anD stanDaRDs anD intERpREtations 

that aRE aDoptED foR thE fiRst timE

the group applied, for the first time, certain standards and amendments that require restatement 

of comparative financial statements. these include ifrs 10 Consolidated financial statements, 

ifrs 11 Joint Arrangements, amendments to ifrs 10, ifrs 11, ifrs 12 (transition guidance), ifrs 

13 fair value measurement and amendments to iAs 1 presentation of financial statements. in 

addition, the application of ifrs 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities resulted in additional 

disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

ifRs 10 - consoliDatED financial statEmEnts

ifrs 10 replaces the parts of iAs 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements that deal 

with consolidated financial statements. siC-12 Consolidation – special purpose entities will be 

withdrawn upon the effective date of ifrs 10. under ifrs 10, there is only one basis for con-

solidation, that is, control. in addition, ifrs 10 includes a new definition of control that contains 

three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its 

involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the 

amount of the investor’s return extensive guidance has been added in ifrs 10 to deal with com-

plex scenarios. 



96 Consolidated annual FinanCial statements  ADC AnnuAl report 2013 97

ADC adopted ifrs 10 in financial year 2013. the application of ifrs 10 affected the accounting for 

ADC investments’ 100.00% interest in the equity shares in ADC ventures limited.

for all financial years up to 31 December 2012, the interest of ADC investments in ADC ventures 

was considered as a derivative financial instrument under iAs 39 and was accounted for using 

the fair value: ADC invested eur 2,443k (usD 3 million) in a financial instrument held through 

a special purpose vehicle (ADC ventures limited, mauritius) together with standard Chartered 

private equity (sCpe) who invested us41.3m in the same vehicle. the funds were utilized to 

acquire 8.39% of ugpl shares. the derivative financial instrument has a 7 year tenure that can 

be extended for an additional 2 years. ADC has a stop loss of usD 3m on the instrument. As at 

31 December 2012 the acquisition price was considered the fair value of this derivative financial 

instrument. ugpl holds 61.34% of the shareholding in union bank of nigeria (ubn).

At the date of initial application of ifrs 10, ADC assessed that it controls ADC ventures based on 

the factors explained below.

ADC consolidated the financial statements of ADC ventures based on its 100% equity interest. 

the assets, liabilities and equity of ADC ventures have been retrospectively consolidated in the 

financial statements of ADC. the opening balances at 1 January 2012 and comparative information 

for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been restated in the consolidated financial state-

ments. the quantitative impact on the financial statements is provided below:

 

impact on statement of profit or loss (increase/(decrease)) in profit):

in EURk
1 JanUaRy to 

31 DEcEmBER 2012

Interest and similar expense -2,253

Net loss from equity method instruments (UGPL) -1,412

Operating expenses -1,743

Loss for the year -5,408

Attributable:

Equity holders of the parent -5,408

Non-controlling interests 0

the transition had an impact on the oCi for the period and the group’s basic/diluted eps.

impact on equity: increase/(decrease)) in net equity:

in EURk 31.12.2012

Investment in associates 31,133

Other current assets 83

Cash 170

Total assets 31,386

Borrowed funds -34,086

Creditors and accruals -289

Total liabilities -34,375

Net impact of equity -2,989

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent -2,989

Non-controlling interests 0

impact on statement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)):

in EURk
1 JanUaRy to 

31 DEcEmBER 2012

Operating  
    increase in operating assets -4,339

Investing 
   Purchase of a associates

-31,133

Financing
   Proceeds from borrowed funds

35,642

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 170

iAs 27 would only apply in the separate financial statements of the parent and some of the 

group’s subsidiaries.

amEnDmEnts to ifRs 10, ifRs 12 anD ias 27 - invEstmEnt EntitiEs

the amendments apply to a particular class of business that qualify as investment entities. the 

iAsb uses the term ‘investment entity’ to refer to an entity whose business purpose is to invest 

funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both. An investment 

entity must also evaluate the performance of its investments on a fair value basis. such entities 

could include private equity organizations, venture capital organizations, pension funds, sovereign 

wealth funds and other investment funds.

under ifrs 10 Consolidated financial statements, reporting entities were required to consolidate 

all investees that they control (i.e. all subsidiaries). preparers and users of financial statements 

have suggested that consolidating the subsidiaries of investment entities does not result in useful 

information for investors. rather, reporting all investments, including investments in subsidiaries, 

at fair value, provides the most useful and relevant information.
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in response to this, the investment entities amendments provide an exception to the consolida-

tion requirements in ifrs 10 and require investment entities to measure particular subsidiaries 

at fair value through profit or loss, rather than consolidate them.  the amendments also set out 

disclosure requirements for investment entities.

An associate of ADC, union global partners ltd. (hereafter “ugpl”), applied the exception rule in 

2013 for the investment in union bank of nigeria (hereafter “ubn”) and restated the prior year 

accounts 2012 affecting ADC’s group equity. in the impact on ADC’s net equity for 2012 amounts 

to eur 11,438k based on the restated equity position of ugpl’s stand-alone accounts 2012. fair-

valuing ubn results in future equity pick-ups which are fully recognized in the income statement 

of ADC. the share of profit using the equity method for the associate ugpl amounts to eur 

14,857k (note 6.7.2).

since refining its strategy to focus on becoming a pan-African banking holding during 2012, ADC 

separates its activities into 3 operating segments: banking operations, private equity Activities, 

and supporting services. particularly the separation of banking operations and private equity 

activities is meant to reflect the differing goals of the activities. within the segment banking ope-

rations, ADC targets commercial banks with promising potential in retail and corporate banking. 

ADC aims to form a pan-African banking group through its majority equity interest in AbC holdings 

ltd. (“bancAbC”) and other potential majority stakes. the focus is primarily on finding suitable 

banks that constitute a solid addition to the establishment of a pan-African banking group.

Alongside its banking operations, ADC manages a private equity portfolio to profit proprietary 

investment opportunities. the goal of the segment is to profit from opportunistic investment op-

portunities which are purchased and developed with the target of an exit within a 3-5 year time 

horizon. ADC’s private equity (pe) unit manages the group’s existing portfolio of four investments, 

including rswitch, resolution health east Africa limited (rheAl), iveri and brainworks Capital 

management.

ADC’s private equity Activities exhibit all the required characteristics of a venture capital organiza-

tion as per the definition under iAs 28.18. As such, all current and future investments in the seg-

ment shall be carried at fair value, irrespective of ADC’s control position in the individual entities.

ifRs 11 - Joint aRRangEmEnts

ifrs 11 replaces iAs 31 interests in Joint ventures. ifrs 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of 

which two or more parties have joint control should be classified. siC-13 Jointly Controlled entities 

– non-monetary Contributions by venturers will be withdrawn upon the effective date of ifrs 11. 

under ifrs 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending 

on the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. in contrast, under iAs 31, there 

are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and joint-

ly controlled operations. in addition, joint ventures under ifrs 11 are required to be accounted 

for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under iAs 31 can 

be accounted for using the equity method of accounting or proportional consolidation. with the 

issue of ifrs 11 and ifrs 12 the scope of iAs 28 was extended such that the equity method is 

applicable not only to associates but also to joint ventures. the adoption of ifrs 11 had no impact 

on the group’s consolidated financial statements.

ifRs 12 DisclosURE of intEREsts in othER EntitiEs

ifrs 12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, 

joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. the requirements in ifrs 12 are more 

comprehensive than the previously existing disclosure requirements for subsidiaries joint ven-

tures and associates and other entities. for example, where a subsidiary is controlled with less 

than a majority of voting rights. while the group has subsidiaries with material non-controlling 

interests, there are no unconsolidated structured entities.

ifRs 13 faiR valUE mEasUREmEnt

ifrs 13 establishes a single source of guidance under ifrs for all fair value measurements. ifrs 

13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on 

how to measure fair value under ifrs. ifrs 13 defines fair value as an exit price. As a result of 

the guidance in ifrs 13, the group re-assessed its policies for measuring fair values, in particular, 

its valuation inputs such as non-performance risk for fair value measurement of liabilities. ifrs 

13 also requires additional disclosures. Application of ifrs 13 has not materially impacted the 

fair value measurements of the group. Additional disclosures where required, are provided in the 

individual notes relating to the assets and liabilities whose fair values were determined. fair value 

hierarchy is provided in note 6.20.

ias 1 pREsEntation of itEms of othER compREhEnsivE incomE – amEnDmEnts to ias 1

the amendments to iAs 1 introduce a grouping of items presented in oCi. items that will be 

reclassified (‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (e.g., net loss or gain on Afs 

financial assets) have to be presented separately from items that will not be reclassified (e.g., 

revaluation of land and buildings). the amendments affect presentation only and have no impact 

on the group’s financial position or performance.

DisclosUREs – offsEtting financial assEts anD financial liaBilitiEs (amEnDmEnts to 
ifRs 7)

 

in December 2011, the iAsb issued amendments to ifrs 7, “Disclosures – offsetting financial 

Assets and financial liabilities” (“ifrs 7r”) requiring extended disclosures to allow investors to 

better compare financial statements prepared in accordance with ifrs or u.s. gAAp. the amend-

ments were effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 but also interim 

periods thereafter. the adoption of the amendments did not have a material impact on the group’s 

consolidated financial statements. 

impRovEmEnts to ifRs 2009-2011 cyclE

in may 2012, the iAsb issued amendments to ifrs, which resulted from the iAsb’s annual impro-

vement project. they comprise amendments that result in accounting changes for presentation, 

recognition or measurement purposes as well as terminology or editorial amendments related to 

a variety of individual ifrs standards. the adoption of the amendments did not have a material 

impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements.
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EU EnDoRsEmEnt pEnDing

the iAsb has published the standards and interpretations listed below, the adoption of which was 

not yet mandatory for the fiscal year 2013. these standards and interpretations have not been 

endorsed by the eu and have not been applied by the group.

titlE issUED By thE iasB EnDoRsEmEnt applicaBlE fRom

No EU endorsement: Adoption as of 31 Decem-
ber 2013: open

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and 
Measurement

Nov 2009/ 
Oct 2010

Amendments to IFRS 9 (2009), IFRS 9 (2010) and 
IFRS 7 - Temporal scope and transitional provisi-
ons

Dec 2011/
Nov 2013

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: 
Emploee Contibutions 

Nov 2013 01.07.2014

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle Dec 2013 01.07.2014

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Dec 2013 01.07.2014

IFRIC 21 Levies May 2013 01.07.2014

ifRs 9 financial instRUmEnts: classification anD mEasUREmEnt

the first part of phase i in the preparation of ifrs 9 financial instruments was issued in november 

2009. this standard contains new regulations on the classification and measurement of financial 

assets. it requires debt instruments, depending on their characteristics and taking account of the 

business model, to be recognized either at amortized cost or at fair value through profit or loss. 

equity instruments must always be shown at fair value. however, changes in the value of equity 

instruments may be presented in other comprehensive income if the instrument-specific option 

to do so is exercised at initial recognition of the financial instrument. in this case, only certain 

dividend income from equity instruments is shown in the income statement. financial assets 

held for trading purposes are an exception. these must be stated at fair value through profit or 

loss. the iAsb completed the second part of phase i of the project in october 2010. the standard 

therefore now includes sections relating to financial liabilities and permits previous classification 

and measurement policies for financial liabilities to be retained with the following exceptions: the 

effects of changes in own credit risk for financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit 

or loss must be recognized in other comprehensive income and derivative liabilities relating to 

non-listed equity instruments may no longer be recognized at cost. ifrs 9 is applicable for the first 

time for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. the group will quantify the effect 

in conjunction with the other phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued. the 

group intends to adopt ifrs 9 when its adoption becomes mandatory provided that they have 

been recognized accordingly in the endorsement procedure.

amEnDmEnts to ifRs 9 (2009), ifRs 9 (2010) anD ifRs 7 - tEmpoRal scopE anD tRansitional 
pRovisions

on 16 December 2011, the iAsb issued mandatory effective Date and transition Disclosures 

(Amendments to ifrs 9 and ifrs 7), which: (i) amends the effective date of ifrs 9 financial 

instruments to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015; (ii) modifies the relief from 

restating comparative periods and the associated disclosures in ifrs 7 financial instruments: 

Disclosures. because the impairment phase of the ifrs 9 project has not yet been completed, 

the iAsb decided on 19 november 2013 that a mandatory date of 1 January 2015 would not allow 

sufficient time for entities to prepare to apply the new standard. Accordingly, the iAsb decided 

that a new date should be decided upon when the entire ifrs 9 project is closer to completion. 

the group is yet to assess the full impact of the amendments to ifrs 9 and ifrs 7. 

ifriC 21, “levies”, an interpretation of iAs 37 “provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent 

Assets”, clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy only when the activity that triggers 

payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. the interpretation will become effective 

for the group on January 1, 2014. the adoption of ifriC 21 will not have a material impact on the 

group’s consolidated financial statements. 

amEnDmEnts to ias 19 DEfinED BEnEfit plans: EmployEE contRiBUtions 

this amendment clarifies how contributions from employees or third parties that are linked to 

service should be attributed to periods of service. According to the amendment, the contributions 

can, but are not required, to be recognized as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which 

the related service is rendered if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of 

years of service. if the employee’s contributions are dependent of the number of years of service 

the ”projected unit credit method” is mandatory. the adoption of amendments to iAs 19 will not 

have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements. 

annUal impRovEmEnt to ifRs 2010-2012 cyclE

annUal impRovEmEnts to ifRss 2010-2012 cyclE affEct sEvEn stanDaRDs: 

ifRs 2, “shaRE-BasED paymEnt”

ifrs 2, ‘share-based payment’ which clarifies the definition of a ‘vesting condition’ and separately 

defines ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’.   furthermore the amendments clarify the 

definition of a “market conditions” which include not only performance conditions of the entity 

but also performance conditions of others entities of the group. the amendment is effective for 

share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014. the amend-

ments will not have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements. 

ifRs 3, “BUsinEss comBinations”

ifrs 3, ‘business combinations’  which clarifies that an obligation to pay contingent consideration 

which meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as a financial liability or as equity, 

on the basis of the definitions in iAs 32, ‘financial instruments: presentation’. 

the standard is further amended to clarify that all non-equity contingent consideration, both finan-

cial and non-financial, is measured at fair value at each reporting date, with changes in fair value 

recognized in profit and loss. Consequential changes are also made to ifrs 9, iAs 37 and iAs 39. 

the amendment is effective for business combinations where the acquisition date is on or after  

1 July 2014. the amendments will not have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial 

statements. 
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ifRs 8, “opERating sEgmEnts” 

ifrs 8, ‘operating segments’ is amended to require disclosure of the judgements made by ma-

nagement in aggregating operating segments. this includes a description of the segments which 

have been aggregated and the economic indicators which have been assessed in determining that 

the aggregated segments share similar economic characteristics. 

the standard is further amended to require a reconciliation of segment assets to the entity’s as-

sets when segment assets are reported. the amendments will not have a material impact on the 

group’s consolidated financial statements. 

ifRs 13, “faiR valUE mEasUREmEnt” 

when ifrs 13 was published, paragraphs b5.4.12 of ifrs 9 and Ag79 of iAs 39 were deleted as 

consequential amendments. this led to a concern that entities no longer had the ability to measu-

re short-term receivables and payables at invoice amounts where the impact of not discounting 

is immaterial. the iAsb has amended the basis for conclusions of ifrs 13 to clarify that it did not 

intend to remove the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables at invoice amounts in 

such cases. the amendments will not have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial 

statements. 

ias 16 “pRopERty, plant anD EqUipmEnt’, anD ias 38 ‘intangiBlE assEts” 

both standards are amended to clarify how the gross carrying amount and the accumulated de-

preciation are treated where an entity uses the revaluation model (according to iAs 16.35 and iAs 

38.80). 

the carrying amount of the asset is restated to the revalued amount. 

the split between gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation is treated in one of the 

following ways: 

 — either the gross carrying amount is restated in a manner consistent 

with the revaluation of the carrying amount, and the accumulated 

depreciation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross 

carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into account 

accumulated impairment losses; or 

 — the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying 

amount of the asset. the amendment is effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 July 2014. . the amendments will not have a 

material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements. 

ias 24, “RElatED paRty DisclosUREs”

the standard is amended to include, as a related party, an entity that provides key management 

personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity (‘the manage-

ment entity’). the reporting entity is not required to disclose the compensation paid by the ma-

nagement entity to the management entity’s employees or directors, but it is required to disclose 

the amounts charged to the reporting entity by the management entity for services provided.  the 

amendments will not have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements.  

the amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, unless otherwise 

stated below.

annUal impRovEmEnts to ifRs 2011-2013 cyclE

annUal impRovEmEnts to ifRss 2011-2013 cyclE affEct foUR stanDaRDs: 

ifRs 1, “fiRst-timE aDoption of intERnational financial REpoRting stanDaRDs’”

the basis for conclusions on ifrs 1 is amended to clarify that, where a new version of a standard 

is not yet mandatory but is available for early adoption; a first-time adopter can use either the old 

or the new version, provided the same standard is applied in all periods presented. the amend-

ments will not have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements. 

ifRs 3, “BUsinEss comBinations” 

the standard is amended to clarify that ifrs 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation 

of any joint arrangement under ifrs 11. the amendment also clarifies that the scope exemption 

only applies in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. the amendments will not 

have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements. 

ifRs 13, “faiR valUE mEasUREmEnt”

the amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in ifrs 13, which allows an entity to measu-

re the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis, applies to all 

contracts (including non-financial contracts) within the scope of iAs 39 or ifrs 9. the amendment 

is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. An entity shall apply the amend-

ment prospectively from the beginning of the first annual period in which ifrs 13 is applied. the 

amendments will not have a material impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements. 

ias 40, “invEstmEnt pRopERty’”

the standard is amended to clarify that iAs 40 and ifrs 3 are not mutually exclusive. the guidance 

in iAs 40 assists preparers to distinguish between investment property and owner-occupied pro-

perty. preparers also need to refer to the guidance in ifrs 3 to determine whether the acquisition 

of an investment property is a business combination. the amendments will not have a material 

impact on the group’s consolidated financial statements. 

while approved by the iAsb, the above standards and interpretation – except for iAs 32, “off-

setting financial Assets and financial liabilities” and ifrs 12, “Disclosure of interests in other 

entities” – have yet to be endorsed by the eu.

2.3 significant accoUnting JUDgEmEnts, EstimatEs anD assUmptions

the preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with ifrs requires manage-

ment to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. these estimates and associa-

ted assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
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to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making the 

judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

EstimatEs anD assUmptions

the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 

the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. the group 

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial 

statements were prepared. existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 

however, may change due to market changes or circumstances beyond the control of the group. 

such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value measurement

when the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial 

position cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation tech-

niques including the discounted cash flow model. the inputs to these models are taken from ob-

servable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required 

in establishing fair values. the judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, 

credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair 

value of financial instruments. the valuation of financial instruments is described in more detail in 

note 6.7, 6.20 and 6.19. 

impairment oF loans and advances

the group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. in de-

termining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the group 

makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable 

decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be 

identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. this evidence may include observable data indi-

cating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or 

national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. manage-

ment uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics 

and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future 

cash flows. the methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing 

of future cash flows are reviewed monthly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and 

actual loss experience. the impairment of loans and advances are described in more detail in note 

5.3. impairment losses on financial assets are explained in note 5.3.

taxEs

current tax

uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax 

laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. given the wide range of internatio-

nal business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual ag-

reements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future 

changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense 

already recorded. the group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible 

consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which it operates. 

the amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax 

audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax 

authority.

such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the condi-

tions prevailing in the respective domicile of the group companies. we refer to note 5.11.

deFerred tax

the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on profit forecasts made by management of the 

particular group Company where the asset has arisen. these forecasts are based on the group’s 

re-capitalization plans of the subsidiary and market conditions prevailing in the economy in which 

the Company operates. we refer to note 5.11 and 6.10.

significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets 

that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together 

with future tax planning strategies. the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 

each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 

profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. unrecognized 

deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it 

has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

we refer to note 6.10.

JUDgmEnts

in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, management has made the following 

judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated 

financial statements:

contRol DEfinition of ifRs 10

ADC early adopts ifrs 10, 11, 12, iAs 27 and iAs 28 in the financial statements as of 31 Decem-

ber 2013. ifrs 10, effective from periods commencing on 1 January 2013, establishes principles 

for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial statements when an entity controls 

one or more other entities. in so doing the standard has a refined definition of control which we 

have applied in determining the position that AbCh is a subsidiary of ADC and should be consoli-

dated in its group financial statements.

After dilution of ADC’s shareholding in bancAbC in may 2013 due to the conversion of a converti-

ble bond issued to the ifC, its direct holdings fell to 47.07% from 51.98%. power over bancAbC 

is obtained by voting rights granted by shares of bancAbC (direct ownership) and contractual 

arrangements through voting agreements in order to direct the relevant activities that significantly 

affect bancAbC’s returns.
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these voting pool agreements result in control of the decisions of the pool being carried by the 

party that holds a simple majority in the pool. As ADC has the majority of shares in any of the 

voting pools it is able to ensure its decisions are carried. termination of the pooling agreements 

can only be done through mutual consent of parties in each pool.

classification of invEstmEnts in associatED companiEs

in classifying its shares in associates, ADC draws a distinction between “strategic bank invest-

ments” and the “proprietary investments”. shares in associates that belong to proprietary invest-

ments which are held solely as financial assets in order to generate a return, are classified as 

“assets at fair value through profit or loss” (iAs 39) in accordance with the option provided for in 

iAs 28.18 (note 6.7.1). strategic bank investments which are held on a long-term basis with the 

aim of generating income from business operations are recognized at equity (iAs 28) (note 6.7.2). 

for more details on the classification of associated companies, refer to note 6.7.

significant inflUEncE on Union gloBal paRtnERs ltD. (“Ugpl”)

ugpl is an entity over which ADC has significant influence to participate in the financial and ope-

rating policy decisions. ADC evidenced the existence of significant influence in accordance with 

iAs 28.7 in the following ways:

 — representation on the board or equivalent governing body

 — participation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends 

or other distributions

 — interchange of managerial personnel

 — provision of essential technical information

we refer to note 6.7.2.

2.4 Basis of consoliDation

sUBsiDiaRiEs

the consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the group and its sub-

sidiaries as at 31 December 2013. Control is achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, to 

variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns 

through its power over the investee.

specifically, the group controls an investee if and only if the group has:

 — power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current 

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

 — exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 

investee, and

 — the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

when the group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the group 

considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, 

including:

 — the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the inves-

tee

 — rights arising from other contractual arrangements

 — the group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

the group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 

that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a sub-

sidiary begins when the group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the group 

loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 

disposed of during the year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from the date 

the group gains control until the date the group ceases to control the subsidiary.

profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (oCi) are attributed to the 

equity holders of the parent of the group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in 

the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. when necessary, adjustments are made to 

the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the group’s 

accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows 

relating to transactions between members of the group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as 

an equity transaction. if the group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

 — Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the 

subsidiary

 — Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

 — Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in 

equity

 — recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

 — recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

 — recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

 — reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized 

in oCi to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would 

be required if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or 

liabilities

cURREncy tRanslation

the group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in euros, which is also the functional 

and presentation currency. each entity in the group determines its own functional currency. 

Group companies

if the functional currency of the foreign subsidiaries does not correspond to that of the group, 

their financial statements are translated into euros. equity items are translated at historical rates, 
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while asset and liability items are translated at the closing rate. the subsidiaries’ income and ex-

pense items are translated using average rates. 

Any resulting currency translation differences are recorded without an effect on profit or loss until 

the disposal of the subsidiary and reported as a separate item in oCi. Any goodwill arising on the 

acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments are treated as assets or liabilities 

of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. 

Transactions and balances

if the functional currency of the foreign subsidiary is the euro, transactions in foreign currency are 

translated using the rates at the time of the transactions. monetary items of the statement of 

financial position in foreign currencies are valued at the mean rate on the reporting date. gains and 

losses in foreign currency arising from translation are recognized in profit or loss. 

At the end of the reporting period non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 

cost in foreign currency shall be translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction 

and non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be translated 

using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. A gain or loss on a non-

monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on 

a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss 

shall be recognized in profit or loss (iAs 21.30).

for the translation of the subsidiaries the following exchange rates are used: 

ExchangE RatEs

EUR

2013
closing

RatE

2013
avERagE 

RatE

2012
closing 

RatE

2012 
avERagE

RatE

Rwanda franc (RWF) 0.0011 0.0012 0.0012 0.0013

United States Dollar (USD) 0.7264 0.7530 0.7776 0.7804

South African rand (ZAR) 0.0692 0.0780 0.0893 0.0949

Kenyan Shilling (KES) 0.0084 0.0087 0.0088 0.0094

Botswana Pula (BWP) 0.0829 0.0897 0.0976 0.0990

2.5 sUmmaRy of significant accoUnting policiEs

financial instRUmEnts – initial REcognition anD sUBsEqUEnt mEasUREmEnt

DatE of REcognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the 

group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. this includes regular way 

trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame 

generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

initial mEasUREmEnt of financial instRUmEnts

the classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and cha-

racteristics and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial instruments are mea-

sured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets and 

financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

“Day 1” pRofit oR loss 

when the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market transac-

tions in the same instrument, or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data 

from observable markets, the group immediately recognizes the difference between the transac-

tion price and fair value (a Day 1 profit or loss) in net trading income. in cases where fair value is 

determined using data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and 

model value is only recognized in the income statement when the inputs become observable, or 

when the instrument is derecognized.

classEs of financial instRUmEnts

for the purposes of the disclosures on the importance of financial instruments to the financial 

position and financial performance of the group, financial instruments falling within the scope of 

ifrs 7 / ifrs 13 are classified within the 6 measurement categories of financial instruments de-

scribed below. Classes of financial instruments are defined identical for ifrs 7 / ifrs 13 purposes 

based on the nature of financial assets and liabilities, we refer to note 6.20.

classEs of financial assEts

Financial assets measured at fair value

the class of financial assets measured at fair value comprises the following categories defined 

by iAs 39:

 — financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss with the sub-

categories

 — financial instruments held for trading and

 — financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss 

(fair value option)

 — available-for-sale financial assets

this class does not include financial assets under the category ‘available-for-sale financial assets’ 

whose fair value cannot be reliably determined and are therefore measured at cost. these financi-

al assets are classified as financial assets measured at cost.

in addition to the financial assets in the categories specified above, classes of financial instru-

ments additionally includes derivatives used for hedging (positive fair values), which are also mea-

sured at fair value.
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost

the ‘financial assets measured at amortized cost’ class includes financial assets in the category 

‘loans and receivables’, held-to-maturity financial investments for which a fair value cannot be 

reliably determined.

Other financial assets

in the group, the class ‘other financial assets’ comprises trade accounts.

classEs of financial liaBilitiEs

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

financial liabilities in the category ‘financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss’ with 

the subcategories ‘financial instruments held for trading’ and financial instruments designated as 

at fair value through profit or loss, along with derivatives used for hedging (negative fair values), 

together make up the class ‘financial liabilities measured at fair value’ in the group.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

the class known as ‘financial liabilities measured at amortized cost’ is identical to the category of 

financial liabilities of the same name.

DERivativEs REcoRDED at faiR valUE thRoUgh pRofit oR loss

the group uses derivatives such as interest rate swaps and futures, credit default swaps, cross-

currency swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and options on interest rates, foreign curren-

cies and equities. Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value 

is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivatives 

are included in net trading income.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives and recor-

ded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the 

host contract, and the host contract is not itself held for trading or designated at fair value through 

profit or loss. the embedded derivatives separated from the host are carried at fair value in the 

trading portfolio with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement.

financial assEts oR financial liaBilitiEs hElD foR tRaDing

financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial 

position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net trading income. interest and divi-

dend income or expense is recorded in net trading income according to the terms of the contract, 

or when the right to the payment has been established.

included in this classification are debt securities, equities and short positions and customer loans 

that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

financial assEts anD financial liaBilitiEs DEsignatED at faiR valUE thRoUgh pRofit oR 
loss

financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been desig-

nated by management upon initial recognition. management may only designate an instrument 

at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following criteria are met, and 

designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

 — the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent 

treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or 

liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.

 — the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, 

financial liabilities or both, which are managed and their performance 

evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk 

management or investment strategy. 

 — the financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, 

which significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be 

required by the contract.

financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the state-

ment of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in net gain or loss on 

financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. in addition, changes in 

fair value of shares in associates classified as “assets at fair value through profit or loss” (iAs 39) 

in accordance with the option provided for in iAs 28.18 are recorded in net gain or loss on finan-

cial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. interest earned or incurred 

is accrued in interest income or interest expense, respectively, using the effective interest rate 

(eir), while dividend income is recorded in other operating income when the right to the payment 

has been established. 

the fair value designation, once made, is irrevocable. subsequent to initial recognition, the fair 

values are re-measured at each reporting date. gains and losses arising from changes therein 

are recognized in interest income for all dated financial assets and in other revenue within non-

interest revenue for all undated financial assets. financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

are measured at initial recognition and subsequently at fair value based on quoted market price 

within the bid ask spread that is most representative at the balance sheet date. if there is no 

quoted market price in an active market, the instruments are measured using valuation models. 

All changes in fair value are recognized in the income statement.

loans anD REcEivaBlEs

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

that are not quoted in an active market, other than:

 — those that the entity intends to sell immediately or in the short-term, 

which are classified as held for trading, and those that the entity upon 

initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;
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 — those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as available-

for-sale; or

 — those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its 

initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration.

loans and advances are accounted for on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest rate. 

origination transaction costs and origination fees received that are integral to the effective rate are 

capitalised to the value of the loan and amortized through interest income as part of the effective 

interest rate. the majority of the group’s advances are included in the loans and receivables ca-

tegory. they are stated net of allowances for specific and portfolio impairment. included in loans 

and advances are finance lease receivables. finance lease receivables are those leases where the 

group transfers substantially all the risk and reward incidental to ownership of an asset. finance 

lease charges are recognized in income using the effective interest rate method.

hElD-to matURity financial invEstmEnts

held-to-maturity financial investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determina-

ble payments and fixed maturities that the group’s management has the positive intention and 

ability to hold to maturity. if the group were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to 

maturity assets, the entire category would be reclassified as available-for-sale. held-to-maturity 

fixed interest instruments, held in investment portfolios, are stated at cost, less any impairment 

losses.

availaBlE-foR-salE financial invEstmEnts

Available-for-sale investments include equity and debt securities. Available-for-sale investments 

are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to 

needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices or financial assets 

that are not designated as another category of financial assets. Available-for-sale quoted invest-

ments are valued at market value using price within the bid ask spread that is most representa-

tive. unlisted equity investments and instruments for which there is no quoted market price are 

measured using valuation models. where the valuation models may not produce reliable measu-

rement, the unquoted investments are stated at cost. Available-for-sale investments are marked to 

market and any gains or losses arising from the revaluation of investments are shown in sharehol-

ders’ equity as available for-sale reserves. on realization of the investment, the available-for-sale 

reserves are transferred to the income statement. interest income, calculated using the effective 

interest method, is recognized in the income statement. Dividends received on available-for-sale 

instruments are recognized in the income statement when the group’s right to receive payment 

has been established. foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale debt investments are 

recognized in the income statement.

REclassification of financial assEts

the group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative financial asset held for trading out of the held 

for trading category if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near 

term. financial assets other than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the 

held for trading category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and 

highly unlikely to recur in the near term. in addition, the group may choose to reclassify finan-

cial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the held for trading or 

available-for-sale categories if the group has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets 

for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of reclassification. reclassifications are 

made at fair value as of the reclassification date. fair value becomes the new cost or amortized 

cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification 

date are subsequently made. effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and 

receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the reclassification date. further 

increases in estimates of cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively. on reclassifi-

cation of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through profit or loss” category, all embedded 

derivatives are re-assessed and, if necessary, accounted for separately. As in 2012, the group has 

not reclassified any financial assets in 2013. 

faiR valUE mEasUREmEnt

the group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, and non-financial assets such as 

investment properties, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair values of financial instru-

ments measured at amortized cost are disclosed in note 6.20.

fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. the fair value measu-

rement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 

takes place either:

 — in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

 — in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous mar-

ket for the asset or liability

the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the group.

the fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their eco-

nomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant‘s ability 

to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 

another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

the group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suf-

ficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs 

and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

 — level 1: quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 — level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable



114 Consolidated annual FinanCial statements  ADC AnnuAl report 2013 115

 — level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable

for assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-asses-

sing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measure-

ment as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

for the purpose of fair value disclosures, the group has determined classes of assets and liabili-

ties on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the 

fair value hierarchy as explained above.

financial liaBilitiEs

financial liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date. financial liabilities include deposits 

and other borrowed funds. Deposits and other borrowed funds are initially measured at fair value 

plus transaction costs and subsequently measured at their amortized cost, using the effective 

interest method. 

A compound financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is se-

parated at the issue date. A portion of the net proceeds of the instrument is allocated to the debt 

component on the date of issue based on its fair value (which is generally determined based on 

the quoted market prices for similar debt instruments). the equity component is assigned the 

residual amount after deducting from the fair value of the instruments as a whole the amount 

separately determined for the debt component. 

Risk infoRmation to financial instRUmEnts

further information to financial instruments are available in the section “risk report and risk ma-

nagement system” in the management report (exhibit 7).  

offsEtting financial instRUmEnts

financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when 

there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

impaiRmEnt of financial assEts

assEts caRRiED at amoRtizED cost

the group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial 

asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is 

impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a 

result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) 

and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 

asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. the criteria that the group uses 

to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

 — delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

 — cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for example, equity ratio, net income per-

centage of sales);

 — breach of loan covenants or conditions;

 — initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

 — deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;

 — deterioration in the value of collateral; and

 — downgrading below investment grade level.

the group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for finan-

cial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that 

are not individually significant. if the group determines that no objective evidence of impairment 

exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset 

in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them 

for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment 

loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 

the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been 

incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. the carrying amount 

of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is 

recognized in the income statement. if a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable inte-

rest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate 

determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the group may measure impairment on 

the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

the calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial 

asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling 

the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable. for the purposes of a collective evaluation 

of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics (i.e. 

on the basis of the group’s grading process that considers asset type, industry, geographical loca-

tion, collateral type, past due status and other relevant factors). those characteristics are relevant 

to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ 

ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are 

estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss 

experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. historical loss 

experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current 

conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to 

remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.
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estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be directionally 

consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period (for example, changes in 

unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or other factors indicative of changes in the 

probability of losses in the group and their magnitude). the methodology and assumptions used 

for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the group to reduce any differences 

between loss estimates and actual loss experience. when a loan is uncollectible, it is written off 

against the related provision for loan impairment. such loans are written off after all the necessary 

procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. if, in a sub-

sequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement 

in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting 

the allowance account. the amount of the reversal is recognized in the income statement in im-

pairment charge for credit losses. subsequent to impairment, the effects of discounting unwind 

over time as interest income.

assEts classifiED as availaBlE-foR-salE 

the group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial 

asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. in the case of equity investments classified as 

available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost 

is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. if any such evidence exists for 

available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the 

acquisition cost and the current fair value – is removed from equity and recognized in the income 

statement. impairment losses recognized in the income statement on equity instruments are not 

reversed through the income statement. if, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt inst-

rument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an 

event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is 

reversed through the income statement.

REnEgotiatED loans

loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or individually significant and 

whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as 

new loans.

collatERal valUation

the group seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. the 

collateral comes in various forms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real esta-

te, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting 

agreements. the fair value of collateral is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and 

based on the group’s quarterly reporting schedule, however, some collateral, for example, cash 

or securities relating to margining requirements, is valued daily. to the extent possible, the group 

uses active market data for valuing financial assets, held as collateral. other financial assets which 

do not have a readily determinable market value are valued using models. non-financial collateral, 

such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as mortgage brokers, 

housing price indices, audited financial statements, and other independent sources. (see note 

9.2.1 for further analysis of collateral).

collatERal REpossEssED

the group’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset is best used for its internal opera-

tions or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred 

to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the 

original secured asset. Assets that are determined better to be sold are immediately transferred 

to assets held for sale at their fair value at the repossession date in line with the bank’s policy.

hEDgE accoUnting

hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met. 

the group documents at inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedged items 

and hedging instruments, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking 

various hedge transactions. the group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception 

and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are 

highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items. At each hedge 

effectiveness assessment date, a hedge relationship must be expected to be highly effective on 

a prospective basis and demonstrate that it was effective (retrospective effectiveness) for the 

designated period in order to qualify for hedge accounting. A formal assessment is undertaken by 

comparing the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the changes in fair value or cash 

flows attributable to the hedged risk in the hedged item, both at inception and at each quarter end 

on an ongoing basis. A hedge is expected to be highly effective if the changes in fair value or cash 

flows attributable to the hedged risk during the period for which the hedge is designated were 

offset by the hedging instrument in a range of 80% to 125% and were expected to achieve such 

offset in future periods.

faiR valUE hEDgE

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are 

recorded in the income statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged 

asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. effective changes in fair value of interest 

rate swaps and related hedged items are reflected in “net interest income – net gains/losses on 

hedging instruments”. effective changes in fair value of currency futures are reflected in “net tra-

ding income – foreign exchange – transaction gains less losses”. Any ineffectiveness is recorded 

in “net trading income”. if the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the ad-

justment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used 

is amortized to the income statement over the period to maturity. the adjustment to the carrying 

amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained earnings until the disposal of the equity 

security.

nEt invEstmEnt hEDgEs

when a derivative instrument or a non-derivative financial liability is designated as the hedging in-

strument in a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, the effective portion of changes in 

fair value of the hedging instrument is recognized in oCi and presented in the translation reserve 

within equity. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized 
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immediately in profit or loss. the amount recognized in oCi is reclassified to profit or loss as a 

reclassification adjustment on disposal of the foreign operation.

DERivativEs that Do not qUalify foR hEDgE accoUnting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any 

derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognized immediately in the 

income statement under net trading income. however, the gains and losses arising from changes 

in the fair value of derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated financial assets or 

financial liabilities are included in “net income from financial instruments designated at fair value”.

financial gUaRantEEs

financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to 

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when 

due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. such financial guarantees are given to 

banks, financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts 

and other banking facilities. financial guarantees are initially recognized in the financial statements 

at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. subsequent to initial recognition, the group 

liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial measurement, less amor-

tization calculated to recognize in the income statement the fee income earned on a straightline 

basis over the life of the guarantee and the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle any 

financial obligation arising at the balance sheet date. these estimates are determined based on 

experience of similar transactions and history of past losses, supplemented by the judgment of 

management. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is taken to the income statement 

under other operating expenses.

DEREcognition of financial instRUmEnts

financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the 

financial assets have expired, or where the group has transferred its contractual rights to receive 

cash flows on the financial asset such that it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or 

retained by the group is recognized as a separate asset or liability. financial liabilities are derecog-

nized when they are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

the group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, 

but retains either all risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. if all or sub-

stantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized from 

the balance sheet. transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards 

include securities lending and repurchase agreements. when assets are sold to a third party with 

a concurrent total rate of return swap on the transferred assets, the transaction is accounted 

for as a secured financing transaction similar to repurchase transactions. in transactions where 

the group neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a 

financial asset, it derecognizes the asset if control over the asset is lost. the rights and obligations 

retained in the transfer are recognized separately as assets and liabilities as appropriate. in trans-

fers where control over the asset is retained, the group continues to recognize the asset to the 

extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes 

in the value of the transferred asset.

pRovisions anD contingEnt liaBilitiEs

provisions are recognized when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 

be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be 

made. provisions shall be presented at present value only if the effect of the time value of money 

is material. provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows using a pre-

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where 

appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. A provision for restructuring is recognized when the 

group has approved a detailed formal plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has 

been announced publicly. future operating costs or losses are not provided for. A provision for 

onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the group from a 

contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. the 

provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the 

contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. before a provision for onerous 

contracts is established, the group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with 

that contract. Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees other than financial guaran-

tees, and letters of credit pledged as collateral security, are possible obligations that arise from 

past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of one 

or more uncertain future events not wholly within the group’s control. Contingent liabilities are not 

recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

pRovisions foR EmployEEs

the group recognizes gratuity and other termination benefits in the financial statements when it 

has a present obligation relating to termination.

the group’s obligation in respect of accumulated leave days is recognized in full in the financial 

statements, on an undiscounted basis and is expensed as the related services are provided.

shaRE-BasED paymEnt tRansactions

cash-sEttlED tRansactions

senior executives of the group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment tran-

sactions. senior management of bancAbC is granted options, which can be settled in cash (cash-

settled transactions). the cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the 

grant date using binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which 

the instrument were granted (note 6.18). this fair value is expensed in personnel expenses over 

the period until vesting with recognition of a corresponding liability. the liability is remeasured to 

fair value at each reporting date up to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value 

recognized in the income statement in personnel expenses. 
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EqUity-sEttlED tRansactions

the cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when grant is 

made using an appropriate valuation model.

that cost is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in other capital reserves in equity, 

over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee be-

nefits expense (note 6.18).

the cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the 

vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the group’s best esti-

mate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. the statement of profit or loss 

expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at 

the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense (note 5.9.).

no expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transac-

tions for which vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition. these are treated as 

vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided 

that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

when the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is 

the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. 

An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the total fair value of the 

share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the 

date of modification.

the dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computa-

tion of diluted earnings per share (further details are given in note 7).

managED fUnDs anD tRUst activitiEs

Certain companies in the group operate unit trusts, hold and invest funds on behalf of clients and 

act as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities. Assets and liabilities representing such activities 

are not included on the balance sheet, as these relate directly to clients. income from these acti-

vities is brought into account over the period to which the service relates. 

BUsinEss comBinations anD gooDwill

business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. the cost of an acquisition 

is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair 

value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. for each business combinati-

on, the group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value 

or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are 

expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

when the group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for 

appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 

circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. this includes the separation of 

embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

if the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate considerations transferred 

and the amount of any non-controlling interests, the gain is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at 

the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial 

instrument and within the scope of iAs 39 financial instruments: recognition and measurement, 

is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized either in either profit or loss or as a 

change to other comprehensive income. if the contingent consideration is not within the scope of 

iAs 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate ifrs. Contingent consideration that is 

classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration 

transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed. if the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the 

aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

for the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the 

acquisition date, allocated to each of the group’s cash-generating units that are expected to be-

nefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are 

assigned to those units.

where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that 

unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying 

amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. goodwill disposed in 

these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the 

portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Joint vEntUREs

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic 

activity that is subject to joint control.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists 

only when the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unan-

imous consent of the parties sharing control (the venturers).

As a private equity company, ADC recognizes the interests in joint ventures at fair value pursuant 

to iAs 39 in accordance with the option in iAs 31.1. upon initial recognition, these financial assets 

were allocated to the “assets at fair value through profit or loss category”.

associatEs

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence and which is neither a 

subsidiary nor a joint venture.
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in classifying its shares in associates, ADC draws a distinction between “strategic bank invest-

ments” and the “proprietary investments”. 

shares in associates that belong to proprietary investments which are held solely as financial 

assets in order to generate a return, are classified as “assets at fair value through profit or loss” 

(iAs 39) in accordance with the option provided for in iAs 28.18 for venture capital organizations. 

upon initial recognition, these financial assets were allocated to the “assets at fair value through 

profit or loss category”. Changes in fair value are recorded in net gain or loss on financial assets 

and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

strategic bank investments which are held on a long-term basis with the aim of generating income 

from business operations are recognized at equity. in accordance with the equity method (iAs 28), 

shares in associates are reported in the balance sheet at cost plus any changes in the group’s 

share in the associate’s net assets after acquisition. the goodwill attributable to the associate is 

included in the carrying amount of the share and is neither subject to planned amortization nor to 

separate impairment tests.

the income statement includes the group’s share in the associate’s result. Any changes directly 

recognized in the associate’s equity are recorded by the group in an amount equaling its share in 

the associate’s equity and, where necessary, included in the statement of other comprehensive 

income (oCi). non-realized income and expense under transactions between the group and the 

associate are eliminated in an amount equaling the share held in the associate.

the group’s share of an associate’s profit is reported in the income statement according to the 

equity method. this is the profit attributable to the associate’s equity holders after taxes and 

non-controlling interests in the associate’s subsidiaries. the associate’s financial statements are 

prepared as of the same reporting date as the consolidated financial statements. if necessary, 

adjustments are made to allow for align group accounting methods.

othER intangiBlE assEts

intangible assets which are not acquired in a business combination are capitalized at cost on initial 

recognition. incidental purchase costs comprise the purchase price and the costs directly allocable 

to the acquisition.

the cost of intangible assets acquired in the business combinations is fair value as at the date of 

acquisition.

intangible assets acquired for a consideration are measured at carrying amount in the group. 

intangible assets – excluding goodwill – with a finite useful life (software and licenses) are amor-

tized over their economic useful life using the straight-line method (reported separately as amor-

tization, see note 6.9). 

the useful life is based on the period in which the intangible asset provides an economic benefit 

for the group, with useful lives of two to five years assumed. the useful life and amortization 

method is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

intangible assets with an indefinite useful life shall not be amortized. in accordance with iAs 36 

the group has to test an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing 

its recoverable amount with its carrying amount annually (31 December) and whenever there is an 

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

pRopERty, plant anD EqUipmEnt

the group has  not applied the revaluation model as accounting policy for the class of category 

“land and buildings” (iAs 16.31ff). 

All other items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses (cost model iAs 16.30). where parts of an item of property and equipment 

have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment. 

owner-occupied properties are held for use in the supply of services or for administrative purpo-

ses.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straightline basis over the estimated useful 

life of the property and equipment. land is not depreciated. the estimated useful lives are as 

follows:

 — buildings 40 – 50 years

 — bank premises and renovations 20 years

 — Computer equipment 3 – 5 years

 — office equipment 3 – 5 years

 — furniture and fittings 5 – 10 years

 — vehicles 4 – 5 years

the assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if 

appropriate, at each balance sheet date. subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying 

amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate only when it is probable that future 

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group. the cost of day-to-day servi-

cing of property and equipment are recognized in the income statement as incurred.

impaiRmEnt of non-financial assEts

intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not depreciated. they are instead subjected 

to an impairment test annually and as the need arises. in assessing whether there is any indication 

of impairment, an entity shall consider, as a minimum of the triggers as outlined in iAs 36.12-17.

other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment is tested for impairment if there is any 

indication that they may be impaired.

As part of the impairment test, the recoverable amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 

assessed to determine the extent of any impairment loss. 
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the recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to disposal and value in use. At the 

Company, the recoverable amount is determined based on the value in use. At the Company, the 

recoverable amount is determined based on the value in use. in determining value in use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using the current market interest 

rate, which reflects the asset’s specific risks. when the recoverable amount of an asset (or a 

cash-generating unit) falls below its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-

generating unit) is written down to the recoverable amount. the impairment loss is immediately 

recorded as an expense.

if the reasons for impairment no longer apply, a write-up is performed to the carrying amount that 

would have resulted if the impairment had not been recognized. if impairments were recorded for 

goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, no write-up is recorded in later 

periods if the reasons for impairment no longer apply.

othER cURREnt assEts

other current assets include financial and non-financial assets and mainly comprise prepayments, 

inventories and other assets.

inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost comprises the purchase 

price and the costs directly allocable to the acquisition. net realizable value is the estimated sales 

price less all estimated costs to completion and selling and marketing costs. 

other assets and prepayments that are not financial assets are carried at cost. identifiable risks of 

default are accounted for by means of write-downs.

cash anD cash EqUivalEnts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand; cash deposited with banks and short-

term highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased. for cash 

flow purposes cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts.

EqUity

REpURchasE of shaRE capital

shares repurchased by group companies are classified as treasury shares, and held at cost. these 

shares are treated as a deduction from the issued share capital and the cost price of the shares 

is presented as a deduction from total equity. where such shares are subsequently sold or re-

issued, any consideration received is included in shareholders’ equity.

DiviDEnDs

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared. 

shaRE issUE costs 

incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the acquisition 

of a business are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds (iAs 32.37). those 

costs might include registration and other regulatory fees, amounts paid to legal, accounting and 

other professional advisors.

othER REsERvEs

the reserves recorded in equity (other comprehensive income) on the group’s statement of 

financial position include:

 — Available-for-sale reserve, which comprises changes in fair value of available-for-sale invest-

ments.

 — foreign currency translation reserve, which is used to record exchange differences arising 

from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, net of the effects of hedging.

 — other capital reserve, which includes the portions of compound financial liabilities that qualify 

for the treatment as equity (note 6.15)

accoUnting anD DisclosUREs foR thE contRactUal pUBlic manDatoRy offER 

on 13 December 2013 ADC African Development Corporation Ag (“ADC”), announced its firm 

intention to make a mandatory offer to all minority shareholders of its major banking asset AbC 

holdings limited, botswana (“bancAbC”).

ADC intended to acquire all issued ordinary shares of bancAbC not already owned by ADC. the 

mandatory offer is required by the botswana stock exchange (bse) for any shareholder owning 

more than 35% of a listed company in botswana and was issued at a price of usD 0.60 per share 

to bancAbC shareholders listed on the Company’s Zimbabwe register and at the exchange rate 

equivalent of bwp 5.05 per share for bancAbC shareholders listed on the botswana register.

given that the public issuance of the mandatory offer is a contractual obligation to deliver cash to 

all minority shareholders a liability according iAs 32 is recognized by ADC (note 6.13). 

As such, ADC applies the anticipiated acquisition method and debits non-controlling interests and 

debits a liability to the extent of remaining free-floating shares after reduction of irrevocable under-

takings of certain minority shareholders not willing to sell any shares (note 6.13. and note 6.15). 

At the moment when the mandatory offer expires the group derecognizes the liability.

incomE tax

income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the 

expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 

enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividend are recognized at the same 

time as the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized.
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Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary diffe-

rences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 

the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are measured using tax 

rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is not recognized 

for the following temporary differences:

 — the initial recognition of goodwill;

 — the initial recognition of assets and liabilities, in a transaction that is not a business combinati-

on, which affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or losses; and

 — investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures (excluding mutual funds) where the group cont-

rols the timing of the reversal of temporary differences and it is probable that these differences 

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets for temporary differences and for unused tax losses are recognized at the 

probable amount of temporary differences or unused tax losses that can be offset against future 

positive taxable income. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer proba-

ble that the related tax benefit will be realized. Current and deferred tax relating to items that are 

charged or credited directly to equity, are also charged or credited directly to equity and are subse-

quently recognized in the income statement when the related deferred gain or loss is recognized. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set 

off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 

same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate 

recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information about facts and circum-

stances change. the adjustment is either treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it does 

not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the measurement period or recognized in profit 

or loss. Current income tax is recognized as a liability and calculated on the basis of expected 

taxable income less prepayments made. if prepayments exceed the tax burden, the difference is 

recognized as an asset.

we refer to note 5.11 for further details.

lEasEs 

gRoUp as lEssEE

leases where the group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are clas-

sified as finance leases. finance leases are capitalised at the leases’ inception at the lower of 

the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. lease 

payments are separated using the interest rate implicit in the lease to identify the finance cost, 

which is charged against income over the lease period, and the capital repayment, which reduces 

the liability to the lessor. A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. however, if 

there is no reasonable certainty that the group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, 

the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease 

term. the group has not entered into a lease agreement or commitment which is considered as 

a finance lease. leases of assets are classified as operating leases if the lessor effectively does 

not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership. payments made under operating leases, net 

of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income statement on a straight-line 

basis over the period of the lease. when an operating lease is terminated before the lease period 

has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as an 

expense in the period in which termination takes place. 

gRoUp as lEssoR

finance lease and instalment sale contracts are primarily financing transactions in banking activi-

ties, with rentals and instalments receivable, less unearned finance charges, being included in lo-

ans and advances on the balance sheet. finance charges earned are computed using the effective 

interest method, which reflects a constant periodic return on the investment in the finance lease. 

initial direct costs paid are capitalized to the value of the lease amount receivable and accounted 

for over the lease term as an adjustment to the effective rate of return. the benefits arising from 

investment allowances on assets leased to clients are accounted for in tax. the group has not 

entered into a lease agreement or commitment which is considered as a finance lease. leases 

of assets under which the lessor effectively retains all the risks and benefits of ownership are 

classified as operating leases. when an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has 

expired, any payment required by the lessee by way of penalty is recognized as income in the 

period in which termination takes place. 

REpossEssED assEts 

repossessed assets are not brought on balance sheet until they are sold off to extinguish or re-

duce the outstanding debt.

REcognition of incomE anD ExpEnsEs

revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the 

group and revenue can be reliably measured. the following specific recognition criteria must also 

be met before revenue is recognized.

intEREst incomE anD intEREst ExpEnsEs

interest income and interest expense are recognized in the income statement for all interest-

bearing financial instruments on an accruals basis using the effective yield method except for 

those classified as held for trading based on the original settlement amount. the effective interest 

method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and 

of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. the effective inte-

rest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 

expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying 

amount of the financial asset or financial liability. when calculating the effective interest rate, the 

group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for ex-

ample, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. the calculation includes 

all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the 

effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. 
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nEt fEE anD commission incomE

fee and commission income arises from services provided by the group, including cash manage-

ment, project and structured trade finance transactions. fee and commission income is recog-

nized when the corresponding service is provided and receipt of the fee is certain. loan commit-

ment fees for loans that are not expected to be drawn down are recognized on a straight-line basis 

over the commitment period.

nEt tRaDing incomE

net trading income includes realized gains and losses arising from trading in financial assets and 

liabilities and unrealized changes in fair value of these instruments.

DiviDEnDs 

Dividend income is recognized in the income statement on the date that the dividend is declared.

REntal incomE 

lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of total rental income.

othER non-intEREst incomE

revenue and income from the provision of services is recognized when the amount of income 

and the costs in connection with providing the services can be reliably measured as of the re-

porting date and by reference to the stage of completion.

income from the provision of advice to portfolio companies as well as income from the provision 

of it consulting services is recognized using the percentage of completion method. stage of 

completion is measured by reference to the labor hours incurred as of the reporting date as a 

percentage of total estimated labor hours for the respective consulting project. when the contract 

outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses 

incurred are recoverable. 

contingEnt assEts anD contingEnt liaBilitiEs

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will 

be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the group. A contingent liability may also be a present obligation 

that arises from past events but is not recognized as a provision because an outflow of resources 

is not probable or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be 

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 

wholly within the control of the group. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recor-

ded in the statement of financial position; they are disclosed in the notes to the financial state-

ments instead (see note 10).

non-cURREnt assEts hElD foR salE anD Disposal gRoUps

non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of 

their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. non-current assets and disposal groups 

are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale 

transaction rather than through continuing use. this condition is regarded as met only when the 

sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present 

condition, management has committed to the sale, and the sale is expected to have been comple-

ted within one year from the date of classification.

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the reporting period, and of the com-

parable period of the previous year, income and expenses from discontinued operations are repor-

ted separately from income and expenses from continuing operations, down to the level of profit 

after taxes, even when the group retains a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale. 

the resulting profit or loss (after taxes) is reported separately in the statement of comprehensive 

income.

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not de-

preciated or amortized.

refer to note 6.19 regarding discontinued operations assets held for sale for further discussion.

sEgmEnt REpoRting

operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 

the chief operating decision maker (“CoDm”). the chief operating decision maker is the person or 

group that allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating segments of an 

entity. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm´s length basis, with 

intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated in head office. income and expenses directly 

associated with each segment are included in determining business segment performance. in 

accordance with ifrs 8, the group has the following four operating segments (see also note 3): 

 — banking operations bancAbC

 — banking operations ubn

 — private equity Activities

 — supporting services

3. sEGMEnT rEpOrTinG

in 2013, ADC refined its strategy to focus more intently on the banking industry in sub-saharan 

Africa. ADC’s focus is on building a pan-African merchant banking group through regional banking 

platforms in order to benefit from the rapidly expanding retail, corporate and consumer banking ope-

rations on the continent. ADC will continue to manage a private equity business under the merchant 

banking platform to profit from existing and future proprietary investments. 
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1. banking operations bancAbC

the first time consolidation of bancAbC allows ADC to achieve full integration of the group’s core 

banking operations while accelerating the creation of a cross-border platform that will profit from 

regional trade and investment. bancAbC has corporate and retail operations in botswana, mozam-

bique, tanzania, Zambia and Zimbabwe.  

2. banking operations ubn

ADC, as part of a consortium of international investors, the union global partners limited (ugpl), 

has completed its investment in union bank of nigeria plc (“ubn”) together with partners with a 

wealth of experience including nigerian private equity fund African Capital Alliance (ACA), global 

financial services private equity firm Corsair Capital, the Dutch development bank fmo, international 

business group richard Chandler Corporation and global private equity investor standard Chartered 

private equity. in alignment with ADC’s strategy to become a pan-African banking group and due to 

ADC’s active role in the ugpl consortium, ubn is classified as a strategic associate that will be held 

long-term by ADC. ADC invested in ugpl via ADC enterprises ltd and ADC ventures ltd in 2012 

with a total holding of 14.74%. As stated in note 2.2 ADC ventures ltd is considered as a subsidiary 

under ifrs 10 (opposed to the accounting treatment as financial derivative in 2012) the segment 

banking operations ubn is affected by this in 2013 and in 2012 restated.

3. private equity Activities

ADC’s private equity business encompasses legacy proprietary shareholdings which the Company 

acquired before the re-focused strategy was implemented in 2012 from an investment company to 

a banking group. 

4. support services

the group’s support services comprise areas of activity such as identifying investment opportunities, 

monitoring the financial position and performance of group companies and portfolio companies, 

and providing them with professional support. in addition, strategic portfolio structuring is pursued, 

active risk management coordinated, capital-raising measures implemented, and relationships with 

investors maintained.

no operating segments have been combined to form the above reportable operating segments.

transactions between the business segments are carried out at arm’s length. the revenue from ex-

ternal parties reported to the group executive Committee is measured in a manner consistent with 

that in the consolidated income statement.

there were no banking revenues derived from transactions with a single external customer that 

amounted to 10% or more of the group’s revenues.

management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of ma-

king decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

Banking opERa-
tions pRivatE 

EqUity 
activi-

tiEs

sUp-
poRting 
sERvicEs

consoli-
Dation total2013 

EURk
BancaBc

Union 
Bank  

nigERia
Interest and similar income 173,016 0 689 108 -640 173,173

Interest and similar expense -81,604 -5,336 -649 -3,557 649 -90,497

Net interest income 91,412 -5,336 40 -3,449 9 82,676

Provision for credit losses -24,841 0 -502 0 425 -24,918

Net interest income after provision 
for credit losses

66,571 -5,336 -462 -3,449 434 57,758

Net fee and commission income 37,286 0 79 0 -27 37,338

Net gains (losses) on financial 
instruments designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

1,371 0 1,879 0 -1 3,249

Net trading income 16,538 0 -342 0 0 16,196

Net income (loss) from equity me-
thod investments

-359 14,857 0 0 -1 14,497

Other non-interest income 5,185 100 3,522 665 -3,889 5,583

Total Operating Income 126,592 9,621 4,676 -2,784 -3,484 134,621

Operating expenses -107,221 -421 -4,243 -4,792 1,321 -115,356

Profit / loss before tax from continu-
ing operations 

19,370 9,200 433 -7,576 -2,163 19,265

Income tax -6,688 0 -204 0 -26 -6,918

Profit / loss for the year from conti-
nuing operations 

12,682 9,200 229 -7,576 -2,188 12,348

profit after tax for the year from 
discontinued operations

0 0 157 0 0 157

Profit for the year 12,682 9,200 386 -7,576 -2,188 12,505

Cash and short term funds 191,025 102 3,479 6,512 -221 200,897

Financial assets held for trading 104,458 0 0 0 0 104,458

Financial assets designated at fair 
value

19,267 0 1 0 -7,814 11,454

Derivative financial instruments 2,291 0 330 0 0 2,621

Loans and advances 874,985 0 0 0 0 874,985

Investment securities 5,635 0 0 0 0 5,635

Other current assets 21,657 0 768 43 -39 22,429

Current tax assets 2,735 0 0 131 0 2,866

Investment in associates 1,104 66,810 4,420 0 0 72,334

Property, plant and equipment 67,040 0 0 9 -4,299 62,750

Other intangible assets and goodwill 51,906 0 0 35 -114 51,827

Deferred tax assets 9,340 0 0 0 0 9,340

Segment assets 1,351,443 66,912 8,998 6,730 -12,487 1,421,596

Non-current assets and disposal 
groups held-for-sale

0 0 10,777 0 0 10,777

Total assets 1,351,443 66,912 19,775 6,730 -12,487 1,432,373

Deposits 1,012,133 0 0 0 0 1,012,133

Derivative financial instruments 3,120 0 672 0 0 3,792

Creditors and accruals 24,529 20 1,021 3,069 25,325 53,964

Current tax liabilities 1,071 0 14 66 -14 1,137

Deferred tax liability 12,961 0 0 0 -801 12,160

Borrowed funds 150,480 37,852 0 37,986 0 226,318

Segment liabilities 1,204,294 37,872 1,707 41,121 24,510 1,309,504

Non-current liabilities and disposal 
groups held-for-sale

0 0 428 0 0 428

Total liabilities 1,204,294 37,872 2,135 41,121 24,510 1,309,933
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Banking opERa-
tions pRivatE 

EqUity 
activi-

tiEs

sUp-
poRting 
sERvicEs

consoli-
Dation total2012 restated1 

EURk
BancaBc

Union 
Bank  

nigERia
Interest and similar income 65,150 0 820 243 -848 65,365

Interest and similar expense -33,500 -2,253 -846 -2,000 846 -37,753

Net interest income 31,650 -2,253 -26 -1,757 -2 27,612

Provision for credit losses -8,133 0 0 0 0 -8,133

Net interest income after provision 
for credit losses

23,517 -2,253 -26 -1,757 -2 19,479

Net fee and commission income 16,878 0 0 0 0 16,878

Net gains (losses) on financial 
instruments designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

507 0 -13,204 0 0 -12,697

Net trading income 7,288 0 -4,718 0 0 2,570

Net income (loss) from equity me-
thod investments

-317 -539 0 0 0 -856

Other non-interest income 1,641 272 3,233 440 14,674 20,260

Total Operating Income 49,514 -2,520 -14,715 -1,317 14,672 45,634

Operating expenses -43,180 -2,581 -7,595 -4,646 757 -57,245

Reorganization expenses 0 0 0 -4,327 0 -4,327

Profit / loss before tax from continu-
ing operations 

6,334 -5,101 -22,310 -10,290 15,429 -15,939

Income tax -2,037 0 -4 17 -54 -2,078

Profit / loss for the year from conti-
nuing operations 

4,297 -5,101 -22,314 -10,273 15,375 -18,017

profit after tax for the year from 
discontinued operations

0 0 -863 0 0 -863

Profit for the year 4,297 -5,101 -23,177 -10,273 15,375 -18,880

Cash and short term funds 181,465 170 222 1,522 0 183,380

Financial assets held for trading 99,832 0 0 0 0 99,832

Financial assets designated at fair 
value

18,515 0 0 0 -7,814 10,701

Derivative financial instruments 3,296 0 0 0 0 3,296

Loans and advances 886,572 0 0 0 0 886,572

Investment securities 5,319 0 0 0 0 5,319

Other current assets 18,938 134 2,154 58 -7 21,277

Current tax assets 3,090 0 2 73 0 3,165

Investment in associates 1,093 54,696 19,094 0 0 74,883

Property, plant and equipment 69,495 0 447 26 -5,063 64,905

Other intangible assets and goodwill 69,247 0 1,657 51 -260 70,694

Deferred tax assets 8,225 0 425 0 0 8,650

Total assets 1,365,087 55,000 24,001 1,730 -13,144 1,432,673

Deposits 1,041,891 0 0 0 0 1,041,891

Derivative financial instruments 2,208 0 0 0 0 2,208

Creditors and accruals 29,392 301 3,028 3,486 36 36,243

Current tax liabilities 1,970 0 -19 66 0 2,018

Deferred tax liability 16,699 0 0 0 -827 15,871

Borrowed funds 124,672 34,086 0 36,909 0 195,667

Segment liabilities 1,216,832 34,387 3,009 40,461 -791 1,293,899

nEt intEREst incomE By gEogRaphical aREa

in EURk 2013 20121

Botswana 35,042 12,757

Mozambique 10,995 3,694

Tanzania 3,469 1,365

Zimbabwe 36,218 10,692

Zambia 7,255 3,139

Other -10,304 -4,036

Total 82,676 27,612

non-cURREnt assEts

in EURk 2013 2012

Botswana, Mozambique, Tanzania, Zimbabwe, Zambia 114,533 133,493

Rwanda 0 1,238

Mauritius 8 4

Germany 36 77

Total 114,577 134,812

non-current assets for this purpose consist of other intangible assets without goodwill and pro-

perty, plant and equipment.

4. BusinEss cOMBinaTiOns anD acQuisiTiOn Of 
nOn-cOnTrOLLinG inTErEsTs

acqUisitions in 2012

acqUisition of aDc managEmEnt sERvicEs limitED, cyBERcity, REpUBlic of maURitiUs 
(hEREaftER “aDc sERvicEs”) 

on 9 february 2012, the group acquired 100% of the voting shares of ADC serviCes. the fair 

value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of ADC services at the time of acquisition and the 

corresponding book values immediately prior to the time of acquisition are as follows:

1     the 2012 figures are restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition  
       effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.

the main consolidation entry relates to the release of negative goodwill from the first-time consolidation of bancAbC.

1     the 2012 figures are restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition  
       effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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in EURk faiR valUE

Receivables and other assets 17

Cash and cash equivalents 11

28

Liabilities 14

Net assets 14

Purchased net assets 14

Goodwill 23

Acquisition costs affecting cash: 37

Purchase price 37

Costs directly allocable to purchase 0

37

Purchased cash 11

Payment of purchase price (37)

Actual cash outflow (26)

the fair value of trade receivables amounts to eur 16k. the gross amount of trade receivables is 

eur 16k. however, none of the trade receivables have been impaired and it’s expected that the full 

amount can be collected. the goodwill recognized is not expected to be deductible for income tax 

purposes. 

ADC serviCes’s profit from the time of acquisition through 31 December 2012 amounts to euro 

43,719. ADC serviCes’s profit for fiscal year 2012 totaled euro 47,694 and sales revenues totaled 

euro 218,817. 

 

acqUisition of aBc holDings limitED, gaBoRonE, Botswana (hEREaftER “BancaBc”)

ADC’s accelerated strategy of becoming a pan-African banking group has taken a giant leap forward af-

ter ADC became majority shareholder in bancAbC. bancAbC concluded a rights issue in total amount 

of usD 50.0 million on 27 July 2012 (“closing date”). the group subscribed for 42,473,655 shares and 

become majority shareholder in bancAbC. the group gained control by holding 120,920,255 shares, 

equal to 51.98% of all voting shares in bancAbC. Accordingly, the group commenced consolidation 

of bancAbC as of 27 July 2012 based on a total equity interest of 51.98%.

DEscRiption of BancaBc’s BUsinEss activitiEs anD thE ExpEctED impact fRom thEiR intE-
gRation on thE gRoUp

AbC holdings limited is the parent company of a number of sub-saharan Africa banks operating 

under the bancAbC brand that offer a diverse range of financial services including personal, business 

and corporate banking as well as asset management, stockbroking and treasury services. guided 

by its core values of professionalism, people, innovation, passion and integrity, bancAbC is pursuing 

its vision be the preferred banking partner in Africa by offering world class financial solutions - to the 

benefit of all its stakeholders. bancAbC is realising this vision by building profitable, lifelong custo-

mer relationships through the provision of a wide range of innovative financial products and services. 

bancAbC has its primary listing on the botswana stock exchange and a secondary listing on the 

Zimbabwe stock exchange.

tREatmEnt of thE gRoUp’s invEstmEnt in BancaBc hElD at thE closing DatE

prior to obtaining control, the group directly held 25.94 % of the shares and voting rights of ban-

cAbC, giving it the ability to significantly influence bancAbC’s financial and operating policies. ADC 

recognized this investment at fair value pursuant to iAs 39 in accordance with the option in iAs 

28.18. upon initial recognition these assets were allocated to the “assets at fair value through profit 

or loss category”.

on 27 July 2012, the date when control over bancAbC was obtained, the group remeasured to 

fair value its existing investment (25.94% or 38,779,802 shares) in accordance with ifrs 3. the fair 

value of the investment was determined on the basis of the share price of 4.49 bwp (0.46 eur). 

Accordingly, as of closing date, the remeasurement resulted in a corresponding loss of eur 8.1m 

recognized in the group’s income statement within the line item “net gains (losses) on financial 

instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss” (note 5.5 and note 6.7.1).  

pURchasE pRicE allocation anD othER RElatED acqUisition-RElatED infoRmation

the following table summarizes the consideration transferred and it also details, as of 27 July 2012, 

the fair value amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed for the bancAbC, a non-controlling 

interest and (negative) goodwill acquired in the business combination.

faiR valUE of assEts acqUiRED anD liaBilitiEs assUmED as of thE acqUisition DatE

EURk faiR valUE

assEts

Intangible assets (Note 6.9) 77,411

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6.8) 66,187

Cash and short term funds 128,172

Financial assets 114,731

Loans and advances 832,348

Net working capital 18,875

Investment in associates 1,456

Current tax assets 1,859

Deferred taxes 6,885

1,247,924

liaBilitiEs

Financial liabilities (5,772)

Borrowed funds (Note 6.12) (126,098)

Deposits (950,369)

Tax liabilities (1,870)

Deferred taxes (17,521)

(1,101,630)

total iDEntifiaBlE nEt assEts at faiR valUE 146,294

non-controlling interests (71,167)

(negative) Goodwill arising on acquisition (17,096)

pURchasE consiDERation tRansfERRED 58,030
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5. nOTEs TO ThE incOME sTaTEMEnT

please note that 2013 and 2012 figures are not comparable as in 2012 only five months of AbC 

business is included whereas in 2013 12 months are consolidated into ADC group accounts. we 

refer to note 4 regarding the acquisition date of bancAbC as at 27 July 2012.

5.1 intEREst anD similaR incomE

EURk 2013 2012

Cash and short-term funds 5,877 1,658

Trading securities 6,036 3,611

Financial investments - held to maturity 329 152

Loans and advances at amortized cost 160,777 59,857

Other interest income 154 -2

173,173 65,276

Interest income on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 0 89

173,173 65,365

5.2 intEREst anD similaR ExpEnsE

EURk 2013 20121

Deposits -70,292 -25,924

Borrowed funds -20,179 -11,829

Securities lent and repurchase agreements -26 0

-90,497 -37,753

5.3 pRovision foR cREDit lossEs

EURk 2013 2012

Specific impairments -24,785 -8,133

Portfolio impairments -875 0

Total impairment charge (note 6.4.) -25,660 -8,133

Recoveries of loans and advances previously written off 742 0

-24,918 -8,133

the acquisition-date fair value corresponding to acquired loans and advances as derived by the 

group amounted to eur 832.3m, comprising both loans and advances to customers and to banks. 

the gross contractual amount of eur 865.1m above represents the best estimate for the contrac-

tual cash flows of the loans and advances to customers and to banks. 

As part of the preliminary purchase price allocation, the group recognized intangible assets of 

approximately eur 65.0m included in the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired. these 

amounts represented both intangible assets included in the balance sheet of bancAbC as well as 

those intangible assets which were identified in the purchase price allocation. the intangible as-

sets mainly comprise customer relationships (eur 14.2m), the bancAbC trademark (eur 20.1m) 

as well as intangible core deposits (eur 27.5m).

the net amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of the conside-

ration transferred resulting in a bargain purchase for the group. After reassessing and reviewing 

the procedures used to measure the amounts ifrs 3 requires to be recognized at the acquisition 

date, the group recognized a gain on a bargain purchase in amount of eur 17.1m (note 5.8).

from the time of acquisition through 31 December 2012, bancAbC contributed net interest in-

come of eur 31.9m and net income after tax of eur 11.2m to the income statement. if consolida-

tion had been effective as of January 1, 2012, bancAbC’s pro-forma contribution to the group’s net 

interest income and net income after tax in 2012 would have been eur 66.5m and eur 13.4m, 

respectively.

Acquisition-related costs borne by the group as the acquirer amounted to eur 0.2m which were 

recognized in operating expenses in the group’s income statement for 2012 (note 5.9). 

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

EURk

Cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activities) 128,172

Cash paid (included in cash flows from investing activities) -41,474

Net cash flow on acquisition 86,698

acqUisition of non-contRolling intEREsts

Rswitch ltD, RwanDa

 

in January 2012, the subsidiary rswitch executed a capital increase, to which ADC subscribed. 

by participating in this capital increase, ADC’s share in rswitch was increased from 70.0% to 

88.54%. the purchase price of eur 4,789k was mainly settled by converting ADC’s shareholder 

loan into equity (debt-to-equity-swap).

1     the 2012 interest expense figure for borrowed funds is restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial  
       statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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total impairment charges are presented as follows:

EURk 2013 2012

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 
loans and advances (note 6.4)

mortgage lending -53 0

instalment finance -856 674

corporate lending -20,618 -9,542

commercial and property finance 125 -56

consumer-lending -4,258 790

-25,660 -8,133

5.4 nEt fEE anD commission incomE

EURk 2013 2012

Net fee income on loans and advances 15,213 8,251

Net fee income on held-to-maturity investments 301 0

Net fee income from trust and fiduciary activities 10,860 827

Cash transaction fees 9,750 5,878

Other fee income 1,214 1,922

37,338 16,878

5.5 nEt gains (lossEs) on financial instRUmEnts DEsignatED at faiR valUE 

pRofit oR loss

EURk 2013 2012

Financial assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

1,371 506

Financial assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss option IAS 28.1/IAS 39

1,878 -13,203

3,249 -12,697

in 2013, net losses on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss include 

losses from changes in fair value of shares in associates classified as “assets at fair value through 

profit or loss” (iAs 39) in accordance with the option provided for in iAs 28.18 (note 6.7.1) in 

amount of eur 1,878k (prior year: eur 13,203k) and gains of financial instruments designated at 

fair value (note 6.3) in amount of eur 1,371k (prior year: eur 506k). 

5.6 nEt tRaDing incomE

EURk 2013 2012

Net (losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments -2,054 -5,721

Debt securities 0 1,402

Foreign exchange 14,631 6,889

Other net trading income 3,620 0

16,197 2,570

foreign exchange income includes gains and losses from spot and forward contracts and other 

currency derivatives.

5.7 nEt incomE (loss) fRom EqUity mEthoD invEstmEnts

the following are the components of the net income (loss) from all equity method instruments.

EURk 2013 20121

Pro-rata share of investees‘ net income (loss) 14,497 -856

5.8 othER non-intEREst incomE

EURk 2013 20122

Electronic payment services 0 0

Advisory services to portfolio companies 0 493

Dividend income:

listed shares - fair value through profit or loss 472 904

Gains/losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 0

Other non-interest income:

rental and other income 1,016 487

(loss)/profit on disposal of property and equipment 0 -5

non-trading foreign exchange 5 254

other non-interest income 4,086 1,030

Release of negative goodwill (note 4) 0 17,096

5,582 20,259

1     the 2012 interest expense figure for borrowed funds is restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial  
       statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
2     the 2012 figure is restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition  
       effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2 and as a result of reclassifications of comparative figures relating to discontinued operations, refer  
       note 6.19.
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5.9 opERating ExpEnsEs

EURk 2013 20121

Staff costs (note 5.9.1) -44,014 -18,666

Amortization and depreciation -17,341 -7,149

Rental expenses -8,266 -3,513

Travelling expenses -3,586 -1,831

Marketing espenses -4,874 -2,363

Administration expenses -35,447 -19,217

Other operating expenses -1,828 -4,506

-115,356 -57,245

5.9.1 staff costs

EURk 2013 20122

Staff costs

Salaries -43,477 -18,659

Incentive payments -370 0

compensation payments -26 0

-43,873 -18,659

Social costs -141 -7

-44,014 -18,666

the average number of employees in 2013 was 1,466 (prior year: 1,362). they were allocated to 

the following segments:

EURk 2013 2012

Holding 14 19

Operations:

Botswana 284 234

Mozambique 205 166

Rwanda 44 33

South Africa 65 57

Tanzania 212 135

Zambia 221 211

Zimbabwe 514 507

Quarterly Average 1,466 1,362

5.9.2 aUDitoR’s fEEs

the total fees charged for 2013 by the independent auditors of the consolidated financial state-

ments, broken down by type of service are as follows:

EURk 2013 2012

Audit services 129 288

Other attestation services 127 0

Tax advisory services 0 25

256 313

5.10 REoRganization ExpEnsEs

in november 2012, ADC simplified its corporate structure by taking over its general partner, ADC 

management gmbh from Altira Ag, and transformed its organizational structure from a private 

equity company (partnership limited by shares - gmbh & Co. kgaA) into a stock corporation (Ag), 

which was finalized on 26 July 2013.

5.11 incomE tax ExpEnsE

EURk 2013 2012

cURREnt tax ExpEnsE

Current year -11,080 -4,422

Under(over) provision in prior years 0 -55

Withholding tax -410 -141

Bank levies -11 -2

-11,501 -4,621

DEfERRED tax

Accruals 1,901 -15

Impairment losses -596 1,966

Property and equipment -769 391

Intangible Assets 1,608 703

Gains and investments -900 29

Tax losses 3,339 -531

4,583 2,542

Total tax expense per income statement -6,918 -2,078

1     the 2012 figure is restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition  
       effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2 and as a result of reclassifications of comparative figures relating to discontinued operations, refer  
       note 6.19.
2     the 2012 figure is restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of reclassifications 
      of comparative figures relating to discontinued operations, refer note 6.19.
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As in the prior year, the group’s income tax rate comprises the corporate income tax of 15.00% 

and the trade tax rate of 15.00%. 

the tax reconciliation explains the relationship between the effective tax expense and the im-

puted tax expense, which is calculated from the consolidated earnings (before income taxes) by 

using the group’s income tax rate of 30.00% (prior year: 30.00%):

EURk 2013 2012

IFRS earnings before income tax 19,265 (15,939)

Imputed tax income (group tax rate) (5,780) 4,782

Non-deductible expenses (512) (7,017)

Tax-free income 3,835 1,916

Tax incentives and tax dividend received (413) (300)

Changes in loss carryforwards, which cannot be used to reduce tax expense (2,470) (18)

Changes in tax rate (2,161) (1,104)

Tax losses of prior years claimed 583 (337)

Effective income taxes (current and deferred losses) (6,918) (2,078)

Effective Group tax rate -35.9 % -25.2 %

DEfERRED tax

in addition to deferred tax assets recognized for tax loss carryforwards, deferred tax assets and 

liabilities are also recognized for temporary differences in respect of the items shown below: 

2013 2012

EURk DEffERED 
tax assEts

DEfERRED 
tax liaBili-

tiEs

DEffERED 
tax assEts

DEfERRED tax 
liaBilitiEs

Tax loss carryforwards 8,624 0 6,151 0

Impairment allowance for loans and advances 2,810 0 3,765 0

Revaluation of financials instruments available-
for-sale

0 0 -983

Property, plant and equipment 0 633 0 0

Foreign currency translation reserve 0 622 0 0

Other temporary differences 3,197 16,197 1,303 14,285

Total (gross) 14,631 17,452 11,219 13,302

Netting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities

-5,291 -5,291 -2,569 2,569

Total (net) 9,340 12,161 8,650 15,871

the group has determined that undistributed profits and associates will not be distributed in the 

foreseeable future. the group’s associate ugpl did not distribute its profits until it obtains the 

consent from all consortium partners. the group does not foresee giving such a consent being 

given at reporting date. 

6. notEs to thE statEmEnt of financial position

6.1 cash anD shoRt tERm fUnDs 

this item includes all cash on hand and daily bank deposits, short-term deposits of up to three 

months, and amounts deposited in an escrow account. 

the fair value of cash and cash equivalents is equal to the recognized carrying amount.

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.20121

Cash on hand 22,726 26,712

Balances with central banks 2,355 17,020

Balances with other banks 117,238 86,518

142,319 130,250

Statutory reserve balances 58,579 53,130

200,898 183,380

statutory reserve balances are restricted minimum statutory balances not available for the ban-

king operation‘s daily operations. these balances do not accrue interest.

1   the 2012 figure is restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect  
    of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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6.2 othER financial assEts hElD foR tRaDing

othER financial assEts hElD foR tRaDing

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Government bonds 5,960 7,181

Corporate bonds 2,968 2,948

Treasury bills and other open market instruments 95,530 89,702

104,458 99,832

other financials assets held for trading are pledged as collateral in amount of eur 25.9m (prior 

year: eur 42.9m).

investment in government bonds and treasury bills by subsidiaries is partly for liquidity require-

ments as stipulated by local central banks and also as a source of diversification of the assets port-

folio. there are no cross-border investments in government securities by any of the subsidiaries 

and the holding company. the group also invests in tradeable paper issued by large corporates in 

the respective markets.

All financial assets held for trading are carried at fair value.

6.3 financial assEts DEsignatED at faiR valUE

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Listed equities 360 969

Unlisted equities 8,520 0

Listed debentures 2,575 2,655

Unlisted debentures 0 7,078

11,455 10,701

the listed equities comprise various counters listed on the Zimbabwe stock exchange that subsi-

diaries have invested in.

unlisted equities comprise of a number of unlisted equity investments housed in an investment 

company in the group. we refer to note 6.20 regarding the overview of valuation assumptions.  

  

the listed debentures comprise of an investment in 10% convertible debentures issued by pg 

industries (Zimbabwe) limited.

6.4 loans anD aDvancEs

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Mortgage lending 28,936 26,162

Instalment finance 55,574 54,802

Corporate lending 446,148 450,105

Commercial and property finance 4,453 5,277

Consumer lending 390,555 386,973

925,666 923,319

less: Allowance for impairments losses 50,682 36,746

Net loans and advances 874,985 886,572

impaiRmEnt allowancE foR loans anD aDvancEs 

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and advances, by market seg-

ment, is as follows:

coRpo-
RatE 

lEnDing

commER-
cial anD 

pRopERty 
financE

con-
sUmER 

lEnDing
total2013 

EURk

moRt-
gagE 

lEnDing

instal-
mEnt 

financE

Opening balance 115 1,589 29,580 139 5,324 36,746

exchange adjustment -15 -189 -3,506 -11 -739 -4,460

Charge for the year (note 5.3) 53 856 20,618 -125 4,258 25,660

Amounts wirtten off 0 -147 -6,909 0 -210 -7,265

Closing balance 153 2,109 39,783 2 8,634 50,682

Individual impairment 139 1,483 34,894 2 6,333 42,850

Collective impairment 15 626 4,889 1 2,301 7,832

153 2,109 39,783 2 8,634 50,682

Gross amount of loans individu-
ally determined to be impaired, 
before conducting the individually 
assessed impairment allowance

      

606 14,299 64,241 44 13,516 92,708
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the changes in impairment losses included in the allowances for losses on loans and advances 

recognized under assets were as follows:

spEcific allowancE foR 
cREDit  loss collEctivE impaiRmEnt total

EURk 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Allowance for credit 
losses as at 1 January

29,086 0 7,660 0 36,746 0

Additions from busi-
ness combinations

0 26,397 0 7,648 0 34,045

Additions 25,326 7,618 875 515 26,201 8,133

Utilisation -7,265 -3,200 0 0 -7,265 -3,200

Reversals 0 0

Exchange rate adjust-
ment

-4,297 -1,729 -704 -503 -5,001 -2,232

Balance as at 31 De-
cember

42,850 29,086 7,831 7,660 50,681 36,746

6.5 invEstmEnt sEcURitiEs

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Available-for-sale

unlisted equities 1,320 844

listed Equities 209 0

Held to maturity promissory notes 4,105 4,475

5,635 5,319

the investments in unlisted equities are accounted for at fair value. refer to fair value note under 

financial risk management for details.

the promissory notes are partial security for the loan from bifm (note 6.12.). the promissory 

notes earn a fixed interest of 10.25% p.a., and are redeemable on 31 march 2015.

6.6 othER cURREnt assEts anD cURREnt tax assEts

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.20121

Trade receivables 0 287

Inventories 0 310

Prepayments 19,571 15,127

Other assets 2,858 5,553

22,429 21,277

Current tax assets 2,866 3,165

25,295 24,442

6.7 invEstmEnts in associatEs

this item includes the interests in joint ventures and associates measured at fair value as well as 

strategic bank investments in accordance with the equity method.

EURk notE 31.12.2013 31.12.20122

Investments in associates measured in ac-
cordance with the equity method

6.7.2. 67,914 55,789

Investments in associates measured at fair value 
through profit or loss

6.7.1. 4,420 18,994

Joint ventures 6.7.3. 0 100

72,334 74,883

1   the 2012 figure is restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect  
     of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
2   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.



148 Consolidated annual FinanCial statements  ADC AnnuAl report 2013 149

As of the reporting date, the group held interests in the following associates:

 
cURREncy  

( lc)

 
assEts

(lck)

 
liaBilitiEs

(lck)

 
EqUity

(lck)
REsUlt

(lck)
REsUlt
(EURk)

 yEaR capital intE-
REst inDiREct %

Investments in associates measured in accordance with the 
equity method

1. Union Global Partners Limited, Mauritius1 2012 14.74 USD 490,565 442 490,123 (8,265) (6,182)

2. Lion of Tanzania Insurance Company Ltd., Tanzania1 2012 38.00 TZS 16,403,737 13,333,383 3,070,354 168,486 87

3. PG Industries (Botswana) Ltd., Botswana1 2012 42.00 BWP 59,698 54,322 5,376 (20,544) (2,033)

4. Credit Insurance Zimbabwe Limited, Zimbabwe1 2012 24.00 ZWD 5,093 2,102 2,991 459 346

Investments in associates measured at fair value through 
profit or loss

      

2. Resolution Health East Africa Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya1 2012 38.74 KES 1,173,913 911,044 262,869 58,176 529

2011 38.74 KES 760,188 664,926 95,262 (128,738) (1,150)

6.7.1 associatEs mEasURED at faiR valUE thRoUgh pRofit oR loss  

(ias 39 anD ias 28.18)

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 18,994 49,023

Additions 0 41,204

Disposals -9,000 0

Gain on disposal 1,408 0

Reclassification as BancABC became a subsidiary in 2012 0 -58,030

Reclassification as held-for-sale (Note 6.19) -7,446 0

Change in fair values 464 -13,203

Carrying amount at the end of the period 4,420 18,994

Disclosure of assets, liabilities and equity as well as profit for the year is based on the corresponding financial statements prepared in accor-
dance with national law.
1   At the time of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the annual audits 2013 of these companies’ financial statements had not  
     yet been concluded. As a result, the figures are based only on the audited financial statements 2012.

assoicatEs DEsignatED at faiR valUE thRoUgh pRofit oR loss (ias 39, ias 28.1)

EURk 31.12.2013 2012

BANGE 0 7,592

Brainworks 0 6,580

RHEAL 4,420 3,737

iVeri 0 734

evriPay 0 351

4,420 18,994

Banco nacional DE gUinEa EcUatoRial (BangE)

on 15 may 2013, ADC announced a successful exit from its 25% shareholding in banco nacional 

de guinea ecuatorial (bAnge) to co-shareholders in the bank. A purchase price of eur 9.0 million 

was agreed resulting in a revaluation gain of eur 1,408k.

REsolUtion hEalth East afRica ltD. (“RhEal”), naiRoBi, kEnya (hEREaftER RhEal)

rheAl’s application for a general insurance license in q1 2012 required the company to raise ca-

pital to meet the minimum capital requirement. ADC took up its right in the capital increase and 

invested eur 176k.  no additional capital was necessary for ADC to take up its rights in the capital 

increase. in 2010, ADC acquired a 25.1% interest in resolution health east Africa ltd. (“rheAl”), 
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nairobi, kenya, via a direct investment.  A further 13.64% share in rheAl is held via a controlled 

special purpose entity, proven track Corporation ltd. (“ptC”), gbl1, mauritius. in october 2012, 

ADC took 100% ownership in a vehicle (proven track Corporation, mauritius) that held a further 

13.64% stake in rheAl, which was previously capitalized by ADC debentures. ADC now holds 

a total equity stake of 38.74% in rheAl including its original 25.1% direct stake and the further 

13.64% indirect stake. with effect of 1 January 2013 proven track Corporation was amalgamated 

into ADC financial services & Corporate Development ltd. which held the total equity stake of 

38.74%. the interests in rheAl are recognized at a fair value of eur 4,420k (prior year: eur 

3,737k). 

6.7.2 stRatEgic Banking invEstmEnts mEasURED in accoRDancE with thE EqUity 

mEthoD

EURk 2013 20121

Carrying value at the beginning of the year 55,789 0

Additions from business combinations 0 1,364

Additions 435 55,220

Exchange rate adjustment -2,616 60

Share of profits (losses) 14,498 -856

Tax -144 1

Share of other comprehensive income 49 0

Impairment -97 0

67,914 55,789

Union gloBal paRtnERs limitED, maURitiUs (hEREaftER “Ugpl”)

in 2012, ADC enterprises purchased a 6.35% share and ADC ventures purchased a 8.39% share 

in union global partners limited (hereafter “ugpl” or “consortium”), mauritius. the consortium 

owns a majority stake of 61.4% in union bank of nigeria (herafter “ubn”). ADC plans to retain 

the interest on a long-term basis and to participate in the company’s operating earnings. for this 

reason, the share has been classified as a strategic bank investment. ubn is the fifth largest com-

mercial bank in nigeria and listed on the nigerian stock exchange (nse). As of the reporting date, 

the shares in ubn through ugpl are recognized in accordance with the equity method (iAs 28) in 

an amount of eur 66,810k (prior year eur 54,696k).

1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.

Name of the associate Union gloBal paRtnERs 
limitED

Principal place of business and country of incorporation Mauritius

Reporting date 31 December

Proportion of ownership 14.74%

Total no of equity shares

Shares held by ADC 69,617

LC USD

Par value (LC) 1

financial infoRmation foR thE associatE 2012 
in lck

2012 
in EURk

Current assets 1,191 902

Non-current assets 489,374 370,505

Current Liabilities -442 -335

Equity 490,123 371,072

Proportion of the group‘s equity ownership 14.74% 14.74%

Carrying amount of the investment 72,244 54,696

2012 
in lck

2012 
in EURk

Net operating income/loss -975 -729

Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets fair valued 0

through P&L -6,823 -5,104

Financing costs -467 -349

Profit or loss for the year -8,265 -6,182

Other comprehensive income 0 0

Total comprehensive income -8,265 -6,182

the associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2012 or 

2013.
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6.7.3 Joint vEntUREs

together with loita Capital partners international ltd., mauritius, ADC fs founded loita African 

Development Corporation ltd (“loita”), mauritius in July 2011. in 2013, the joint venture was 

closed down. As of the reporting date, the group held no interests in joint ventures. 

6.8 pRopERty, plant anD EqUipmEnt

2013 2012

EURk lanD anD 
BUilDings

othER 
EqUip-

mEnt
total lanD anD 

BUilDings

othER 
EqUip-

mEnt
total

Costs as of 1 January 43,287 24,474 67,761 0 1,461 1,461

Exchange adjustment (3,128) (3,019) (6,147) (2,911) (1,317) (4,228)

Aquisition from a subsidiary 
(note 4)

0 0 0 45,566 20,621 66,187

Additions 3,456 6,092 9,548 632 3,430 4,062

Disposals 0 (272) (272) 0 (297) (297)

Reclassifications 68 (1,435) (1,367) 0 576 576

Historic cost as of 31 December 43,684 25,839 69,523 43,287 24,474 67,761

Accumulated amortization and 
depreciation as of 1 January

(47) (2,809) (2,856) 0 (910) (910)

Exchange adjustment 414 1,136 1,550 28 277 305

Additions (1,895) (4,891) (6,786) (524) (2,176) (2,700)

Disposals 0 215 215 116 0 116

Reclassifications 0 1,103 1,103 333 0 333

Accumulated amortization and 
depreciation as of 31 December

(1,527) (5,246) (6,773) (47) (2,809) (2,855)

Carrying amount as of 1 January 43,240 21,665 64,905 0 551 551

Carrying amount as of 31 De-
cember

42,156 20,593 62,750 43,240 21,665 64,905

in 2013, there are no indications of a need to recognize impairment losses on property, plant and 

equipment in accordance with iAs 36. 

As before, there are no restrictions on disposal within the group, nor are property, plant and equip-

ment pledged as collateral for debts.

6.9 othER intangiBlE assEts anD gooDwill

2013

EURk tRaDE-
maRk

cUstomER 
RElation-

ship

coRE 
DEposits softwaRE gooD-

will total

Historical cost as of 1 January 20,121 14,227 27,514 13,459 787 76,108

Acquisition from a subsidiary 
(note 4)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Exchange adjustment (3,031) (2,143) (4,144) (2,167) 6 (11,478)

Additions 0 0 0 1,950 0 1,950

Reclassifications 0 0 0 233 (793) (560)

Historical cost as of 31 Decem-
ber

17,090 12,084 23,370 13,475 0 66,020

Accumulated amortization and 
depreciation as of 1 January

(838) (871) (1,442) (2,263) 0 (5,414)

Exchange adjustment 266 277 458 776 0 1,778

Amortization and deprecia-
tion

(1,849) (1,921) (3,180) (3,606) 0 (10,556)

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0

Accumulated amortization and 
depreciation as of 31 December

(2,421) (2,516) (4,163) (5,093) 0 (14,193)

Carrying amount as of 1 January 19,283 13,356 26,073 11,196 787 70,694

Carrying amount as of 31 De-
cember

14,669 9,568 19,207 8,382 0 51,827

2012

EURk tRaDE-
maRk

cUstomER 
RElation-

ship

coRE 
DEposits softwaRE gooD-

will total

Historical cost as of 1 January 0 0 0 1,177 838 2,015

Acquisition from a subsidiary 
(note 4)

21,461 15,174 29,347 11,429 23 77,434

Exchange adjustment (1,340) (947) (1,832) (1,144) (74) (5,338)

Additions 0 0 0 2,033 0 2,033

Reclassifications 0 0 0 (36) 0 (36)

Historical cost as of 31 Decem-
ber

20,121 14,227 27,514 13,459 787 76,108

Accumulated amortization and 
depreciation as of 1 January

0 0 0 (736) 0 (736)

Exchange adjustment 12 12 20 (7) 0 37

Amortization and deprecia-
tion

(850) (884) (1,462) (1,651) 0 (4,847)

Reclassifications 0 0 0 132 0 132

Accumulated amortization and 
depreciation as of 31 December

(838) (871) (1,442) (2,262) 0 (5,413)

Carrying amount as of 1 January 0 0 0 441 838 1,279

Carrying amount as of 31 De-
cember

19,282 13,356 26,072 11,197 787 70,694
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gooDwill

the goodwill acquired from the business combination with rswitch (formerly simtel) amounting 

to eur 793k (prior year: eur 787k) was allocated to the cash-generating unit “electronic pay-

ment” for impairment testing. 

As rswitch is considered as a discontinued operation the goodwill is reclassified and disclosed as 

non-current assets and disposal group held-for-sale (note 6.19).

othER intangiBlE assEts

the carrying amount of other intangible assets as of 31 December 2013 of eur 51,827k (prior 

year: eur 69,907k) reflected mainly intangible assets related to the acquisitions of bancAbC and 

amortization expense of eur 10,385k (prior year: eur 4,847k). 

in 2013 test for triggering events resulting in impairment of other intangible assets were perfor-

med at the level of cash generating units of bancAbC, covering the banks operations in botswana, 

Zimbabwe, mozambique and Zambia, which include intangible assets with definite useful life 

(trademark, customer relationships, core deposit intangibles). the individual asset’s fair value less 

costs to sell of these assets cannot be determined and the individual assets do not generate cash 

inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or other groups of assets. ADC 

performed a number of tests for indications for impairment. As a result an indication of potential 

impairment due to an increased cost of equity and substantially lower revenues and (non-) interest 

income was only found for the Cgu mozambique. Closer analysis for Cgu mozambique revealed 

no indication for an impairment based on a range of reasonable valuation assumptions. however, 

the headroom above an (potential) impairment is only small and even a slight change in assump-

tions would imply impairment. 

the useful lives of other amortized intangible assets by asset class are as follows:

UsEfUl livEs in yEaRs

Software and licences up to 5 years

Trademarks up to 10 years

Customer relationships up to 10 years

Core deposits up to 10 years

Other up to 5 years

Amortization of intangible assets is included in the operating expenses (note 5.9).

6.10 DEfERRED tax

of the deferred tax assets recognized as of the reporting date, an amount of eur 8,624k (prior 

year: eur 6,150k) relates to deferred taxes in connection with recoverable tax loss carryforwards 

(note 5.11). these unused tax losses can be carried forward for a period of five years. in the fiscal 

year, deferred taxes of eur 3,339k attributable to tax loss carryforwards were recognized in profit 

or loss. in the prior year, the deferred taxes recognized in profit or loss were negative and amoun-

ted to eur 531k (prior year: eur 78k).

the deferred tax assets mainly relate to tax losses in AbCh holdings limited (eur 2.7m, prior 

year: eur 1.8m), second nominees Zimbabwe (eur 0.5m, prior year: eur 2.0m), bancAbC tan-

zania (eur 2.6m, prior year: eur 1.8m).

no deferred tax assets were recognized on unused tax losses of eur 38,668k (prior year: eur 

29,287k) at ADC Ag as well as of eur 20,745k (prior year: eur 11,057k) at subsidiaries, as it is as-

sumed that it will probably not be possible to utilize them at the relevant group companies within 

a forecast period of five years. 

the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced if it is 

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of a 

deferred tax asset can be utilized in full or in part. Conversely, deferred taxes are recognized when 

their future usability is probable. 

Deferred tax liabilities mainly relate to temporary differences arisen in a business combination 

with bancAbC (note 5.11 and note 4).

Deferred tax liabilities for tax payments on possible future distributions of retained earnings of the 

subsidiaries were not recognized provided these profits are required in the long-term to finance 

the relevant subsidiary.

6.11 DEposits

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.2012

Deposits

Deposits from banks 117,866 104,206

Deposits from other customers 894,268 937,685

1,012,133 1,041,891

Payable on demand

Corporate customers 183,438 171,748

Public Sector 27,849 37,870

Retail Customers 83,176 76,994

Other financial institutions 22,065 43,640

Banks 31,398 9,942

347,926 340,194

Term deposits

Corporate customers 188,934 247,539

Public sector 233,002 248,635

Retail customers 40,602 20,467

Other financial institutions 115,202 90,791

Bank 86,467 94,264

664,207 701,697

Geographical analysis

Botswana 377,522 403,977

Mozambique 192,450 136,320

Tanzania 107,646 112,040

Zambia 95,719 77,376

Zimbabwe 238,795 312,177

1,012,133 1,041,891
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6.12 BoRRowED fUnDs

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.20121

Convertible bond 0 9,560

Other borrowed funds 188,332 149,198

Bond with warrants attached 37,986 36,909

226,318 195,667

6.12.1 convERtiBlE BonD

During 2011, the bancAbC issued a us Dollar denominated convertible loan to international fi-

nance Corporation (ifC) for us$13.5 (eur 10.2 million). the loan attracted interest of 6 months 

libor +3.75% per annum, payable semi-annually and it is convertible at ifC‘s option. 

on 22 August 2012, the bancAbC modified the loan into a botswana pula denominated loan. the 

present value of the new cash flows discounted at the previous effective interest rate were not 

materially different from those of the old loan and therefore the loan was not de-recognized but 

the effective interest rate was adjusted for this difference in cash flows. the equity component of 

the loan, derived as the difference between the fair value of the combined instrument and the fair 

value of the loan, was transferred to equity. the revised loan attracts interest at the 91-day bank of 

botswana Certificate yield rate + 4.10% per annum, payable quarterly and it is convertible at ifC’s 

option at bwp3.24 per share at any time up to 12 may 2013. 

ifC converted their loan as at 25 April 2013 into equity. on 27 may 2013, ADC’s subsidiary, ban-

cAbC, has announced the allotment of 24,080,230 ordinary shares to the international finance 

Corporation (ifC), a member of the world bank group, upon the conversion of a convertible loan 

of bwp 78.0 million (eur 7.0 million).

EURk 2013 2012

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,560 7,838

Additions 0 0

Additions from acquisitions through business combinations 0 8,259

Disposal - conversion 0 -100

Reclassification 0 -7,738

Interest expense 461 1,500

Capital repayment -2,438 0

Conversion into equity -6,594 0

Interest paid -215 -528

Exchange rate movement -774 330

0 9,560

6.12.2 othER BoRRowED fUnDs

EURk 31.12.2013 31.12.20121

National Development Bank of Botswana Limited 5,569 9,251

BIFM Capital Investment Fund One (Pty) Ltd. 21,252 31,301

Afrexim Bank 68,124 30,649

Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited 0 11,401

Deutsche Bank 17,976 0

NORSAD 10,921 0

Other  64,490 66,595

188,332 149,198

Fair value

National Development Bank of Botswana Limited 5,598 9,516

BIFM Capital Investment Fund One (Pty) Ltd. 30,183 39,243

Afrexim Bank 68,186 31,151

Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited 0 11,401

Deutsche Bank 20,304 0

NORSAD 12,462 0

Other 72,749 66,595

209,482 157,906

national DEvElopmEnt Bank of Botswana limitED (nDB)

the loan from national Development bank of botswana is denominated in Japanese yen and 

attracts interest at 3.53%. principal and interest is payable semi-annually on 15 June and 15 De-

cember. the loan matures on 15 December 2016.

Bifm capital invEstmEnt fUnD onE (pty) ltD

the loan from bifm Capital investment fund one (pty) ltd is denominated in botswana pula and 

attracts interest at 11.63% per annum, payable semi-annually.

the redemption dates for the principal amount are as follows:

 — 30 september 2017 – bwp 62,500,000 (eur 6.1 million)

 — 30 september 2018 – bwp 62,500,000 (eur 6.1 million)

 — 30 september 2019 – bwp 62,500,000 (eur 6.1 million)

 — 30 september 2020 – bwp 62,500,000 (eur 6.1 million)

1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.

1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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afRExim Bank limitED

the loans from Afrexim bank limited consist of us $60 million advanced to AbC holdings limited 

(AbCh) and us $40 million advanced to AbC Zimbabwe limited. the us $60 million short-term 

credit facility was advanced to AbCh in July 2013.  the loan attracts interest at 3 months libor + 

5% and it is repayable on 10 January 2014, but with a provision to extend it for a further, mutually 

agreeable period.

the us $40 million trade finance facility availed to AbC Zimbabwe is on a one year renewable 

basis by Afrexim bank limited from December 2013.  it attracts interest at libor + 4% and it is 

repayable on the earlier of when the underlying customers funded repay their respective loans or 

within one year, but with a provision to extend it for a further one year period.

noRsaD financE limitED

the loans from norsad finance limited were advanced to AbC holdings limited (AbCh) as well 

as bancAbC Zambia and bancAbC Zimbabwe.  the us $10 million loan advanced to AbCh is a 

subordinated loan denominated and attracts interest at 6 months libor + 7.5%.  interest is pa-

yable semi-annually on 30 June and 31 December.  the loan matures on 9 october 2020 when 

the full principal amount is due for repayment in one instalment.  the loans advanced to bancAbC 

Zambia and bancAbC Zimbabwe are also denominated in us dollars and attract interest of bet-

ween 7% and 12% per annum and they mature between 2014 and 2015.

othER BoRRowings

other borrowings relate to medium to long term funding from international financial institutions 

for onward lending to bancAbC clients. fair value is equivalent to carrying amounts as these bor-

rowings have variable interest rates.

6.12.3 BonD with waRRants attachED

effective 1 June 2013, ADC issued a bond with warrants attached with a term of three years and 

a nominal value of eur 40.0 million, divided into 400,000 bearer bonds of eur 100.00 each. each 

bond is initially linked to 5 warrants issued by ADC. the 2,000,000 warrants are detachable and 

entitle their holders to acquire 2,000,000 no-par-value bearer shares in ADC with a notional share 

in its issued capital of eur 1.00 per share subject to payment of the exercise price. the exercise 

price stands at eur 14.00 per share. the warrant holders may exercise their options from 1 June 

2013 until 31 may 2015. the bond with warrants attached has a nominal coupon of 6% p.a. the 

proceeds of the issue will particularly be used to acquire shares in bancAbC. the bonds were ini-

tially recognized at their fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest 

method. the warrants were classified as equity instruments and measured at their fair value of 

eur 1,862k as of the date of issue. they are reported within the capital reserve under the item 

“other equity movements”. the shares in bancAbC and the proceeds from the sale of these sha-

res have been pledged as collateral for the bond with warrants attached.

the bond with warrant attached is reflected with carrying amount of eur 37,986k (prior year: eur 

36,909k).

both interest expenses allocable to the nominal amount eur 2,400k (prior year: eur 1,416k) and 

compounding expenses eur 1,077k (prior year: eur 583k) have been recognized under interest 

and similar expense. 

EURk 2013 20121

Maturity analysis

On demand to one month 44,375 227

One to three months 1,743 4,010

Three months to one year 6,529 75,949

Over one year 173,670 115,480

226,318 195,667

6.13 cREDitoRs anD accRUals

EURk 2013 20121

Trade and other payables 84 5,276

Other current liabilitites 32,657 14,038

Accruals and provisions 21,223 16,929

53,964 36,243

cREDitoRs anD accRUals

trade payables and other liabilities are measured at amortized cost. Cost essentially corresponds 

to fair values. liabilities are non-interest bearing and are due within one year.

on 19 December 2013, ADC made a mandatory offer to non-controlling shareholders of bancAbC 

at a price of usD 0.60 per share on the Zimbabwe stock exchange and the exchange rate equi-

valent of bwp 5.05 for shareholders listed on the botswana register. the mandatory offer led to 

a liability to the group recognized at 31 December 2013 in amount of eur 25,430 under other 

current liabilities (note 6.15).  

accRUals 

EURk 2013 2012

As of 1 January 16,929 247

Exchange adjustment (1,651) 583

Additions 21,223 8,171

Additions from business combinations 0 9,342

Utilization (15,278) (243)

Reversal 0 (5)

As of 31 December 21,223 16,929

1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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6.14 DERivativE financial instRUmEnts

the table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or lia-

bilities together with their notional amounts. the notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount 

of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in 

the value of derivatives are measured. the notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions 

outstanding at the year-end are indicative of neither the market nor the credit risk.

2013 2012

EURk assEts liaBili-
tiEs

notional 
amoUnt assEts liaBili-

tiEs
notional 
amoUnt

Derivatives held for trading

Forward foreign exchange 
contracts - held for trading

2,291 172 81,387 2,426 272 102,968

Derivatives designated at fair 
value through profit or loss

Equity derivative 0 2,218 4,987 0 1,936 1,936

Call-/Put option agreement 330 672 6,334 0 0 0

Cross-currency interest rate 
swaps

0 0 0 0 0 0

Derivatives used as fair value 
hedges

Cross-currency interest rate 
swaps

0 730 5,569 870 0 9,251

2,621 3,792 98,276 3,296 2,208 114,155

DERivativEs hElD foR tRaDing

Forward Foreign exchange contract

the notional amounts of outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at 31 December 2013 

were eur 81.4 million (2012: eur 103.0m). these result in derivative financial assets of eur 2.3m 

(2012: eur 2.4m) and derivative financial liabilities of eur 0.2 million (2012: eur 0.3m).

DERivativEs DEsignatED at faiR valUE thRoUgh pRofit oR loss

equity derivative

this comprises of an equity derivative on an unlisted energy company of eur 2.2m (2012: eur 

1.9m).  

call-/put option agreement

ADC has agreed to grant the call holder the irrevocable right to exercise the call option during the 

call option period. the call option price payable by the call holder to the call grantor for the equity 

shares will be equal to usD 8.7m. the call option is fair valued at eur 0.3m. the put grantor ag-

reed ADC as the put holder the irrevocable right to exercise the put option during the put option 

period. the put option price payable by the put grantor to the put holder for all equity shares will 

be equal to usD 8.7m. the put option is measured with a negative fair value of eur 0.7m.

faiR valUE hEDgEs

cross-currency interest rate swaps

fair value hedges are used by the bank to protect it against changes in the fair value of financial 

assets and financial liabilities due to movements in exchange rates and interest rates. the financial 

instruments hedged for interest rate risk include fixed rate loans, available-for-sale debt securities, 

fixed rate debt issued and other borrowed funds. the bank uses currency swaps to hedge against 

specifically identified currency risks, and interest rate swaps and interest rate futures to hedge 

interest rate risk. the bank’s fair value hedge relationships principally are forward exchange con-

tracts to hedge various foreign currency exposures and interest rate and currency swaps to hedge 

against loans taken out in foreign currency at specific interest rates.

gains or losses due to changes on fair value hedges for the year:

EURk 2013 2012

Gain/(losses) on:

Hedged instruments -1,712 -1,035

Hedged items attributable to the hedged rist 1,712 1,035

Hedged ineffectiveness recognized immediately in income statement 0 0

the cumulative fair value adjustments on hedged items designated as fair value hedges as at 31 

December are included in the following balance sheet items:

EURk 2013 2012

Loans and advances to customers 0 0

Debt issued and other borrowed funds 5,569 9,251

5,569 9,251

hEDgE of nEt invEstmEnt in foREign opERations

the bank hedges part of the currency risk of its net investment in foreign operations using curren-

cy borrowings and forward foreign exchange contracts.

 

included in debt issued and other borrowed funds at 31 December 2013 was a borrowing of eur 

20.3m (bwp 244.9m). in addition the aggregate notional amount of forward foreign exchange 

contracts was eur nil million, all of which has been designated as a hedge of the bank’s net 

investment in bancAbC Zimbabwe, and is being used to hedge the bank’s exposure to foreign 

exchange risk on those investments. 

gains or losses on the retranslation of this borrowing due to exchange rate risk are transferred to 

equity to offset any gains or losses on translation of the net investments in the subsidiaries.  

1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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no ineffectiveness from hedges of net investments in foreign operations was recognized in profit or 

loss during the year. 

6.15 EqUity

issUED capital

issued capital is stated at nominal value. the Company’s issued capital (share capital) amounts to 

eur 9,467,440.00 and is divided 9,467,440 shares each with a nominal value of eur 1.00.

on 30 July 2013, ADC registered a capital increase, increasing the share capital of eur 8,606,764 

through the partial utilization of existing authorized capital by almost 10%, issuing 860,676 new 

registered shares reaching a share capital of eur 9,467,440.

Authorized capital
on 17 January 2013 the extraordinary general meeting of the Company resolved the cancellation 

of the Authorized Capital i/2013 amounting to eur 3,442,706.00. simultaneously the manage-

ment board was authorized, subject to the approval of the supervisory board, to increase the 

issued share capital of the Company in one or more tranches up to 13 August 2018 by an amount 

of up to eur 4,303,382.00 by the issue of up to 4,303,382 (in words: four million, three hundred 

and three thousand and three hundred and eighty-two) new ordinary registered shares against 

cash or non-cash contributions (Authorized Capital ii/2013).

Conditional capital
the Annual general meeting of the Company on 14 August 2013 resolved the increase of issued 

share capital by up to eur 860,000.00 by the creation of 860,000 ordinary registered shares 

(Conditional Capital iii/2013). the conditional capital serves to ensure the issue of shares under 

subscription rights to be issued under the authority of the Annual general meeting of 14 August 

2013 under a new stock option plan (“stock option plan 2013”) in the acquisition period. the 

conditional capital will only be issued if, and to the extent that, the holders of these stock options 

exercise their option rights to purchase shares in the Company and the Company does not issue 

the holders with own shares for this purpose.

capital REsERvE 

the increase in 2013 of eur 7,362k mostly relates to the capital increase as of 30 July 2013.  

 

foREign cURREncy tRanslation REsERvE

the translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences from the translation of the fi-

nancial statements of foreign operations as well as the effective portion of any foreign currency 

differences arising from hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (note 6.14). 

availaBlE-foR-salE REsERvE

the fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale 

financial assets, until the assets are derecognized or impaired.

othER capital REsERvEs

other capital reserves are free distributable reserves. 

non-contRolling intEREsts (nci)

the following table summarizes the information to each of ADC’s subsidiaries that has material 

nCi before any intra-group eliminations.

EURk

31 DEcEmBER 2013

gRoUp sUB-
siDiaRy nci 

pERcEntagE

BancaBc 
52.93

intRa-gRoUp 
Elimina-

tions
total

assEts

Cash and short term funds 191,025

Financial assets held for trading 104,458

Financial assets designated at fair value 21,683 -8,029

Derivative financial assets 2,291

Loans and advances 874,985

Investment securities 5,635

Prepayments and other receivables 21,691 -34

Current tax assets 2,735

Investment in associates 1,104

Property and equipment 62,741

Intangible assets 10,777

Deferred tax assets 9,340

Total assets 1,308,465

liaBilitiEs

Deposits 1,012,133

Derivative financial liabilities 3,120

Creditors and accruals 24,529

Current tax liabilities 1,071

Deferred tax liability 1,753

Borrowed funds 145,848

Total liabilities 1,188,454

Net assets 120,011

Carrying amount of NCI 63,522 -8,063 55,459
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EURk

1 JanUaRy 
2013 to 

31 DEcEmBER 
2013

intRa-gRoUp 
Elimina-

tions
total

Interest and similar income 173,016

Interest and similar expense -82,390

Net interest income 90,627

Provision for credit losses -29,419

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 61,207

Non-interest income 62,081 (2,613)

Net income from equity method instruments -359

Total operating Income 122,929

Operating expenses -100,146

Result before tax 22,783

Income tax expense -7,143

Result for the year 15,640

OCI 8,817

Total comprehensive 24,457

Profit allocated to NCI 13,939 -2,613 11,326

OCI allocated to NCI -1,878

Cash flows from operating activities -19,942

Cash flows from investing activities -11,784

Cash flows from financing activities 45,629

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 13,903

on 31 may 2013, the group’s equity interest in bancAbC decreased from 51.98% to 47.07%.

on 19 December 2013, ADC made a mandatory offer to all bancAbC non-controlling shareholders 

at a price of usD 0.60 per share on the Zimbabwe stock exchange and the exchange rate equi-

valent of bwp 5.05 for shareholders listed on the botswana register. shareholders owning 23% 

of the share capital of bancAbC indicated that they would not accept the mandatory offer, seeing 

higher potential in bancAbC’s future business and share price. 

the mandatory offer led to a liability to the group recognized at 31 December 2013 in amount of 

eur 25,430k under other current liabilities (note 6.13).  

on 17 January 2014, the mandatory offer was closed, with an uptake of 10,199,154 shares, equa-

ling 4% of the shares outstanding in bancAbC. As a result of the mandatory offer, ADC increased 

its controlling position from 50.1% to 54.1%, which includes aligned partners in pooling agree-

ments. we refer to further explanations provided in the group management report (exhibit 7).

EURk

31 DEcEmBER 2012

gRoUp sUB-
siDiaRy nci 

pERcEntagE

BancaBc 
48.02

intRa-gRoUp 
Elimina-

tions
total

assEts

Cash and short term funds 181,465

Financial assets held for trading 99,831

Financial assets designated at fair value 18,515 -7,814

Derivative financial assets 3,296

Loans and advances 892,458

Investment securities 5,319

Prepayments and other receivables 18,938

Current tax assets 3,090

Investment in associates 1,093

Property and equipment 64,303

Intangible assets 13,581

Deferred tax assets 6,709

Total assets 1,308,598

liaBilitiEs

Deposits 1,041,891

Derivative financial liabilities 2,208

Creditors and accruals 1,970 -216

Current tax liabilities 1,725

Deferred tax liability 118,363

Borrowed funds 0

Total liabilities 1,188,454

Net assets 120,144

Carrying amount of NCI 57,693 -8,030 49,663
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EURk

1 JanUaRy 
2012 to 

31 DEcEmBER 
2012

intRa-gRoUp 
Elimina-

tions
total

Interest and similar income 65,149

Interest and similar expense -33,840

Net interest income 31,309

Provision for credit losses -2,165

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 29,144

Non-interest income 26,180

Net income from equity method instruments -317

Total operating Income 55,006

Operating expenses -39,929

Result before tax 15,077

Income tax expense -4,331

Result for the year 10,746

OCI -18

Total comprehensive 10,729

Profit allocated to NCI 5,011 0 5,011

OCI allocated to NCI 312

Cash flows from operating activities 56,800

Cash flows from investing activities -5,773

Cash flows from financing activities 4,974

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 56,001

6.16 fUnDs UnDER managEmEnt

EURk 2013 2012

50,820 41,659

the group provides asset management and unit trusts activities to pension funds, individuals, 

trusts and other institutions, whereby it holds and manages assets. the group receives a ma-

nagement fee for providing these services. the group is not exposed to any credit risk relating to 

such placements.

6.17 EmployEE BEnEfits

the group uses a combination of externally administered defined contribution schemes and, 

where there is a mandatory requirement, state social security schemes. both the employee and 

employer contribute to these schemes. the group does not operate any defined benefit scheme.

Amounts recognized in expenses have been disclosed in note 5.9.

6.18 shaRE-BasED paymEnts

stock option pRogRam foR EmployEEs anD mEmBERs of thE managEmEnt BoaRD of aDc 
afRican DEvElopmEnt coRpoRation ag (sop 2013)

the Annual general meeting of ADC African Development Corporation Ag resolved on August 14, 

2013 that the management board shall be authorized with the approval of the supervisory board 

to issue up to 860,000 stock options with subscription rights for shares of ADC with a term of up 

to five years by December 31, 2015 („issuance period“), in accordance with the more detailed 

stipulations of the following provisions within the scope of a „stock option plan 2013“, on the con-

dition that each stock option shall grant the right to the subscription of one share of the Company 

(hereinafter referred to as „stock options“ or „options“ or „option rights“).

the stock option plan is intended for select employees of ADC and select employees of ADC‘s 

affiliates, as well as the members of ADC‘s executive management and the members of the exe-

cutive management of ADC‘s affiliates.

the fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using a binomial option pricing 

model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted. 

however, the above performance condition is only considered in determining the number of inst-

ruments that will ultimately vest.

the contractual term of each option granted is five years. there are no cash settlement alternati-

ves. the group does not have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options.

the share options vest if and when the group’s eps increase by 10% higher than the exercise pri-

ce in the five trading days before the start of the exercise period in which the option is exercised. 

the share options granted will not vest if the eps performance condition is not met.

the exercise price for one ADC Ag share is 100% of the basis price. the basis price is eur 9.00 

per registered no-par share of ADC Ag.

the following table list the inputs to the model used for the sop 2013 for the year ended 31 De-

cember 2013: 

in % 2013

Dividend yield (in %) 0

Expected volatility (in %) 22.31

Risk-free interest rate (in %) 7.89

Expected life of the option (years) 9

Weighted average share price (EUR) 8.98

Model used Binomial
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the following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (weAp) of, and 

movements in, share options during the year:

2013

nUmBER wEap

Outstanding at 1 January  -    -   

Granted during the year  344.000    9   

Forfeited during the year  -    -   

Exercised during the year  -    -   

Expired during the year  -    -   

Outstanding at 31 December  344.000    9   

Exercisable at 31 December  -    -   

the weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was eur 4.84.

sEnioR managEmEnt aBch option pRogRam (aBch op)

ADC as a significant shareholder of bancAbC granted at 25 June 2012 to the senior management 

of bancAbC the option to purchase option shares of bancAbC, exercisable during the option peri-

od at the option price. the exercise price of the options is as follows:

 — usD 0.72 per option share, if the option is exercised at any time to 31 

may 2013

 — usD 0.86 per option share, if the option is exercised at any time bet-

ween 1 June 2013 and 31 may 2014

 — usD 1.04 per option share, if the option is exercised at any time bet-

ween 1 June 2014 and 31 may 2015

the fair value of the options is estimated at the grant date using binominal pricing model, taking 

into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. the following 

table lists the inputs to the model used for the equity-settled options: 

2013 2012

Dividend yield (in %) 4,27 4,27

Expected volatility (in %) 10 20

Risk-free interest rate (in %) 0,261 0,261

Expected life of the option (years) 1,9 2,68

the group assumes that all share options within the option period will be exercised. 

the expected life of the option is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may oc-

cur. the expected volatility reflects the assumption that historical volatility is indicative of future 

trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. no other features of options grants 

were incorporated in the measurement of fair value.

the total expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions recognized for 

employee services received is eur 10k (2012: nil)

6.19 DiscontinUED opERations anD assEts hElD foR salE

6.19.1 DiscontinUED opERations (Rswitch ltD.)

in q4 2013, the board of Directors decided to sell the shares of rswitch, a 88.54% owned sub-

sidiary. 

the operations of rswitch have been classified as a discontinued operation held for sale. the 

business of rswitch was included in the operating segment private equity Activities. 

the sale of shares in rswitch is expected to be completed in the first half of 2014. At 31 Decem-

ber 2013, rswitch was classified as a disposal group held for sale and as a discontinued operation. 

the profit of rswitch for the year is presented below:

EURk 2013 2012

Interest expense (124) 0

Non-interest income 2,659 2,118

Operating expenses (2,378) (2,981)

Gross Profit 157 (863)

Impairment loss recognised on the re-measurement to fair value less costs to sell 0 0

Profit / loss before tax from a discontinued operation 157 (863)

Tax income:

Related to current pre-tax profit/(loss) 0 0

Related to measurement to fair value less costs of disposial (defered tax) 0 0

Profit / loss for the year from a discontinued operation 157 (863)

the comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and oCi has been restated to show the 

discontinued operations separately from discontinued operations.

EUR 2013 2012

Earnings per share:

Basic/diluted, profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operation
0.02 -0.10
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the major classes of assets and liabilities of rswitch classified as held for sale as at 31 December 

are, as follows: 

EURk 2013

assEts

Intangible Assets 1,402 

Property, plant and equipment 323 

other current assets 1,032 

Cash and short-term deposits 184 

Deferred tax assets 391 

Assets classified as held for sale 3,332 

liaBilitiEs

Creditors 428

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 428

Net assets directly assiciated with disposal group 2,904

Included in OCI:

Foreign exchange reserve 115

Reserve of disposal group classified as held for sale 115

The net cash flows incurred by RSwitch are, as follows:

Operating 50

Investing (135)

Financing 190

Net cash (outflow)/inflow 105

immediately before the classification of rswitch as a discontinued operation, the recoverable 

amount was estimated for certain items of property, plant and equipment and no impairment loss 

was identified. 

As at 31 December 2013, there was no further write-down as the carrying amount of the disposal 

group did not fall below its fair value less costs to sell.

6.19.2 assEts hElD foR salE

ADC management decided in november and December 2013 to exit their investments in iveri, 

everipay and brainworks Capital management. An active program to locate a buyer and complete 

the sale plan has been initiated. As such, the sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a com-

pleted sale within one year from the date of classification.

the non-recurring fair value measurement for the assets held for sale of eur 7,446k has been 

categorized as follows:

2013

EURk

associatEs hElD foR salE

caRRying 
amoUnt

qUotED 
pRicEs

lEvEl 1

significant 
oBsERvaBlE 

inpUts
lEvEl 2

significant 
inoBsERvaB-

lE inpUts
lEvEl 3

total at 
faiR valUE

iVeri 1,000 1,000 0 0 1,000

evriPay 126 126 0 0 126

Brainworks Capital Manage-
ment

6,320 6,320 0 0 6,320

7,446 7,446 0 0 7,446

the fair values determined for above mentioned associates held for sale are within the range of 

offers on hand exchanged between knowledgeable and willing parties. 
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6.20 financial instRUmEnts DisclosUREs

6.20.1 classEs, catEgoRiEs anD faiR valUEs of financial instRUmEnts

the following tables show the breakdown of carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets 

and financial liabilities by class and category of financial instrument:

2013 20121

EURk caRRying 
amoUnt

faiR 
valUE

caRRying 
amoUnt

faiR 
valUE

Financial assets measured at fair value
Other financial assets held for trading

Government bonds  5,960  5,960  7,181  7,181 

Treasury bills  95,530  95,530  89,703  89,703 

Corporate bonds  2,968  2,968  2,948  2,948 

Fair value option

Listed equities  360  360  969  969 

Unlisted equities  8,520  8,520  -    -   

Listed debentures  2,575  2,575  2,655  2,655 

Unlisted debentures  -    -    7,078  7,078 

Investment in associates - listed equities  -    -   

Investment in associates - unlisted equities  4,420  4,420  18,994  18,994 

Derivative financial instruments

Cross-currency interest swaps  -    -    870  870 

Forward foreign exchange contracts  2,291  2,291  2,426  2,426 

Equity swap and options  330  330  -    -   

Available-for-sale investments

Investment securities  - unlisted equities  1,320  1,320  844  844 

Investment securities  - listed equities  209  209  -    -   

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and receivables

Cash and short term funds  142,319  142,319  183,380  183,380 

Restricted cash  58,579  58,579  -    -   

Loans and advances  874,985  874,985  886,572  836,389 

Other current assets  22,429  22,429  20,967  20,967 

Held-to-maturity investments

Investment securities - promissory notes 4,105 4,105 4,475 4,475

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financial instruments

Cross-currency interest swaps used for hedging  730  730  -    -   

Forward foreign exchange contracts  172  172  272  272 

Equity derivatives  2,218  2,218  1,936  1,936 

Equity swap and options  672  672  -    -   

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Deposits  1,012,133  1,012,133  1,041,891 1,041,891 

Creditors and accruals  53,964  53,964  36,243  36,243 

Borrowed funds  226,318  226,318  195,667  195,667 

the fair value measurement for collaterals is presented in note 9.20.1.

the non-recurring fair value measurement for the assets held for sale is described in note 6.19.

financial instruments not measured at fair value, where the carrying value is estimated to appro-

ximate the fair value of these instruments, were as follows:

1. Cash and short term funds

placements with other banks include inter-bank placements and items in the course of collection. 

the fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits is their carrying amount. the 

estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using 

prevailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

2. loans and advances

loans and advances are accounted for on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest 

rate. origination transaction costs and origination fees received that are integral to the effective 

rate are capitalised to the value of the loans and amortised through interest income as part of the 

effective interest rate. loans and advances are stated net of allowances for specific and portfolio 

impairment.

3. investment securities

investment securities include only interest-bearing assets held to maturity, and unlisted equities; 

assets classified as available for sale are measured at fair value. fair value for held-to-maturity 

assets is based on market prices or broker/dealer price quotations. where this information is not 

available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for securities with similar credit, ma-

turity and yield characteristics.

4. Deposits

the estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest-bearing 

deposits, is the amount repayable on demand.

the estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted in an 

active market is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar 

remaining maturity.

5. off-balance sheet financial instruments

the estimated fair values of the off-balance sheet financial instruments are based on market 

prices for similar facilities. when this information is not available, fair value is estimated using 

discounted cash flow analysis.

6.20.2 faiR valUE hiERaRchy

the group adopted the amendments to ifrs 7 for financial instruments that are measured in the 

balance sheet at fair value. this requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the 

following fair value measurement hierarchy:

 — level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

 — level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly (that is as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); or
1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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 — level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, 

unobservable inputs).

the following table presents the group’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 

31 December 2013:

2013 2012

EURk
qUotED 

pRicEs 
lEvEl1

oBsER-
vaBlE 

inpUts 
lEvEl 2

UnoB-
sER-

vaBlE 
inpUts 
lEvEl 3

total 
at faiR 

valUE

qUotED 
pRicEs 
lEvEl1

oBsER-
vaBlE 

inpUts 
lEvEl 2

UnoB-
sER-

vaBlE 
inpUts 
lEvEl 3

total 
at faiR 

valUE

financial assEts mEasU-
RED at faiR valUE
Other financial assets held 
for trading

Government bonds  -    5,960  -    5,960  7,181  7,181 

Treasury bills  -    95,530  -    95,530  89,702  89,702 

Corporate bonds  -    2,968  -    2,968  2,948  2,948 

Fair value option

Listed equities  360  -    -    360  969  -    -    969 

Unlisted equities  -    -    8,520  8,520  -    -    -    -   

Listed debentures  2,575  -    -    2,575  2,655  -    -    2,655 

Unlisted debentures  -    -    -    -    -    -    7,078  7,078 

Investment in associates - 
unlisted equities

 -    -    4,420  4,420  -    -    18,994  18,994 

Derivative financial instru-
ments
Forward foreign exchange 
contracts

 -    2,291  -    2,291  -    2,426  -    2,426 

Equity swap and options  -    -    330  330  -    -    -   

Cross-currency interest 
swaps used for hedging

 -    -    -    -    -    870  -    870 

Available-for-sale invest-
ments
Investment securities  - 
unlisted equities

 -    -    1,320  1,320  -    -    844  844 

Investment securities  - 
listed equities

 -    209  -    209  -    -    -    -   

Fair value hierarchy for 
financial assets

 2,935  106,958  14,590  124,483  3,624  103,127  26,916  133,667 

liaBilitiEs mEasURED at 
faiR valUE
Derivative financial instru-
ments
Forward foreign exchange 
contracts

 -    172  -    172  -    -    272  272 

Equity derivatives  -    -    2,218  2,218  -    -    1,936  1,936 

Equity swap and options  -    -    672  672  -    -    -    -   

Cross-currency interest 
swaps used for hedging

 -    730  -    730  -    -    -    -   

Fair value hierarchy for 
financial liabilities

 -    902  2,890  3,792  -    -    2,208  2,208 

the fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices 

at the balance sheet date.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily available from an exchange, dealer, 

broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and 

regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. the quoted price used for finan-

cial assets held by the group is the current bid price. these instruments are included in level 1. 

instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily quoted equity investments classified as trading 

securities or available-for-sale.

6.20.3 valUation tEchniqUEs UsED in mEasURing lEvEl 2 anD lEvEl 3 faiR valUEs, 

as wEll as thE significant UnoBsERvaBlE inpUts UsED

the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-

the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. these valuation techniques 

maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on 

entity specific estimates. if all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observab-

le, the instrument is included in level 2. financial assets held for trading and derivatives under level 

2 have been valued using market interest and exchange rates.

if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 

included in level 3.

specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

 — quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

 — the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future 

cash flows based on observable yield curves;

 — the fair value of foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the 

balance sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value; and

 — other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for 

the remaining financial instruments.

Investment in associates – unlisted equities:
investments in associates classified as “assets at fair value through profit or loss” (iAs 39) in 

accordance with the option provided for in iAs 28.18 (note 6.7.1). this category includes the in-

vestment in rheAl which was valued by a discounted cash flow model. the cash flow projections 

include specific estimates for five years. the expected net cash flows are discounted using a risk-

adjusted discount rate. 

significant unobservable inputs are:  

 — forecast ebitDA

 — incurred claim ratio (2013: 67%)

 — risk-adjusted discount rate (2013: 17.6%)

the estimated fair value would increase (decrease) if:

 — the forecasted ebitDA rate were higher (lower)

 — the incurred claim ratio were lower (higher)

 — the risk-adjusted discount rate were lower (higher)1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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generally, a change in the annual growth rate is accompanied by a directionally similar change in 

the ebitDA margin.

Unlisted equities designated at fair value:
this category includes unlisted equities housed in an investment company in the group of eur 

8.5 million (bwp103 million).  the unlisted equities were valued by an independent external valuer 

who used the market approach to value the instruments.  A combination of multiples of book value 

for comparable businesses as as well as multiples of ebitDA as adjusted for low marketability of 

the investments were used to estimate the eventual fair values used.  

Equity derivatives:
the fair value movement of a 7.7% investment in an energy utility included in these investments 

and carried at eur 4.9 million (bwp60 million) is shared equally with a specified funder, with such 

fair value of eur 2.2 million; bwp26.8 million (2012: eur 1.9 million; bwp19.8 million) being inclu-

ded in derivative financial liabilities (note 6.14).  A 10% increase in the fair value of this investment 

will result in an increase in profit before tax of eur 50k (bwp6 million). A 10% decrease in the fair 

value of this investment will have an equal but opposite effect on profit before tax.

Equity swap and options:
ADC entered a call and put option agreement for equity shares, we refer to note 6.14. the equity 

options are valued using a black-scholes-model. significant unobservable inputs are 

 — volatility (2013: 20%)

 — risk-free rate (2013: 8%)

significant increase in volatilities would result in a higher fair value.

Available-for-sale investments:
the investment securities comprise of unlisted equities. the unlisted equities have been valued 

based on the value of recent trades in these equities. they comprise of shareholdings smaller than 

20% in a number of private companies.

 

the movement in instruments included in the level 3 analysis is as follows:

2013

EURk tRaDing 
DERivativEs

DEBt oR 
EqUity in-

vEstmEnts

total as-
sEts at faiR 

valUE

DERivati-
vE finan-

cial liaBi-
litiEs

total lia-
BilitiEs at 
faiR valUE

Opening balance  0 26,916 26,916 (2,208) (2,208)

Total gains or losses  0 

 - in profit and loss  330  7,805  8,135 (672) (672)

Purchases  0  0  0 (371) (371)

Settlements  0 (9,000) (9,000)  0  0 

Exchange rate adjustment  0 (1,013) (1,013)  361  361 

Transfer out of level 3  0 (10,447) (10,447)  0  0 

Closing balance  330 14,260 14,590 (2,890) (2,890)

2013

EURk tRaDing 
DERivativEs

DEBt oR 
EqUity in-

vEstmEnts

total as-
sEts at faiR 

valUE

DERivati-
vE finan-

cial liaBi-
litiEs

total lia-
BilitiEs at 
faiR valUE

Total gains or losses recognized  

in profit and loss    0

-net trading income 330 (1,712) (1,382) (672) (672)

-net gains/losses on financial ins-
truments designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

0 3,249 3,249 0 0

2012

EURk tRaDing 
DERivativEs

DEBt oR 
EqUity in-

vEstmEnts

total as-
sEts at faiR 

valUE

DERivati-
vE finan-

cial liaBi-
litiEs

total lia-
BilitiEs at 
faiR valUE

Opening balance  4,718  23,710  28,428  0  0 

Transfer from business acquisition  0  11,192  11,192 (4,594) (4,594)

Total gains or losses - in profit and 
loss

(4,718) (487) (5,205) (1,919) (1,919)

Purchases  0  211  211  0  0 

Settlements  0 (8,530) (8,530)  0  0 

Transfer to equity  0  0  0  4,305  4,305 

Exchange rate adjustment  0  820  820  0  0 

Closing balance  0  26,916  26,916 (2,208) (2,208)

2012

EURk tRaDing 
DERivativEs

DEBt oR 
EqUity in-

vEstmEnts

total as-
sEts at faiR 

valUE

DERivati-
vE finan-

cial liaBi-
litiEs

total at 
faiR valUE

Total gains or losses recognized  

in profit and loss    0

-net trading income (4,718) 916 (3,802) (1,919) (1,919)

-net gains/losses on financial ins-
truments designated at fair value 
through profit or loss

0 (12,697) (12,697) 0 0
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the following table shows the impact on the fair value of level 3 financial instruments of using 

reasonably possible alternative assumptions by class of instrument. the positive and negative 

effects are approximately the same.

2013 2012

EURk caRRying 
amoUnt

EffEct of 
REasonaB-

ly possiBlE 
altERnativE 
assUmptions

caRRying 
amoUnt

EffEct of 
REasonaB-

ly possiBlE 
altERnativE 
assUmptions

financial assEts 
Fair value option

Unlisted equities  8,520  1,135  -    -   

Unlisted debentures  -    -    7,078  708 

Investment in associates - unlisted equities  4,420  (211)  18,994  1,899 

Derivative financial instruments

equity swap and options  330  99  -    -   

Available-for-sale investments

Investment securities  - unlisted equities  1,320  132  844  84 

financial liaBilitiEs

Derivative financial instruments

equity derivatives  2,218  303  1,936  265 

equity swap and options  672  91  -    -   

unlisted equities designated at fair value:

REsonaBly possiBlE changEs in inpUts EURk

5% change in average price to book multiple 118

2% change in book value 47

5% change in adjusted EV/EBITDA 693

2% change in EBITDA 277

Total effect of reasonably alternative assumptions 1,135

Investment in associates – unlisted equities:
1% increase in risk-adjusted discount rate would result in a decrease of fair value of eur 404k. 

An 10% increase of forecasted ebitDA would lead to an increase of fair value of eur 193k. total 

effect of reasonably possible alternative assumptions amounts to negative eur 211k.

Equity derivative:
5% change in adjusted ev/ebitDA would result in a decrease of fair value of eur 216k. 2% 

change in ebitDA would result in a decrease of fair value of eur 87k. total effect of reasonably 

possible alternative assumptions amounts to eur 303k.

Equity swaps and options:
put option (positive fair value eur 330k):

5% change in volatility would result in increase in fair value of eur 116k. 1% increase in risk-free 

rate would lead to a decrease in fair value of eur 17k. total effect of reasonably possible alterna-

tive assumptions amounts to eur 99k.

Call option (negative fair value eur 672k): 

5% change in volatility would result in decrease in fair value of eur 116k. 1% increase in risk-free 

rate would lead to a increase in fair value of eur 25k. total effect of reasonably possible alternative 

assumptions amounts to eur 91k.

6.20.4 financial assEts sUBJEct to offsEtting, EnfoRcEaBlE mastER nEtting  

    aRRangEmEnts anD similaR agREEmEnts

financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar ag-

reements

RElatED amoUnts not off-
sEt in thE statEmEnt of     

           financial position 

2013

EURk

gRoss 
amoUnts of 
REcognizED 

financial 
liaBilitiEs

gRoss 
amoUnt of 

REcognizED 
financial 

assEts off-
sEt in thE 
financial 

position

nEt amoUnt 
of financial 

liaBilitiEs 
pREsEn-

tED in thE 
statEmEnt 

of financial  
position

financial 
instRUmEnts

cash col-
latERal 

plEDgED
nEt amoUnt

Types of financi-
al liabilities
Derivatives held 
for risk manage-
ment

 6,299  (5,569)  730 0 0  730 

Total 6,299 -5,569 730 0 0 730

6.20.5 REclassifications of financial assEts

no financial assets were reclassified in the year under review.
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6.20.6 collatERal 

EURk 2013 2012

Liabilities for which collateral is pledged

Deposits from banks  22,206  42,992 

Deposits from customers  9,522  33,484 

Borrowed funds  22,723  44,739 

 54,452  121,215 

Assets pledged to secure these liabilities are carried at amortised cost and are 
included under the following

Cash and short-term funds  0  4,892 

Advances (collateral)  13,909  71,584 

Financial assets held for trading  25,943  42,893 

Investment securities  4,105  4,475 

Property and equipment  2,421  0 

 46,378  123,844 

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customery to 
standard lending and borrowing activities

Collateral accepted as security for cash

Deposits from customer  26,597  8,372 

Mortgage bonds, inventory, plant and equipment, shares, letter of undertaking  350,587  256,634 

 377,184  265,006 

AbC holdings limited is obliged to return equivalent securities. the group is not permitted to sell 

or repledge collateral in the absence of default.

these transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard lending 

and borrowing activities.

6.20.7 intEREst incomE on impaiRED financial assEts

interest income arising from unwinding the discount on impaired loans and advances recognized 

at present value as specified in iAs 39.Ag 93 amounted to eur nil (2012: eur nil).

6.20.8 impaiRmEnt lossEs on financial instRUmEnts

the allowances for credit losses was distributed across the classes of financial assets as follows:

financial assEts mEasU-
RED at amoRtizED cost othER financial assEts total

EURk 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Allowance for credit 
losses as at 1 January

36,746 0 0 40 36,746 40

Additions from busi-
ness combinations

0 34,046 0

Additions 24,276 8,133 0 0 24,276 8,133

Utilisation -7,265 -3,199 0 -40 -7,265 -3,239

Reversals 0 -185 0 0 0 -185

Exchange rate adjust-
ment

-3,075 -2,049 0 0 -3,075 -2,049

Balance as at  
31 December

50,682 36,746 0 0 50,682 36,746

7. EarninGs pEr sharE

basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to 

ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstan-

ding during the year.

there have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between 

the reporting date and the date of completion of these financial statements.

At 31 December 2013, 344,000 stock options (note 6.18) and 2,000,000 warrant options (note 

6.12.) were excluded from the diluted weighted-average number of ordinary shares calculation 

because their effect would been anti-dilutive.

the average market value of ADC’s shares for purpose of calculating the dilutive effect of share op-

tions was based on quoted market prices for the year during which the options were outstanding.
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8. nOTEs TO ThE sTaTEMEnT Of cash fLOWs

the statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with iAs 7 using the indirect 

method and classified by cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. Cash and 

cash equivalents comprise the cash on hand and bank balances recognized in the consolidated 

statement of financial position. in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, non-cash items related primarily to 

the measurement of the Company’s financial assets at fair value. Cash paid/received in connec-

tion with investments/divestments for portfolio companies are disclosed in the cash flow from 

investing activities. in the event that dividends are paid, positive operating cash flows are possible. 

9. financiaL risK ManaGEMEnT anD capiTaL ManaGEMEnT 

9.1 intRoDUction

the group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analy-

sis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or a combination of risks. ta-

king risk is core to the financial business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence 

of being in business. the group’s aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between 

risk and return and minimize potential adverse effects on the group’s financial performance. the 

group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set approp-

riate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable 

and up-to-date information systems. the group regularly reviews its risk management policies and 

systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice. risk management is 

carried out by group risk, under policies approved by the board. the board approves principles for 

overall risk management as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, 

interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial ins-

truments. the most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational 

risk. market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and price risk. we refer to the explanations 

provided in the group management report (exhibit 7) as well.

aDc gRoUp Risk REpoRting

ADC’s risk management system was developed to keep management and the supervisory board 

up-to-date about on-going political, economic, financial, legal and operational risks in ADC’s group 

and portfolio companies as well as the wider market risks affecting sub-saharan Africa. manage-

ment ensures that risks are systematically identified, measured and managed using the risk ma-

nagement system. the results of the analysis influence the Company’s strategic, financial and 

operational decision-making processes.

monthly reports analyse the top 10 risks impacting the Company, including the likelihood and po-

tential severity of each risk. the report includes an analysis of each group or portfolio company to 

assess internal and external events that may affect each business line and investment and finance 

managers evaluate these risks to refine a scenario analysis that is used for realistic up-to-date 

risk forecasts. the scenario analysis forms the basis of a stress test that includes five scenarios 

varying from worst to best case, which is then used to estimate the overall risk exposure and 

procedures that are best used to mitigate each risk.

BancaBc’s spEcific Risks anD Risk managEmEnt systEm

ADC’s majority ownership and subsequent consolidation of bancAbC exposes the Company to 

the operational risks of the banking group. the directorate and management of bancAbC recog-

nize that effective risk management is fundamental to the sustainability of its business and have 

created a strong risk management culture within the group. in addition, internal audit is respon-

sible for the independent review of risk management and the control environment. nevertheless, 

in the course of conducting business, the group is exposed to various risks inherent in providing 

financial services.

9.2 financial Risk managEmEnt

9.2.1 cREDit Risk

aDc gRoUp

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will sustain a financial loss due to the failure of a coun-

terparty to meet its obligations. ADC counters this risk in particular through timely monitoring of 

business partners. before taking on a new customer, the group carries out a credit check in order 

to assess the creditworthiness of potential customers. A payment period of 21 days (prior year: 

21 days) is normally granted for trade receivables (prior year: 21 days). Accordingly, management 

believes that no risk provision beyond the impairment losses already recognized is necessary.

BancaBc’s spEcific cREDit Risks

bancAbC takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a finan-

cial loss for bancAbC by failing to discharge an obligation. significant changes in the economy, 

or in the health of a particular industry segment that represents a concentration in the group’s 

portfolio, could result in losses that are different from those provided for at the balance sheet 

date. Country (or sovereign) risk is part of overall credit risk and is managed as part of the credit 

risk management function as it has a major impact on individual counterparties’ ability to perform. 

management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise prin-

cipally in loans and advances, debt securities and other bills. there is also credit risk in off-balance 

sheet financial arrangements such as loan commitments. bancAbC’s risk team reviews subsidiary 

risk exposures regularly, and reports to the board of Directors of bancAbC and at the same time 

to ADC’s group risk Controller and the board of ADC.

the board of bancAbC has defined and documented a credit policy which forms the basis of cre-

dit decisions. this policy includes a framework of limits and delegation of credit approval authority 

that are strictly adhered to. no one individual has the power to authorize credit exposures. each 

subsidiary of bancAbC has a credit committee which operates within the defined limits set by the 

board of bancAbC. these committees are responsible for the management of credit risk within 



184 Consolidated annual FinanCial statements  ADC AnnuAl report 2013 185

their country including, credit decisions, processes, legal and documentation risk and compliance 

with impairment policies.

bancAbC’s risk department regularly reviews each subsidiary’s adherence to required standards. 

bancAbC’s executive Committee reports to the board and is responsible for approval of credit 

decisions that are above country limits, recommendations on exposure limits and impairment 

policies.

the group has adopted standard impairment policies which at a minimum comply with the pru-

dential guidelines of the respective countries’ central banks. impairments are determined monthly 

and are subject to regular review by group risk.

cREDit Risk managEmEnt

loans anD aDvancEs

in measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks at a counterparty level, 

the group considers three components: the probability of default by the client or counterparty on 

its contractual obligations; the current exposures to the counterparty and its likely future develop-

ment; and the likely recovery on the defaulted obligations.

these credit risk measurements, which reflect expected loss, are embedded in the group’s daily 

operational management. the operational measurements are contrasted with impairment allo-

wances required under iAs 39, which are based on losses that have been incurred at the balance 

sheet date.

the group assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating 

tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties. they have been developed internally and 

combine statistical analysis for certain categories, as well as credit officer judgment. Clients of 

the group are segmented into five rating classes. the group’s rating scale, which is shown below, 

reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class. this means that, in princip-

le, exposures migrate between classes as the assessment of their probability of default changes. 

the rating tools are kept under review and upgraded as necessary. the group regularly validates 

the performance of the rating and their predictive power with regard to default events.

group’s internal rating scale:

catEgoRy DEscRiption

Performing The credit appears satisfactory

Special mention
The credit appears satisfactory but exhibits potential or inherent weaknesses 
which,  if not attended to, may weakern the asset or prospects of collection in 
full e.g. poor documentation or 30 days but less than 90 days in arrears

Sub-standard
The credit has defined weaknesses that may jeopardise liquidiation of the debt 
i.e. the paying capacity of the borrower is doubtful or inadequate, or more than 
90 days but less than 180 days in arrears

Doubtful
Credit facilities which above weaknesses and has deteriorated further to the 
extent that even with existing security, full recovery will not be possible, or 180 
days but less than 12 months in arrears

Loss
Facilities considered impossible to collect with little or no realisble security,
 or more than 12 months in arrears

Risk limit contRol anD mitigation policiEs

the group manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk in respect of individual counter-

parties and groups, and to industries and countries. the group structures the levels of credit risk it 

undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of 

borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. such risks are monitored on a revolving basis 

and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. limits on the level 

of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved by the board of Directors, and 

reviewed regularly. exposure to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the ability of 

borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by chan-

ging these lending limits where appropriate. some other specific control and mitigation measures 

are outlined below.

1. Collateral

the group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. the most traditional of 

these is the taking of security for funds advanced, which is common practice.

the group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral for credit 

risk mitigation. the principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

 — cash collateral;

 — charges over assets financed;

 — mortgages over residential and commercial properties;

 — charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable; and

 — charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities.

loans and advances to corporates are generally secured. in addition, in order to minimize credit 

loss, the group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indi-
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cators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances. Collateral held as security for 

financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the nature of the instrument. 

Debt securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured, with the exception of 

asset-backed securities and similar instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial ins-

truments.

2. master netting arrangements

the group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into master netting arrange-

ments with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions. master 

netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as 

transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. however, the credit risk associated with favora-

ble contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if a default occurs, all 

amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis. the group’s overall ex-

posure to credit risk on derivative instruments subject to master netting arrangements can change 

substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each transaction subject to the arrangement.

3. Credit-related commitments

the primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as 

required. guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documen-

tary and commercial letters of credit – which are written undertakings by the group on behalf of 

a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the group up to a stipulated amount under 

specific terms and conditions – are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to which 

they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct loan.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in 

the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. with respect to credit risk on commitments to 

extend credit, the group is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused 

commitments. however, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as 

most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit 

standards. the group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term 

commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

4. Derivatives

the group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative positions (that is, the difference 

between purchase and sale contracts) by both amount and term. the amount subject to credit risk 

is limited to expected future net cash inflows of instruments, which in relation to derivatives are 

only a fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express the volume of instruments out-

standing. this credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall lending limits with customers, 

together with potential exposures from market movements. Collateral or other security is not 

always obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the group requires 

margin deposits from counterparties.

impaiRmEnt policiEs

the impairments shown in the balance sheet at year-end are derived from each of the five internal 

rating grades, adjusted for the provision of iAs 39. the table below shows the percentage of the 

group’s on-and-off balance sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated impair-

ment for each of the group’s internal rating categories.

impairments are managed on an expected loss basis, and are recorded on an actual loss basis.

the internal rating tool assists management to determine whether objective evidence of impair-

ment exists under iAs 39, based on the following criteria set out by the group:

 — delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;

 — cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower;

 — breach of loan covenants or conditions;

 — initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

 — deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;

 — deterioration in the value of collateral; and

 — downgrading below “performing” level.

the group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets at least once a month, or more 

regularly when individual circumstances require. impairment allowances on individually assessed 

accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance-sheet date on a case-

by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts. the assessment normally 

encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and the anticipated 

receipts for that individual account. Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided 

for: (i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality thresholds; and (ii) 

losses that have been incurred but have not yet been identified, by using the available historical 

experience, experienced judgment and statistical techniques.

impaiRmEnt classification

2013 2012

in % loans anD 
aDvancEs impaiRmEnts loans anD 

aDvancEs impaiRmEnts

Performing 78 13 85 19

Special mention 12 5 6 5

Sub-standard 2 9 3 22

Doubtful 2 9 1 4

Loss 6 64 5 50

100 100 100 100

analysis of maximUm ExposURE to cREDit Risk anD collatERal anD othER cREDit En-
hancEmEnts

the following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset. it also 

shows the total fair value of collateral, any surplus collateral (the extent to which the fair value of 

collateral held is greater than the exposure to which it relates), and the net exposure to credit risk.
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typE of collatERal oR cREDit EnhancEmEnt

EURk

31 DEcEmBER 2013

faiR valUE of collatERal anD cREDit  
EnhancEmEnts hElD

maximUm 
ExposURE 
to cREDit 

Risk

cash sEcURi-
tiEs

lEttERs 
of cREDit/ 

gUaRan-
tEEs

pRopER-
ty othER* nEt col-

latERal
nEt Ex-
posURE

Placement with other 
banks

178,178 0 0 0 0 0 178,178

Derivative financial 
instruments

Equity derivative 330 0 330

Forward foreign ex-
change contracts

2,291 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,291

2,621 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,621

Financial assets held 
for trading

Government debt 
securities

5,960 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,960

Treasury bills and 
other open market 
instruments

95,530 0 0 0 0 0 95,530

Bankers acceptance 
and commercial 
paper

2,968 0 0 0 0 0 2,968

104,458 0 0 0 0 0 0 104,458

Mortgage lending 28,936 0 0 0 26,804 0 26,804 2,132

Instalment finance 55,574 0 0 0 10,133 2,531 12,664 42,910

Corporate lending 446,148 16,123 16,575 9,797 183,541 89,640 315,677 130,472

Commercial and pro-
perty finance

4,453 0 0 0 4,892 1,058 5,950 -1,497

Consumer lending 390,555 0 0 0 0 0 0 390,555

Other loans and ad-
vances

0 7,582 0 0 21,237 954 29,772 -29,772

925,666 23,705 16,575 9,797 246,606 94,183 390,867 534,799

Financial investments - 
available-for-sale

1,530 0 0 0 0 0 1,530

Financial investments 
held to maturity

4,105 0 0 0 0 0 4,105

5,635 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,635

Financial quarantees

Letters of credit for 
customers

8,250 2,543 0 0 0 0 2,543 5,708

Other commitments 55,645 0 0 0 0 0 0 55,645

63,895 2,543 0 0 0 0 2,543 61,352

*Vehicles, machinery, other fixed assets, inventory and trade recievables

typE of collatERal oR cREDit EnhancEmEnt

EURk

2012 (REstatED)

faiR valUE of collatERal anD cREDit  
EnhancEmEnts hElD

maximUm 
ExposURE 
to cREDit 

Risk

cash

lEttERs 
of cRE-

Dit/ gUa-
RantEEs

pRopERty othER* nEt col-
latERal

nEt Expo-
sURE

Placement with other 
banks

156,668 0 0 0 0 0 156,668

Interest rate swaps 870 0 0 0 0 0 870

Forward foreign ex-
change contracts

2,426 0 0 0 0 0 2,426

3,296 0 0 0 0 0 3,296

Financial assets held 
for trading
Government debt 
securities

96,883 0 0 0 0 0 96,883

Other debt securities 2,948 0 0 0 0 0 2,948

99,832 0 0 0 0 0 99,832

Corporate lending 510,184 158,724 1,008 170,872 40,993 371,598 138,586

Consumer lending 386,973 14,077 0 0 58,991 73,067 313,906

Residential mortgages 26,162 0 0 20,502 0 20,502 5,660

923,319 172,801 1,008 191,374 99,983 465,167 458,152

Financial investments - 
available-for-sale

844 0 0 0 0 0 844

Financial investments 
held to maturity

4,475 0 0 0 0 0 4,475

5,319 0 0 0 0 0 5,319

Financial quarantees

Letters of credit for 
customers

59,882 0 0 0 0 0 59,882

Other commitments 17,866 0 0 402 3,459 3,862 14,004

77,748 0 0 402 3,459 3,862 73,886

*Vehicles, machinery, other fixed assets, inventory and trade recievables

72% [prior year: 75%] of the total maximum exposure is derived from loans and advances, while 

8% [prior year: 8%] represents financial assets held for trading.

management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of cre-

dit risk to the group resulting from both its loans and advances portfolio and financial assets held 

for trading based on the following:

1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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 — 90% [prior year: 91%] of the gross loans and advances portfolio is categorized in the top two 

grades of the internal rating system;

 — 77% [prior year: 85%] of the gross loans and advances portfolio is considered to be “neither 

past due nor impaired”;

 — 10% [prior year: 9%] of gross loans and advances are “individually impaired”;

 — the group continues to improve its credit selection and monitoring processes; and

 — loans and advances to corporates are generally backed by collateral.

the nature of security held ranges from cash security, assets financed, bonds over residential and 

commercial property, shares and stock in trade.

cREDit qUality By class of financial assEts

the bank manages the credit quality of financial assets using internal credit ratings. the table 

below shows the credit quality by class of asset for all financial assets exposed to credit risk, 

based on the bank’s internal credit rating system. the amounts presented are gross of impairment 

allowances.

2013

nEithER 
past DUE 

noR im-
paiRED

past DUE BUt not impaiRED
inDivi-
DUally 

impaiRED

EURk
notEs pERfoR-

ming

spEcific 
mEnti-
on 1-30 

Days

spEcific 
mEnti-

on 31-60 
Days

spEcific 
mEnti-

on 61-90 
Days

DoUBt-
fUl/loss total

Placements with other 
banks

6.1. 178,178 0 0 0 0 178,178

Derivative financial assets 6.14. 2,621 0 0 0 0 2,621

Other financial assets 
held for trading

6.2. 104,458 0 0 0 0 104,458

Financial assets designa-
ted at fair value through 
profit or loss

6.3. 11,455 0 0 0 0 11,455

Loans and advances to 
customers

Mortgage lending 6.4. 23,173 2,094 2,836 228 606 28,938

Instalment finance 6.4. 36,218 2,821 915 1,323 14,299 55,577

Corporate lending 6.4. 301,689 42,248 15,826 22,168 64,241 446,173

Commercial and pro-
perty finance

6.4. 3,559 719 0 130 44 4,453

Consumer Lending 6.4. 352,614 15,495 7,390 1,509 13,516 390,525

717,254 63,378 26,967 25,359 92,708 925,666

Financial investments 
available-for-sale 

Listed equities 6.5. 209 0 0 0 0 209

Unlisted equities 6.5. 1,320 0 0 0 0 1,320

Financial investments 
held to maturity

Promissory notes 6.5. 4,105 0 0 0 0 4,105

Other current assets

Trade accounts receiva-
bles, prepayments and 
other assets

6.6. 22,429 0 0 0 0 22,429

Total 1,042,031 63,378 26,967 25,359 92,708 1,250,443

2012 (REstatED)1

nEithER 
past DUE 

noR im-
paiRED

past DUE BUt not impaiRED
inDivi-
DUally 

impaiRED

EURk
notEs pERfoR-

ming

spEcific 
mEnti-
on 1-30 

Days

spEcific 
mEnti-

on 31-60 
Days

spEcific 
mEnti-

on 61-90 
Days

DoUBt-
fUl/loss total

Placements with other 
banks

6.1. 156,668 0 0 0 0 156,668

Derivative financial assets 6.15. 3,296 0 0 0 0 3,296

Other financial assets 
held for trading

6.2. 99,832 0 0 0 0 99,832

Financial assets designa-
ted at fair value through 
profit or loss

6.3. 10,701 0 0 0 0 10,701

Loans and advances to 
customers

Mortgage lending 6.4. 25,845 0 0 0 317 26,162

Instalment finance 6.4. 46,012 1,437 2,526 1,572 3,255 54,802

Corporate lending 6.4. 335,648 12,452 10,073 20,236 71,696 450,105

Commercial and pro-
perty finance

6.4. 5,169 0 0 0 108 5,277

Consumer Lending 6.4. 370,103 3,059 2,117 1,707 9,986 386,973

782,776 16,948 14,716 23,515 85,363 923,319

Financial investments 
available-for-sale 

Unlisted equities 6.5. 844 0 0 0 0 844

Financial investments 
held to maturity

Promissory notes 6.5. 4,475 0 0 0 0 4,475

Other current assets

Trade accounts receiva-
bles, prepayments and 
other assets

6.6. 20,967 0 0 0 0 20,967

Total 1,079,558 16,948 14,716 23,515 85,363 1,220,101

the total impairment of loans and advances is eur 50,7m (2012: eur 36,7m). 

further information on the impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers is provided 

in notes 5.3 and 6.4.

loans anD aDvancEs REnEgotiatED

restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements, approved external management 

plans, modification and deferral of payments. following restructuring, a previously overdue cus-

tomer account is reset to a normal status, and managed together with other similar accounts. 

restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of 

local management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. these policies are kept under 

continuous review. renegotiated loans total eur 8.4 million at 31 December 2013 (2012: eur 9.3 

million).

1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.
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EURk 2013 2012

Mortgage lending 0 805

Instalment finance 0 3,847

Corporate lending 7,938 4,156

Commercial and property finance 0 521

Consumer lending 414 0

8,351 9,329

REpossEssED collatERal

During 2013, the group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as security, as 

follows:

EURk
natURE of assEts 2013 2012

Property 1,208 1,272

Motor vehicles 60 216

Carrying amount 1,268 1,488

repossessed properties are sold as soon as practical, with the proceeds used to reduce the out-

standing indebtedness.

repossessed property is classified in the balance sheet under prepayments and other receivables.

concEntRation Risk of financial assEts with cREDit Risk ExposURE

Geographical sectors

the following table breaks down the group’s main credit exposure at their carrying amounts, as 

categorized by geographical regions as of 31 December 2013.

for this table, the group has allocated exposures to regions based on the country of domicile of 

its counterparties. 

2013 Botswana mozam-
BiqUE tanzania zamBia zimBaB-

wE othER total

EURk

Placements with 
other banks

40,928 27,306 9,675 34,651 54,670 10,948 178,178

Financial assets 
held for trading

41,797 24,689 17,539 15,943 4,490 0 104,458

Financial assets 
designated at fair 
value

 0  0 8,519 0 3,169 (234) 11,454

Derivative finan-
cial assets

0 14 2,237 20 20 330 2,621

Loans and advan-
ces (net)

290,347 121,976 62,513 117,500 282,221 427 874,985

Investment secu-
rities

4,105 494 458 173 404 0 5,635

Investment in 
associates

 0  0  0  0  0 72,334 72,334

Prepaments and 
other receivables

1,390 783 1,338 2,275 15,776 871 22,432

Current tax assets 715 438 1,461 0 121 131 2,866

Total 379,282 175,699 103,740 170,562 360,871 84,807 1,274,962

20121 Botswana mozam-
BiqUE tanzania zamBia zimBaB-

wE othER total

EURk

Placements with 
other banks

38,777 16,975 14,238 17,642 54,699 14,337 156,668

Other financial 
assets held for 
trading

71,539 10,451 5,186 5,333 7,324 0 99,832

Financial assets 
designated at fair 
value

0 0 7,077 0 3,624 0 10,701

Derivative finan-
cial assets

402 12 2,038 13 0 831 3,296

Loans and 
advances (net of 
impairments)

295,059 85,581 73,607 103,439 325,334 3,553 886,572

Investment secu-
rities

4,475 0 0 0 0 844 5,319

Investment in 
associates

0 0 0 0 0 74,883 74,883

Other current 
assets

1,002 524 2,309 875 13,788 2,781 21,277

Current tax assets 340 414 1,525 0 810 75 3,165

Total 411,594 113,957 105,979 127,302 405,578 97,303 1,261,713

1   the 2012 figure for investments in associates measured in accordance with the equity method is restated and do not agree with the  
     corresponding figures in 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2.



194 Consolidated annual FinanCial statements  ADC AnnuAl report 2013 195

the following table breaks down the group’s main credit exposure at their carrying amounts, as 

categorized by the industry sectors of the counterparties.

DEcEmBER 2013

EURk
agRicUltURE constRUc-

tion

wholEsa-
lE, REtail 

anD  tRaDE

pUBlic  
sEctoR

manUfactU-
Ring

mining anD 
EnERgy

financial 
sERvicEs tRanspoRt inDiviDUals toURism othER total

Placements with 
other banks

 -    -    -    -    -    -    168,299  -    -    -    9,879  178,178 

Financial assets held 
for trading

 -    -    161  19,062  2,807  -    82,428  -    -    -    -    104,458 

Financial assets 
designated  at fair 
value

 -    -    -    -    3,169  -    2,174  6,111  -    -    -    11,454 

Derivative financial 
assets

 -    -    -    -    -    -    2,277  -    -    -    344  2,621 

Loans and advances 
(net)

 47,747  32,071  74,322  17,507  62,466  70,331  25,061  38,453  425,154  7,151  74,721  874,985 

Investment secu-
rities

 -    -    8  -    0  25  5,349  -    -    -    252  5,635 

Investment in asso-
ciates

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    72,335  72,335 

Prepayments and 
other  receivables

 -    -    85  -    -    655  19,496  -    -    -    2,196  22,432 

Current tax assets  -    -    -    2,735  -    -    -    -    -    -    131  2,866 

 47,747  32,071  74,576  39,304  68,443  71,011  305,085  44,564  425,154  7,151  159,857  1,274,963 
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DEcEmBER 20121

EURk
agRicUltURE constRUc-

tion

wholEsa-
lE, REtail 

anD  tRaDE

pUBlic  
sEctoR

manUfactU-
Ring

mining anD 
EnERgy

financial 
sERvicEs tRanspoRt inDiviDUals toURism othER total

Placements with 
other banks

 -    -    -    -    -    -    154,753  -    -    -    1,915  156,668 

Other financial as-
sets held for trading

 -    -    -    -    392  32  96,939  -    -    -    2,468  99,832 

Financial assets 
designated  at fair 
value

 -    -    -    -    2,655  4,476  3,570  -    -    -    -    10,701 

Derivative financial 
instrument

 -    -    -    -    -    -    3,284  -    -    -    12  3,296 

Loans and advances 
(net)

 58,078  35,628  73,564  17,230  79,519  99,285  65,414  49,401  371,022  9,742  27,690  886,573 

Investment secu-
rities

 -    -    -    -    -    -    4,475  -    -    -    844  5,319 

Investment in asso-
ciates

- - - - - - - - - - 74,883 74,833

Prepayments and 
other  receivables

 -    -    217  -    -    -    16,179  -    -    -    4,881  21,277 

Current tax assets  -    -    -    1,940  -    -    799  -    -    -    426  3,165 

 58,078  35,628  73,781  19,170  82,566  103,793  345,412  49,401  371,022  9,742  113,119 1,261,713

1   the 2012 figures are restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in the 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition  
     effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2

9.2.2 maRkEt Risk

aDc gRoUp

the group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value of future cash 

flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. market risks 

arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed 

to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or 

prices such as interest rate, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

BancaBc’s spEcific maRkEt Risks

market and foreign currency exposures related to dealing positions are housed and managed in 

bancAbC’s treasury division within a framework of pre-approved dealer, currency and counterpar-

ty limits.

All trading positions are marked to market as required by iAs 39.

bancAbC’s risk team is responsible for monitoring of limits and pricing, thereby ensuring that any 

errors or unauthorized transactions are promptly identified.

the currency exposure that arises as a result of the bancAbC’s continuing expansion and cross-

border investment activities is managed through bancAbC’s executive Committee and the group 

Asset and liability Committee.

the major measurement techniques used to measure and control market risk are outlined below.

foREign ExchangE Risk

the group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency ex-

change rates on its financial position and cash flows. bancAbC risk team sets limits on the level 

of exposure by currency and in aggregate for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are 

monitored daily. the table below summarizes the group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange 

rate risk at 31 December 2013. included in the table are the group’s assets and liabilities at carry-

ing amounts, categorized by currency.
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Concentration of currency risk: on- and – off balance sheet financial instruments

 
Bwp zaR tzs zmk mzn Jpy othER totalat 31 DEcEmBER 2013 EUR UsD

Cash and short term funds  10,376  95,540  35,799  2,948  2,969  35,491  17,198  25  552  200,897 

Other financial assets held for trading  -    4,620  41,797  -    17,410  15,943  24,689  -    -    104,458 

Financial assets designated at fair value  -    18,149  -    -    3,533  -    -    -    (10,229)  11,454 

Derivative financial instruments  890  51,978  1,862  6,183  22,111  20  -    6,533  (86,955)  2,621 

Loans and advances  2,269  407,533  284,331  2,918  26,172  95,029  56,729  -    4  874,985 

Investment securities  81  323  4,105  -    458  173  494  -    -    5,635 

Other current assets  4,813  17,818  1,159  98  2  2,266  412  -    (4,139)  22,429 

Current tax assets  131  121  715  -    1,461  -    438  -    -    2,866 

Investment in associates  -    65,444  332  -    174  -    -    -    6,383  72,334 

Property, plant and equipment  9  37,920  6,781  2,246  3,098  4,287  8,409  -    1  62,750 

Total Intangible assets  40  1,878  4,272  6  1,562  798  2,255  -    41,015  51,827 

Deferred tax assets  -    1,384  2,145  183  5,151  477  -    -    (1)  9,339 

Non-current assets and disposal groups 
held-for-sale

- - - 1,126 - 6,320 - - 3,332 10,778

Total assets  18,610  702,708  383,300 15,707  84,101 160,804  110,623  6,557  (50,038)  1,432,373 

Deposits  6,353  371,673  326,411  7,914  62,311  94,346  141,732  1,006  388  1,012,133 

Derivative financial instruments  67  56,496  2,593  3,912  22,111  -    -    -    (81,387)  3,792 

Creditors and accruals  3,762  9,198  1,788  932  1,291  11,578  38  -    25,377  53,964 

Current tax liabilities  80  -    177  -    -    894  -    -    (14)  1,137 

Deferred tax liabilty  -    150  326  -    -    709  568  -    10,407  12,160 

Borrowed funds  40,250  148,952  22,722  -    8  -    6,198  5,569  2,618  226,318 

Non-current liabilities and disposal 
groups

- - - - - - - - 428 428

Total liabilities  50,511  586,468  354,017  12,758  85,721  107,527  148,536  6,575  (42,183)  1,309,933 

Net on-balance sheet position  (31,901)  116,240  29,283  2,949  (1,620)  53,277  (37,913)  (18)  (7,855)  122,440 

sensetivity analyses:

cURREncy
changE in 
cURREncy 
RatE in %

EffEct on 
pRofit BEfo-
RE tax

EffEct on 
EqUity

USD 1 182 -68

BWP 1 1,028 349

ZAR 1 21 15

TZS 1 -26 -18

ZMK 1 185 120

MZN 1 -562 -417

JPY 1 0 0

Other currencies 1 80 57
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Bwp zaR tzs zmk mzn Jpy othER totalat 31 DEcEmBER 20121 EUR UsD

Cash and short term funds  2,651  86,884  41,804  19,725  11,715  4,180  16,311  -    108  183,380 

Other financial assets held for trading  -    7,324  71,539  -    5,186  5,333  10,451  -    -    99,832 

Financial assets designated at fair value  81  8,018  -    -    2,601  -    -    -    -    10,701 

Derivative financial instruments  -    21,112  278  963  49,536  -    153  9,215  (77,962)  3,296 

Loans and advances  2,962  421,269  280,678  244  26,693  77,506  66,657  -    10,563  886,572 

Investment securities  -    0  4,475  -    479  174  191  -    -    5,319 

Other current assets  2,003  15,010  1,052  151  2,309  648  97  -    7  21,277 

Current tax assets  57  828  340  -    1,525  -    414  -    -    3,165 

Investment in associates  -    62,959  414  -    182  -    -    -    11,328  74,883 

Property, plant and equipment  30  39,853  6,885  3,087  2,177  4,046  8,827  -    -    64,905 

Total Intangible assets  -    17,099  30,400  13  1,902  7,532  12,961  -    787  70,694 

Deferred tax assets  -    2,726  3,275  124  1,884  216  -    -    425  8,650 

Total assets  7,785  683,081  441,140  24,307  106,189  99,635  116,064  9,215  (54,743)  1,432,673 

Deposits  3,036  412,860  355,958  34,837  83,618  41,513  106,787  1,338  1,944  1,041,891 

Derivative financial instruments  -    55,991  -    864  22,988  -    272  -    (77,907)  2,208 

Creditors and accruals  4,841  8,883  5,995  1,310  1,880  11,663  902  -    770  36,243 

Current tax liabilities  -    1,028  96  -    -    846  0  -    48  2,018 

Deferred tax liability  -    3,281  7,074  -    618  1,807  3,090  -    -    15,871 

Borrowed funds  43,973  105,924  36,443  -    75  0  -    9,251  -    195,667 

Total liabilities  51,850  587,967  405,566  37,011  109,180  55,828  111,052  10,589  (75,146)  1,293,898 

Net on-balance sheet position  (44,064)  95,113  35,574  (12,704)  (2,990)  43,807  5,013  (1,375)  20,402  138,775 

Credit commitments  1,991  29,397  877  8,378  4,037  22,177  9,602  1,288  -    77,748 

cURREncy
changE in 
cURREncy 
RatE in %

EffEct on 
pRofit BEfo-
RE tax

EffEct on 
EqUity

USD 1 951 951

BWP 1 356 356

ZAR 1 -127 -127

TZS 1 -30 -30

ZMK 1 438 438

MZN 1 50 50

JPY 1 -14 -14

Other currencies 1 204 204

1   the 2012 figures are restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in the 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition  
     effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2
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intEREst RatE Risk

aDc gRoUp

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. fair value interest rate risk is the risk that 

the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. the 

group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest 

rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. interest margins may increase as a result of such 

changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. 

BancaBc’s spEcific intEREst RatE Risk

bancAbC’s Asset and liability Committee (AlCo) is responsible for managing interest rate and 

liquidity risk. Asset and liability management committees have been established in each sub-

sidiary and meet on a monthly basis. they operate within the prudential guidelines and policies 

established by bancAbC’s AlCo.

in order to reduce interest rate risk, the majority of the bancAbC’s lending is on a variable interest 

rate with a term of less than one year. this approach has been adopted as a result of the scarcity 

of term deposits in the region that limits the bancAbC’s ability to build a substantial, stable pool 

of fixed rate funding.

the table below summarizes the group’s exposure to interest rate risks. it includes the group’s 

financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or 

maturity dates. variable rate financial instruments are categorized in the “up to 1 month” column.

DEcEmBER 2013

EURk
>1 month 1-3 

months
3-12 

months
1-5  

yEaRs

non-
intEREst 
BEaRing

total

Cash and Short term Funds  87,595  5,055  7  -    108,240  200,897 

Other financial assets held for trading  57,780  29,785  9,639  7,254  -    104,458 

Financial assets designated at fair 
value

 -    -    1,877  932  8,644  11,454 

Derivative financial instruments  -    -    -    -    2,621  2,621 

Loans and advances  570,705  34,241  53,044  216,994  -    874,985 

Investment securities  -    -    404  4,600  631  5,635 

Other current assets  16  25  -    -    22,388  22,429 

Current tax assets  25  -    -    -    2,841  2,866 

Investments in associates  -    -    -    -    72,333  72,333 

Property, plant, equipment  -    -    -    -    62,750  62,750 

Other intangible assets and goodwill  -    -    -    -    51,827  51,827 

Deferred tax assets  -    -    -    -    9,340  9,340 

Non-current assets and disposal 
groups held-for-sale

 -    -    -    -    10,777  10,777 

Total Assets  716,121  69,106  64,972  229,780  352,394  1,432,373 

shaREholDERs EqUity anD 
liaBilitiEs

Total Equity  -    -    -    -    122,440  122,440 

Deposits  584,059  304,524  117,341  6,209  -    1,012,133 

Derivative financial instruments  -    -    -    -    3,792  3,792 

Creditors and accruals  87  141  1,616  -    52,120  53,964 

Current tax liabilities  -    79  -    -    1,058  1,137 

Deferred tax liability  -    -    -    -    12,160  12,160 

Borrowed Funds  45,828  18,722  15,708  146,060  -    226,318 

Non-current liabilities and disposal 
groups held-for-sale 

 -    -    -    -    428  428 

Total equity and liabilities  629,974  323,466  134,665  152,269  191,998  1,432,373 

Total interest repricing gap  86,147  (254,360)  (69,692)  77,510  160,396  (0)
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DEcEmBER 20121

EURk
>1 month 1-3 

months
3-12 

months
1-5  

yEaRs

non-
intEREst 
BEaRing

total

Cash and Short term Funds  97,781  7,447  1,745  -    76,407  183,380 

Other financial assets held for trading  92,040  2,755  -    3,497  1,540  99,832 

Financial assets designated at fair 
value

 -    -    1,643  1,896  7,162  10,701 

Derivative financial instruments  -    -    -    -    3,296  3,296 

Loans and advances  368,377  69,715  182,134  266,347  -    886,572 

Investment securities  0  87  -    4,649  583  5,319 

Other current assets  -    -    2,339  22  18,917  21,277 

Current tax assets  -    -    75  -    3,090  3,165 

Investments in associates  -    -    -    73,790  1,093  74,883 

Property, plant and equipment  -    -    8,505  -    56,400  64,905 

Other intangible assets and goodwill  -    -    57,042  -    13,652  70,694 

Deferred tax assets  -    -    425  -    8,225  8,650 

Total Assets  558,197  80,004  253,908  350,200  190,364  1,432,673 

shaREholDERs EqUity anD 
liaBilitiEs

Total Equity  -    -    -    -    138,775  138,775 

Deposits  742,744  274,499  24,648  -    -    1,041,891 

Derivative financial instruments  -    -    -    -    2,208  2,208 

Creditors and accruals  -    -    -    6,130  30,114  36,244 

Current tax liabilities  -    -    -    48  1,970  2,018 

Deferred tax liability  -    -    -    14,146  1,725  15,871 

Borrowed Funds  2,030  15,263  57,988  120,386  -    195,667 

Total equity and liabilities  744,774  289,762  82,636  140,710  174,791  1,432,673 

Total interest repricing gap  (186,577)  (209,758)  171,272  209,490  15,573  0 

the table below illustrates the impact of a possible 50 basis points interest rate movement for 

each banking subsidiary:

2013 2012

EURk pRE-tax post-tax pRE-tax post-tax

BancABC Botswana

ABC Botswana constitut-
ed 31% of the Group's total assets.
Change in net interest income (+50 basis 
points)

 534  417  123  96 

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity 1.06% 0.83% 0.31% 0.24%

Change in net interest income (-50 basis 
points)

(534) (417) (123) (96)

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity -1.06% -0.83% -0.31% -0.24%

BancABC Zambia

ABC Zambia constitut-
ed 13% of the Group's total assets.
Change in net interest income (+50 basis 
points)

 8  5 (217) (130)

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity 0.02% 0.01% -1.57% -0.91%

Change in net interest income (-50 basis 
points)

(8) (5)  217  130 

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity -0.02% -0.01% 1.51% 0.91%

BancABC Mozambique

ABC Mozambique constitu-
ed 15% of the Group's total assets
Change in net interest income (+50 basis 
points)

(70) (47)  4  3 

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity -0.35% -0.24% 0.02% 0.02%

Change in net interest income (-50 basis 
points)

 70  47 (4) (3)

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity 0.35% 0.24% -0.02% -0.02%

BancABC Tanzania

ABC Tanzania constitut-
ed 7% of the Group's total assets
Change in net interest income (+50 basis 
points)

 145  102  129  90 

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity 0.82% 0.57% 2.17% 1.52%

Change in net interest income (-50 basis 
points)

(145) (102) (129) (90)

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity -0.82% -0.57% -2.17% -1.52%

BancABC Zimbabwe

ABC Zimbabwe constitut-
ed 29% of the Group's total assets
Change in net interest income (+50 basis 
points)

 2,642  1,961 (334) (248)

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity 3.94% 2.92% -0.81% -0.60%

Change in net interest income (-50 basis 
points)

(2,642) (1,961)  334  248 

As a percentage of total Shareholders equity -3.94% -2.92% 0.81% 0.60%

1   the 2012 figures are restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in the 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition  
     effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2
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the interest rate sensitivity analyses set out in the table above are illustrative only and are based 

on simplified scenarios over a period of one year.

othER maRkEt Risks

the group holds, directly or through its associates, financial assets with a fair value of eur 

124.5m (2012: eur 140.4m). the group is therefore exposed to gains or losses related to the 

variability in the market prices of the equities held. if the fair value were to increase (decrease) by 

10% as of the reporting date, financial assets would increase (decrease) by eur 12,448k (2012: 

eur 14,039k).

9.2.3 liqUiDity Risk

aDc gRoUp

liquidity risk is the risk that the group is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due as a 

result of customer deposits being withdrawn, cash requirements from contractual commitments, 

or other cash outflows, such as debt maturities or margin call for derivatives. such outflows would 

deplete available cash resources for client lending, trading activities and investments. in extreme 

circumstances, lack of liquidity could result in reductions in the consolidated statement of financi-

al position and sales of assets, or potentially an inability to fulfill lending commitments. 

BancaBc’s spEcific liqUiDity Risks

the risk that bancAbC will be unable to do so is inherent in all banking operations and can be af-

fected by a range of institution-specific and market-wide events including, but not limited to, credit 

events, merger and acquisition activity, systemic shocks and natural disasters.

liqUiDity Risk managEmEnt pRocEss

group liquidity management is dependent upon accurate cash flow projections and the monito-

ring of its future funding requirements. monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow mea-

surement and projections for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods 

for liquidity management. the starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual 

maturity of the financial liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

bancAbC holds liquidity reserves in highly tradable instruments or money market placements 

which are immediately available if required. liquidity is assessed by currency as well as by time 

bracket. bancAbC’s liquidity management process is monitored by bancAbC’s treasury and inclu-

des:

Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can 

be met. this includes replenishment of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers.  

bancAbC maintains an active presence in global money markets to enable this to happen;

 — maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection 

against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

 — monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and

 — managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

bancAbC’s treasury also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and type of undrawn 

lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities and the impact of contingent liabilities such 

as standby letters of credit and guarantees.

the group’s maturity analysis (on a discounted cash flow basis) as at 31 December 2013 was as 

follows:

DEcEmBER 2013

EURk  Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months 3-12 months gREatER 1 

yEaR total

assEts

Cash and Short term Funds  191,770  9,128  (1)  -    200,897 

Other financial assets held for 
trading

 57,780  29,785  9,639  7,254  104,458 

Financial assets designated at 
fair value

 20  48  2,190  9,196  11,454 

Derivative financial instru-
ments

 2,291  -    330  -    2,621 

Loans and advances  205,485  42,170  91,527  535,803  874,985 

Investment securities  173  -    404  5,058  5,635 

Other current assets  14,383  4,258  3,576  214  22,430 

Current tax assets  131  836  1,899  -    2,866 

Investments in associates  -    -    -    72,333  72,333 

Property, plant and equipment  -    -    -    62,749  62,749 

Other intangible assets and 
goodwill

 -    -    -    51,827  51,827 

Deferred tax assets  -    -    -    9,340  9,340 

Non-current assets and dispo-
sal groups held-for-sale

 -    -    10,777  -    10,777 

Total assets  472,033  86,225  120,340  753,775  1,432,373 

EqUity anD liaBilitiEs

Deposits  493,124  304,524  208,276  6,209  1,012,133 

Derivative financial instru-
ments

 172  -    1,402  2,218  3,792 

Creditors and accruals  33,256  3,482  17,227  -    53,964 

Current tax liabilities  6  135  995  -    1,137 

Deferred tax liability  (801)  -    -    12,962  12,161 

Borrowed Funds  44,375  1,743  6,529  173,670  226,318 

Non-current liabilities and dis-
posal groups held-for-sale

 -    -    428  -    428 

Total Equity  -    -    -    122,440  122,440 

Total Equity and liabilities  570,133  309,884  234,857  317,498  1,432,373 

Net maturity gap  (98,099)  (223,659)  (114,517)  436,277  (0)
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further explanation with regard to liquidity risk management is provided in the group management 

report (exhibit 7).

DEcEmBER 20121

EURk  Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months 3-12 months gREatER 1 

yEaR total

assEts

Cash and Short term Funds  172,692  10,687  -    -    183,380 

Other financial assets held for 
trading

 67,416  9,973  14,540  7,903  99,832 

Financial assets designated at 
fair value

 51  706  1,424  8,520  10,701 

Derivative financial instru-
ments

 363  -    -    2,933  3,296 

Loans and advances  236,866  26,692  113,862  509,152  886,572 

Investment securities  172  -    -    5,147  5,319 

Other current assets  3,950  1,636  15,692  -    21,277 

Current tax assets  -    764  2,401  -    3,165 

Investments in associates  -    -    -    74,883  74,883 

Property, plant and equipment  -    -    -    64,905  64,905 

Other intangible assets and 
goodwill

 -    -    -    70,694  70,694 

Deferred tax assets  -    -    -    8,650  8,650 

Total assets  481,511  50,458  147,918  752,786  1,432,673 

EqUity anD liaBilitiEs

Deposits  632,685  286,005  123,201  -    1,041,891 

Derivative financial instru-
ments

 2,208  -    -    -    2,208 

Creditors and accruals  15,010  1,354  19,879  -    36,243 

Current tax liabilities  1,511  -    507  -    2,018 

Deferred tax liability  1  2  5  15,863  15,871 

Borrowed Funds  227  4,010  69,640  121,790  195,667 

Total Equity  -    -    -    138,775  138,775 

Total equity and liabilities  651,641  291,371  213,232  276,428  1,432,673 

Net maturity gap  (170,130)  (240,913)  (65,314)  476,357  0 

DERivativE financial liaBilitiEs cash flows

the table below presents the cash flows payable by the group for derivative financial liabilities by 

remaining contractual maturities at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. 

the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted nominal currency swap cash 

flows for the liability leg of such swaps, whereas the group manages the inherent liquidity risk 

based on expected undiscounted cash inflows:

2013

EURk  Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months 3-12 months gREatER 1 

yEaR

non-intE-
REst BEa-

Ring
total

Derivative 
financial liabi-
lities

18,680 28,674 36,411 8,943 3,792 96,500

2012

EURk  Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months 3-12 months gREatER 1 

yEaR

non-intE-
REst BEa-

Ring
total

Derivative 
financial liabi-
lities

0 0 0 0 2,208 2,208

with the exception of swaps where on-going cashflows are settled on a gross basis, all derivative 

financial liabilities are settled on a net basis.

non-DERivativE cashflow

the table below presents the cash flows payable by the group under non-derivative financial lia-

bilities by remaining contractual maturities at the date of the consolidated statement of financial 

position. the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, where-

as the group manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows:

2013

EURk  Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months

3-12 
months

gREatER 
1 yEaR total

DiscoUn-
ting/

financing 
RatEs

total

Deposits  503,127  306,654  187,886  19,410  1,017,078 (4,944)  1,012,133 

Creditors and ac-
cruals

 33,081  5,234  15,648  0  53,963  0  53,963 

Current tax liabilites  5  153  978  0  1,137  0  1,137 

Borrowed funds  44,350  42,488  8,710  147,166  242,713 (16,395)  226,318 

Total liabilities    580,562  354,529  213,222  166,576  1,314,890 (21,339)  1,293,550 

1   the 2012 figures are restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in the 2012 financial statements as a result of the transition  
     effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2
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20121

EURk  Up to 1 
month

1-3 
months

3-12 
months

gREatER 
1 yEaR total

EffEct of 
DiscoUn-

ting/
financing 

RatEs

total

Deposits  632,978  288,854  135,621  0  1,057,453 (15,562)  1,041,891 

Creditors and ac-
cruals

 15,010 1,354  19,879  0  36,243  0  36,243 

Current tax liabilites  1,511  0  507  0  2,018  0  2,018 

Borrowed funds  235  5,022  72,614  138,817  216,688 (21,021)  195,667 

Total liabilities    649,734  295,230  228,621  138,817  1,312,402 (36,583)  1,275,819 

the group principally uses cash and short-term funds together with financial assets held for tra-

ding to manage liquidity risk.

9.3 capital managEmEnt

the group manages its capital with the aim of retaining its financial substance and the ability to 

meet its obligations in the future, as well as sustainably increasing the business enterprise value. 

it is ensured that all group companies can operate on a going concern basis.

As in the prior year, the group’s managed capital is made up of liabilities, cash and cash equiva-

lents, and equity which comprises issued capital, capital reserves, free reserves and retained 

earnings.

the Company can manage the structure of its capital by adjusting dividends, reducing capital and 

issuing new shares, as well as by issuing financial instruments that are classified as equity under 

ifrss. the aim is to achieve a capital structure appropriate to the business risk. the level of indeb-

tedness of individual group companies is monitored using the ratio of net debt (current liabilities 

less cash and cash equivalents) to equity. As of the reporting date, the group’s current liabilities 

were covered in full by cash and cash equivalents.

the parent is subject to minimum capital requirements for stock corporations. Compliance with 

these requirements is constantly monitored. the requirements were complied with in the fiscal 

year.

bancAbC’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the 

face of balance sheets, are:

 — to comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where 

the entities within the bancAbC operate;

 — to safeguard bancAbC’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provi-

de returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

 — to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the bancAbC’s manage-

ment, employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the basel Committee and the 

relevant Central bank Authorities. the required information is filed with the Authorities on a month-

ly basis. bancAbC’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor 

and market confidence and to sustain future developments of the business. At 31 December 2013 

all regulated banking operations complied with all externally imposed capital requirements. there 

have been no material changes to the bancAbC’s management of capital during the year. 

the increase of bancAbC’s regulatory capital is mainly due to increase in shareholders’ loans at 

subsidiary level, as well as contributions of the current year profit. the increase of the risk-weigh-

ted assets reflects the expansion of the lending business in most of the subsidiaries.

the allocation of bancAbC’s capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent, 

driven by optimization of the return achieved on the capital allocated. the amount of capital alloca-

ted to each subsidiary is based on the regulatory capital requirements of the countries bancAbC 

operate in. bancAbC’s policies in respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed 

regularly by the board of Directors.

1   the 2012 figures for creditors and accruals and borrowed funds are restated and do not agree with the corresponding figures in the 2012  
    financial statements as a result of the transition effect of ifrs 10, refer note 2.2
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10. cOMMiTMEnTs, cOnTinGEnciEs anD LEasinG arranGEMEnTs

EURk 2013 2012

a) Contingent liabilities

Guarantees  55,645  59,882 

Letters of credit, loan commitments and other contingent liabilities  8,250  17,866 

 63,895  77,748 

The timing profile of the contractual amounts of the group‘s off-balance sheet 
financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to customers and other ficili-
ties as at 31 December 2011, are summarized below:

Less than one vear  47,932  71,171 

Between one and five years  15,963  6,577 

 63,895  77,748 

b) Capital commitments

Approved and contracted for  0  261 

Approved but not contracted for  5,452  5,906 

 5,452  6,167 

c) Non-cancellable operating leases commitments 

Group as lessee
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelled operating leases are as 
follows:

Office premises  11,168  9,296 

Equipment and motor vehicles  -    -   

 11,168  9,296 

Non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Less than one year  2,388  1,168 

Between one and five years  6,726  2,192 

Over five years  2,055  5,936 

 11,168  9,296 

Group as lessor

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelled operating leases are as 
follows:

Office premises  511  274 

Equipment and motor vehicles  0  0 

 511  274 

Non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Less than one year  511  274 

Between one and five years  0  0 

Over five years  0  0 

 511  274 

11. rELaTED parTiEs

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the group transacted with related entities. related 

parties include management board members and senior executives, supervisory board members, 

and close family members of these persons. in addition, companies classified as related parties 

include the shareholders, as well as all consolidated subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. 

Details of the nature, volume of transactions and the balances with related entities are as follows:

sUBsiDiaRiEs
capital  

intEREst

cUR-

REncy

DiREct 

%

inDi-

REct %
of (lc) EqUity EqUity REsUlt REsUlt

lck EURk lck EURk
1. ADC Management GmbH, Frank-
furt/Main, Deutschland

100 EUR 353 353 (9) (9)

2. ADC Financial Services & Corpo-
rate Development Ltd., Cybercity, 
Republik Mauritius***

100 EUR 101,279 101,279 (20,327) (20,327)

3. ABC Holdings Limited, Gaboro-
ne, Botswana  

47.07 2. BWP 686,132 56,880 11,301 1,014

4. African Banking Corporation 
of Botswana Ltd., Gaborone, 
Botswana

100 3. BWP 563,181 46,688 152,986 13,723

5. African Banking Corporation 
(Moçambique) SARL, Maputo, 
Mozambique

100 3. MZN 754,108 18,239 32,184 811

6. African Banking Corporation 
Tanzania Ltd., Dodoma, Tansania

74 3. TZS 35,712,642 16,371 (3,831,834) (1,798)

7. Tanzania Development Finance 
Company Limited, Dodoma, 
Tansania

68 6. TZS (447,081) (205) (14,063,700) (6,601)

8. African Banking Corporation 
Zambia Ltd., Lusaka, Zambia

100 3. ZMW 258,459 34,082 31,933 4,475

9. African Banking Corporation of 
Zimbabwe Ltd., Harare, Zimbabwe

100 3. USD 85,193 61,979 13,914 10,556

10. Second Nominees (Private) 
Limited, Harare, Zimbabwe

100 9. USD 7,795 5,671 (129) (98)

11. Bohemian (Pty) Ltd, Gaborone, 
Botswana

100 4. BWP (444) (37) (1,121) (101)

12. ABC Capital Partners (Pty) Ltd. 
Gaborone, Botswana

100 4. USD 598 435 0 0

13. ABC Consulting (Pty) Ltd, Bern, 
Schweiz

100 3. USD 839 610 125 95

14. Edfund SA (Pty) Ltd, Bern, 
Schweiz

100 3. USD (69) (50) 0 0

15. ABCH Management Support 
Services, Cape Town, Republik 
Südafrika

100 3. ZAR 1,930 133 1,163 90

16. Kendra Ltd, Lusaka, Zambia 100 11. ZMK 1,514 200 741 104

17. ADC IT & Payment Solutions 
Ltd., Cybercity, Republik Mauriti-
us***

100 2. EUR 3,135 3,135 (1,663) (1,663)

18. Rswitch Ltd (fka: Simtel S.A.), 
Kigali, Republik Ruanda****

88.54 18. RWF 402,315 483 (664,012) (863)

19. R Cards Processing Services 
Limited, Cybercity, Republik Mau-
ritius **

100 19. EUR ** **

20. ADC Enterprises, Cybercity, 
Republik Mauritius***

100 2. USD 30,117 22,802 (729) (567)

21. ADC Investments, Cybercity, 
Republik Mauritius***

100 2. EUR 2,407 2,407 (36) (36)

22. ADC Ventures, Cybercity, Repu-
blik Mauritius***

100 22. USD 4,190 3,172 (7,191) (5,595)

*       (unaudited) financial statements 2012
**     dormant entity
***   audited 2012 statements
**** audited 2012 consolidated financial statements
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tRansactions DURing thE yEaR 2013

ADC was diluted in its shareholding in bancAbC due to shares issued in respect of conversion of 

convertible debt. the stake decreased from 51.98% to 47.07% as at 31 may 2013. 

in financial year 2013, ADC sold 90% of the shares of ADC management services ltd, mauritius, 

to a co-shareholder. through the sale, ADC no longer exercised control and deconsolidated ADC 

management services ltd.

tRansaction DURing thE yEaR 2012

ADC increased its stake in bancAbC from 23.1% to 51.98% at July 27, 2012 and exercised control 

from acquisition date (note 4). 

in January 2012, the subsidiary rswitch executed a capital increase, to which ADC subscribed. 

by participating in this capital increase, ADC’s share in rswitch was increased from 70.0% to 

88.54%. the purchase price of eur 4,789k was mainly settled by converting ADC’s shareholder 

loan into equity (debt-to-equity-swap).

in financial year 2012, ADC purchased 100% of the shares of ADC management services ltd, 

mauritius (note 4) from key management personnel (Dirk harbecke).

in november 2012, ADC took over its general partner, ADC management gmbh, from Altira Ag 

for a purchase price of eur 4.5 mio. 

associatEs:

All other transactions conducted with related parties during the fiscal year are presented in the 

following table:

EURk yEaR

sERvicEs 
REnDERED 

to RElatED 
paRtiEs

sERvicEs 
pURchasED 
fRom REla-

tED paRtiEs

RElatED paR-
ty REcEi

vaBlEs

liaBilitiEs 
to RElatED 

paRtiEs

Brainworks Capital Manage-
ment (Private)Limited, Zim-
babwe

2013 0 22 319 0

2012 310 72 350 23

Banco Nacional de Guinea 
Equatorial, Equatorial Guinea

2013 0 0 0 0

2012 136 0 0 0

the general managers of associates do not hold key management positions within the meaning 

of iAs 24 from the Company’s perspective.

othER tRansactions

aDc managEmEnt gmBh, fRankfURt am main (fka: altiRa aDc managEmEnt gmBh, fRank-
fURt am main)

the general partner, ADC management gmbh, frankfurt am main, was entitled and obligated to 

manage the Company alone. in november 2012, ADC took over its general partner, ADC manage-

ment from Altira Ag, and transformed its organizational structure from a partnership limited by 

shares – gmbh & Co. kg – into a stock corporation (Ag). At the extraordinary general meeting on 

17 January 2013 the transformation of the legal form from a partnership limited by shares (kgaA) 

into a classic german stock corporate “Aktiengesellschaft” (Ag) has been resolved.

to finance the acquisition of the general partner, ADC has negotiated a revolving credit facility 

with its strategic partner and major shareholder trafigura in the amount of eur 4.3 million in no-

vember 2012. At year-end 2012, ADC has called eur 1.0 million out of the full volume of the credit 

facility. ADC settled the credit facility in 2013.

the general manager of the general partner was:

 — olaf meier, frankfurt am main (till 17 January 2013)

 — Dirk harbecke, Albion, mauritius (from 17 January 2013 to 26 July 

2013)

the legal transformation into a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) was completed on 26 July 

2013.

manDatoRy offER to minoRity shaREholDERs of BancaBc sEcURED By tRafigURa

on 13 December 2013 ADC African Development Corporation Ag (“ADC”), announced its firm 

intention to make a mandatory offer to all minority shareholders of its major banking asset AbC 

holdings limited, botswana (“bancAbC”).

ADC intended to acquire all issued ordinary shares of bancAbC not already owned by ADC. the 

mandatory offer is required by the botswana stock exchange (bse) for any shareholder owning 

more than 35% of a listed company in botswana and was issued at a price of usD 0.60 per share 

to bancAbC shareholders listed on the Company’s Zimbabwe register and at the exchange rate 

equivalent of bwp 5.05 per share for bancAbC shareholders listed on the botswana register; the 

price at which ADC acquired a majority shareholding while acting as an underwriter of the bank’s 

rights issue in July 2012.

A group of minority shareholders of bancAbC support the opinion of an independent valuation 

expert appointed by the bancAbC board to not accept the mandatory offer. in-line with ADC’s 

expectations, the uptake of the mandatory offer was limited to 10,196,469 shares, equaling 4% of 

the shares outstanding in bancAbC.

As such, the reduced potential size of the offer to 23% of the shareholders in bancAbC was eur 

25.4 million. As a consequence a liability was recognized as at reporting date (note 6.13). 
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the financing for the uptake of the mandatory offer has been secured from ADC’s largest (23%) 

shareholder and partner, trafigura. trafigura agreed to guarantee for the benefit of minority share-

holders under the mandatory offer. this given, trafigura was reimbursed by ADC for all costs and 

expenses incurred by trafigura in amount of usD 200k.

After the closing of the mandatory offer in January 2014, trafigura has a direct shareholding in ban-

cAbC. trafigura is engaged in a voting pool agreement with ADC. As a result of the mandatory of-

fer, ADC increased its controlling position including voting pool agreements from 50.1% to 54.1%.

pUt option agREEmEnt tRafigURa

with regard to the funding of the mandatory offer, ADC entered a put option agreement with tra-

figura. trafigura agrees to provide ADC funding for up to usD10,000,000 through a registration of 

the shares purchased for this consideration in the name of trafigura or its nominee (the “funded 

shares”).

trafigura confirms that any shares purchased under this funding structure shall be subject to the 

pooling agreement entered into on 22 may 2013 in regards of the holding of both parties.

trafigura shall be entitled to sell, in part or in full, to ADC or its nominee the funded shares 

(the“put option”) or to request a transfer of the funded shares as a contribution in kind against 

shares in ADC. the put option may be exercised, at the option of trafigura, at any time in the 

ninety days following the closing of one or more capital increase(s) of ADC of at least cumulative 

eur 50,000,000 and provided that trafigura has not subscribed to new shares of ADC in these 

capital increases. upon exercise of the put option, ADC shall purchase the funded shares at a 

price equal to the mandatory offer price and ADC shall pay to trafigura accrued funding costs at a 

rate of [6] percent per annum. the funding costs shall accrue on the funding disbursed by trafigura 

from the date trafigura disbursed such funds. if the put option cannot be exercised due to the 

fact that trafigura has or intends to subscribe to new ADC shares in the aforementioned capital 

increases so that the payment of the purchase price for the funded shares under the put option 

would be considered a hidden contribution in kind, then trafigura shall have the right to request 

from ADC that the funded shares be contributed in whole or in part to ADC as a contribu tion in 

kind against shares in ADC. the contribution in-kind shall be made in a swap-ratio defined by the 

capital increase price for ADC and the mandatory offer price for AbC plus accrued funding costs 

of [6] percent per annum, unless this would constitute a breach of the german stock Corporation 

Act at the time of the contribution in-kind. this request shall be made within the time frame stipu-

lated for the exercise of the put option. in this instance ADC shall within the legal framework of 

the german stock Corporation Act be obligated to take the necessary measures in order to create 

such shares, including the convening of a shareholders meeting if necessary.

inDEBtnEss pUt option – aDc BonD with waRRants attachED

with reference to §4 (5) of the terms and conditions of ADC warrant bond (“indebtness put 

option”) trafigura holdings ltd., malta, agreed on 19 march 2014 that the debt to equity ratio 

calculation both for 2013 and forward-looking, should be interpreted so that it excludes the fi-

nancial liabilities of ADC ventures, based on the fact that there are no obligations of ADC under 

the financing arrangements of ADC ventures (“non-recourse status”). As such, trafigura does not 

intend to submit an indebtedness put notice during the remaining tenure of the bond relating to 

any potential breach resulting from the consolidation of ADC ventures, provided the non-recourse 

status of ADC ventures remains the same.

ExEcUtivE BoaRD of aDc afRican DEvElopmEnt coRpoRation ag

 — Dirk Harbecke, Chief executive officer, Albion, mauritius (from 26 July 2013)

 — Sonja Rossteuscher, Chief financial officer, frankfurt am main (from 1 January 2014)

 — Karima Ola, Chief investment officer, london, uk (from 13 August 2013)

with regard to disclosing the remuneration of the executive bodies pursuant to article 314, pa-

ragraph 1, number 6 of the hgb, the institution makes use of the protective clause pursuant to 

article 286, paragraph 4 of the hgb.

sUpERvisoRy BoaRD 

the members of the supervisory board are:

 — Alastair Newton, politischer Analyst, london – chairman

 — Arnold Onyekwere Ekpe, investor, oxford – deputy chairman (from 14 August 2013)

 — Pierre Lorinet, Chief finance officer of trafigura beheer bv, singapur 

 — Jyrki Koskelo, senior Development banker and former member of management Committee 

of the international finance Corporation (ifC), vienna (till 28 october 2013)

 — Verna Eggleston, research and Development at bloomberg philanthropies, new york (from 

14 August 2013)

 — Oltmann Gottfried Siemens, laywer, berlin (from 14 August 2013)

During the fiscal year, the supervisory board received remuneration and cost refunds of eur 325k 

(prior year: eur 53k).

During the fiscal year, a consulting agreement was concluded with a supervisory board member. 

this agreement gave rise to costs of eur 101k (prior year: eur 160k).

other than these, in 2013 and up to the date of preparing these financial statements, there were 

no transactions (purchase or sales agreements, purchased or received services, granting or re-

ceipt of loans or collateral, payment or receipt of rental or lease payments) with other related 

parties or their family members.

outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and settled by payments. 
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12. DEcLaraTiOn Of cOMpLiancE pursuanT TO sEc. 161 aKTG

the management and supervisory board of ADC African Development Corporation Ag, frankfurt 

am main, have issued the declaration required by sec. 161 Aktg and made it permanently availa-

ble to the shareholders on the Company’s website.

13. EvEnTs afTEr ThE rEpOrTinG pEriOD 

chiEf financial officER (cfo) anD nEw mEmBER of thE managEmEnt BoaRD 

sonja rossteuscher officially took her position as managing Director and Cfo of the company and 

member of the management board on 01 January 2014. 

ExtRaoRDinaRy gEnERal mEEting (Egm)

on 14 January 2014, ADC held an egm for its shareholders, to propose the placement of 40 mil-

lion shares in a capital increase to further strengthen existing assets and to expand into selected 

new markets. management, however, agreed to postpone the resolution on the day of the egm 

due to uncertain market conditions.

manDatoRy offER closURE

on 19 December 2013, ADC made a mandatory offer to all bancAbC minority shareholders at a 

price of usD 0.60 per share on the Zimbabwe stock exchange and the exchange rate equivalent 

of bwp 5.05 for shareholders listed on the botswana register. shareholders owning 23% of the 

share capital of bancAbC indicated that they would not accept the mandatory offer, seeing higher 

potential in bancAbC’s future business and share price. on 17 January 2014, the mandatory offer 

was closed, with an uptake of 10,199,154 shares, equaling 4% of the shares outstanding in ban-

cAbC. As a result of the mandatory offer, ADC increased its controlling position from 50.1% to 

54.1%, which includes aligned partners in pooling agreements. 

BonD with waRRants

the terms and conditions of the bond with warrants attached (eur 40 million) contain an option 

for early redemption if the debt to equity ratio exceeds 50%. the calculation of the ratio is based 

on consolidated quarterly financial statements prepared in accordance with applicable ifrs, ex-

cluding the shareholding in bancAbC. As at 1 January 2013, ADC has voluntarily adopted ifrs 10 

and consolidated its investment in ADC ventures (refer for details to note 2.2). for financial years 

starting on or after 1 January 2014 the new accounting standard ifrs 10 “Consolidated financial 

statements” is mandatorily applicable in the eu. through the mandatory application of ifrs 10, 

the calculation of the debt to equity ratio as described in the terms and conditions of the bond may 

exceed 50% in 2014, given the uncertainties in the terms and conditions of the bond in reflecting 

the non-recourse structure of ADC ventures in the determination of the debt to equity ratio.

BUsinEss comBination agREEmEnt

on march 31, 2014 ADC management and supervisory board have approved the signing of a busi-

ness combination agreement with Atlas mara Co-nvest limited, whereby a voluntary public take-

over offer by way of a share exchange offer shall be made for all outstanding shares in ADC Ag at a

ratio of 1.25 Atlas mara shares for one ADC share. the structure of the transaction also includes 

conditional purchase agreements with selected shareholders of ADC’s portfolio company ban-

cAbC, in order to acquire, for cash or shares, all remaining outstanding shares of bancAbC for 

a purchase price of usD 0.82 per share. the completion of both transactions is conditional upon 

regulatory approvals and certain conditions precedent.

REsignation of vicE-chaiRman anD mEmBER of thE aDc sUpERvisoRy BoaRD

on march 31, Arnold ekpe resigned from his position as vice-Chairman and member of the ADC 

supervisory board relating to his conflicting independent Chairmanship and board of Director 

membership of Atlas mara Co-nvest limited.

14. TransacTiOns nOT carriED OuT aT arM’s LEnGTh

there were no transactions that had to be disclosed within the meaning of sec. 285 no. 21 hgb.

frankfurt am main, germany, 31 march 2014

management of ADC African Development Corporation Ag

signed     signed    signed

Dirk harbecke   sonja rossteuscher  karima ola

Cief Executive Officer   Chief Financial Officer   Chief Investment Officer
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Translation from the German language

auDiT OpiniOn

for the consolidated financial statements and group management report we have issued an un-

qualified auditors’ report. the english language text below is a translation of the auditors’ report.

we have issued the following unqualified auditors’ report: 

aUDitoR’s REpoRt

we have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by ADC African Development 

Corporation Ag, frankfurt am main, comprising the consolidated income statement as of 31 

December 2013, consolidated statement of comprehensive income as of 31 December 2013, 

consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2013, consolidated statement 

of changes in equity as of 31 December 2013, consolidated statement of cash flows as of 31 De-

cember 2013, and notes together with the group management report for the financial year from 1 

January 2013 to 31 December 2013. the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and 

the group management report in accordance with ifrss as adopted by the eu, and the additional 

requirements of german commercial law pursuant to section 315a (3) of the german Commercial 

Code [hgb] are the responsibility of the Company`s management. our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management report based 

on our audit.

we conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with section 317 

of the german Commercial Code [hgb] and the generally accepted standards for the audit of 

financial statements promulgated by the german institute of public Auditors [iDw]. those stan-

dards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements materially affecting 

the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in the consolidated 

financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework and in the 

group management report are detected with reasonable assurance. knowledge of the business 

activities and the economic and legal environment of the group and expectations as to possible 

misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. the effectiveness 

of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in 

the consolidated financial statements and the group management report are examined primarily 

on a test basis within the framework of the audit. the audit includes assessing the annual financial 

statements of those entities included in consolidation, the determination of entities to be included 

in consolidation, the accounting and consolidation principles used and significant estimates made 

by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 

AuDitoR’s RepoRt
statements and the group management report. we believe that our audit provides a reasonable 

basis for our opinion.

our audit has not led to any reservations. 

in our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statement comply 

with ifrss as adopted by the eu, the additional requirements of german commercial law pursu-

ant to section 315a (3) of the german Commercial Code [hgb] and give a true and fair view of 

the net assets, financial position and results of operations of the group in accordance with these 

requirements. the group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial state-

ments and as a whole provides a suitable view of the group’s position and suitably presents the 

opportunities and risks of future development. 

 

frankfurt am main, 3 April 2014

kpmg Ag

wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

bertram    Dr. faßhauer

wirtschaftsprüfer   wirtschaftsprüfer
[German Public Auditor]  [German Public Auditor]
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DEar sharEhOLDErs,

over the course of 2013, the ADC supervisory board, its management, team members and port-

folio companies have actively worked to implement the company’s vision of becoming a leading 

pan-African banking group in sub-saharan Africa. ADC’s investments and structural changes over 

the last two years have been instrumental for implementing ADC’s banking strategy. furthermore, 

ADC established committees within the newly expanded supervisory board, which has and will 

continue to strengthen governance practices across the group. the supervisory board is fully 

aligned with ADC’s vision and looks forward to a promising year ahead.

in the 2013 financial year, the supervisory board fulfilled all of its duties according to the law and 

the articles of association with adequate diligence and care. During the course of the year, the 

members of the supervisory board held continuous and close contact with the management of 

ADC and were consulted on issues of strategic importance and significant events. the superviso-

ry board monitored management’s conduct of business and was kept informed at and between 

ordinary meetings. with the same depth of relations, the Chairman of the supervisory board 

regularly discussed with ADC management about developments on the course of business and 

significant events and transactions. 

At any time, and in a timely manner, the supervisory board was presented with adequate infor-

mation enabling constructive discussion and providing a solid base for decision making, in verbal 

and written form. the management of ADC reported regularly and comprehensively on business 

developments, the financial situation, fund raising activities and issues of importance concerning 

corporate planning, risk management and compliance. furthermore, the supervisory board was 

kept informed of the overall development of the sub-saharan region, macroeconomic and busi-

ness related risks as well as regulatory developments and the effects, or non-effects, thereof on 

the company’s business. 

All matters requiring supervisory board approval were submitted in a clear and timely manner and, 

if necessary, additional explanation and documentation was provided by management. Approvals 

of the supervisory board required by law and the articles of association were granted on the basis 

of thorough examination of all relevant information and documentation. 

sUpERvisoRy BoaRD mEmBERs

over the course of 2013, the supervisory board was expanded from three to six members by 

resolution of the Agm on 14 August 2013 and one member resigned. 

mr. Jyrki koskelo resigned from the supervisory board effective 28 october 2013.  we kindly 

thank mr. koskelo for his valuable input and efforts during his time serving on the board from 8 

January 2013. 

supeRvisoRy boARD RepoRt
with their entry into the commercial registry on 24 september 2013, the following three new 

members were added to the ADC supervisory board: Arnold ekpe, former Ceo of ecobank group; 

verna eggleston, of bloomberg philanthropies; and oltmann siemens, former representative of 

the world bank group in europe.

sUpERvisoRy BoaRD of aDc afRican DEvElopmEnt 
coRpoRation ag
as of 31 DEcEmBER 2013

fUnction in committEE

namE anD placE 
of REsiDEncE pRinciplE activity

fUnction in 
sUpERvisoRy 
BoaRD

aUDit anD 
Risk 
committEE

nominations/ 
REmUnERations 
committEE

Alastair Newton 
London, England

Political Analyst and former 
diplomat

Chairman of the 
supervisory board

member

Arnold Ekpe1

London, England
Senior Banker, former CEO 
of Ecobank Group

vice Chairman of 
the supervisory 
board

member (Chair)

Oltmann Siemens
Berlin, Germany

Former World Bank Group 
Representative and Special 
Representative of the IFC in 
Europe

member member

Pierre Lorinet
Singapore

Chief Financial Officer and 
Director of Trafigura

member member

Verna Eggleston
New York, New York

Research and Development 
at Bloomberg Philanthro-
pies

member member (Chair)

sUpERvisoRy BoaRD mEEtings

the supervisory board of ADC African Development Corporation Ag held 6 ordinary meetings in 

the fiscal year 2013, as well as one extraordinary meeting. the Audit and risk committee and the 

nominations and remuneration Committee each held a total of 2 meetings.

the focus of the supervisory board in 2013 was on the strategic direction of the company and 

the successful transformation of the company from a partnership limited by shares (gmbh & Co. 

kgaA) to a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) as well as its re-entry to the entry standard seg-

ment of the frankfurt stock exchange. the key areas of discussion were around legal issues, hr 

decisions, capital requirements, liquidity management and governance and acquisition decisions. 

the supervisory board unanimously agreed upon an expanded strategy to build a pan-African 

banking group in April 2013. in order to achieve the new strategy, the supervisory board agreed to 

ask shareholders to approve a capital increase and to expand the supervisory board from three to 

six members. rules of procedure were drafted for both the management board and supervisory 

board inclusive of job descriptions for the Chairman of the board and Committees. furthermore, 

the supervisory board agreed to appoint kpmg as its group auditor in order to streamline the 

overall audit process with its subsidiaries and investee companies in Africa. 

1    on 31 march 2014 Arnold ekpe resigned from the supervisory board of ADC.
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moreover on 14 August 2013, the supervisory board and management declared voluntary con-

formity to the german corporate governance code with four deviations: 1) no age limited defined 

for management board; 2) no age limit defined for supervisory board; 3) Consolidated financial 

statements are published within 120 and not 90 days, and interim reports within 60 and not 45 

days, following the end of the previous financial reporting period; 4) supervisory board compen-

sation does not consist of both a variable and fixed component. 

aUDit anD Risk committEE

the Audit and risk Committee was formed on 24 september 2013 with the entry of the additional 

board members into the commercial registry and is comprised of three members: Arnold ekpe 

(Chair), oltmann siemens and Alastair newton. the committee supports the board in oversee-

ing accounting and financial reporting, risk management, compliance with legal regulations and 

ensuring the existence of appropriate internal control structures. Additionally, the Audit and risk 

Committee oversees the implementation of supervisory board decisions within the financial and 

risk management spectrum.

nominations anD REmUnERations committEE 

the nominations and remunerations Committee was formed on 24 september 2013 with the 

entry of the additional board members into the commercial registry and is currently comprised 

of two members: verna eggleston (Chair) and pierre lorinet, whereas a third position is vacant. 

the Committee is responsible for following the recommendations of the german corporate gover-

nance code in respect to the nomination and remuneration of the members of the supervisory 

and management boards. furthermore, the committee is responsible for succession planning at 

both supervisory and management board level.  

in accordance with § 15 para. 6 (2) of the Articles of Association, remuneration is paid to members 

of the supervisory board provided that it is approved by resolution at the Annual general meeting 

(Agm). At the Agm held on 14 August 2013, a resolution was adopted that members of the su-

pervisory board shall receive total remuneration of eur 250,000 for the 2013 financial year. the 

supervisory board is responsible to determine the distribution of the total remuneration between 

the individual members. 

annUal financial statEmEnts

kpmg Ag, wirtschaftspruefungsgesellschaft, berlin, was appointed to audit ADC for the financial 

year 2013. under consideration of accounting standards, the auditor audited the financial state-

ments of ADC African Development Corporation Ag the consolidated group financial statements 

as per 31 December 2013 and the management report and the group management report for the 

financial year 2013 and issued an unqualified audit opinion for each.

the supervisory board was presented with the audited and certified financial statements and 

group statements as per 31 December 2013, the management report and the group management 

report for the financial year 2013 as well as the auditor’s report in a timely manner prior to approval 

and determination on 25 April 2014. After careful examination and detailed discussions with the 

management and the auditors, the supervisory board approved and adopted the financial state-

ments and group statements and proposed presenting the financial statements to the Agm for 

acceptance. 

on behalf of the supervisory board, i would like to thank all of the employees and the manage-

ment of ADC for their hard work and successful results, both operationally and financially, over the 

course of the last year. the ADC team is steadily implementing the new vision that was approved 

by the board earlier this year. As Chairman of the board, i would like to welcome Arnold ekpe, 

verna eggleston and oltmann siemens as new and valuable members to the supervisory board 

and thank Jyrki koskelo for his valuable contributions as a member of ADC’s supervisory board. 

we look forward to yet another successful year in 2014.

frankfurt am main, 25 April 2014

on behalf of the supervisory board

Alastair newton

Chairman
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ADC BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES  

mAnAgement boARD
ManaGEMEnT BOarD

DiRk haRBEckE

chiEf ExEcUtivE officER

Dirk harbecke was born in 1972 in 

Dortmund, germany. he is the Chair-

man of the management board and 

the Chief executive officer of the 

Company. Dirk co-founded the Com-

pany in 2007 and has been respon-

sible for the formation, development 

and growth of the Company since its 

inception. During his career, Dirk has 

attained project and managerial expe-

rience in france, the uk, China, Abu 

Dhabi/Dubai, the united states, north Africa and many countries in sub-saharan Africa. Dirk harb-

ecke has a joint honors degree in Journalism and economics from the university of Dortmund, 

germany and an mbA from the university of st. gallen, switzerland. Dirk harbecke started his 

career as a financial journalist in 1994 with a focus on financial services and new technologies. 

in this time he also worked as project manager at n-tv in berlin. in 1998, Dirk harbecke founded 

a german financial online network with over 100 employees in offices in europe. between 2006 

and 2008, Dirk harbecke worked as a project leader at the boston Consulting group in banking.

kaRima ola

chiEf invEstmEnt officER

karima ola was born in 1970 in eng-

land, great britain and is a member 

of the management board and Chief 

investment officer of the Company. 

she joined the Company in July 2011 

as Chief investment officer and was 

appointed as a member of the ma-

nagement board in August 2013. prior 

to joining the Company, karima ola 

was, from 2007 to 2011, at Chayton 

Capital llp, a uk based private equi-

ty fund focusing on emerging markets where she was head of Africa portfolio management 

and a managing partner with overall responsibility for Chayton‘s Africa strategy and pipeline of 

African funds. At Chayton she launched the firm‘s first Africa fund in 2008 overseeing the sour-

cing, selection and management of the firm‘s investments across Africa. she also served as a 

member of both the Chayton management Committee and the Chayton investment Committee. 

prior to Chayton, other previous appointments include equity portfolio manager at pmA Capital 

management (2004-2005) and senior advisory roles in corporate strategy, business development 

and m&A among others at tate & lyle plc; Aviva plc and tnt nv (2005-2007). karima ola started 

her career at hsbC bank plc where she held various roles in corporate and investment banking 

between 1994 and 2004 latterly as an executive Director. At hsbC, she was also an extel and 

institutional investor ranked analyst in derivatives and equities. she graduated in Civil engineering 
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at university of london in 1994 and subsequently obtained a post graduate Diploma in economics 

also from the university of london in 1997.

sonJa RosstEUschER

chiEf financial officER

sonja rossteuscher was born in 1975 

in belleville, Canada. she is a mem-

ber of the management board and 

the Chief financial officer of the 

Company, a position she held from 

January 2009 to August 2010. sonja 

rossteuscher studied business Admi-

nistration at the university of british 

Columbia from 1994 to 1999. in early 

1999, sonja rossteuscher began her 

professional career in the mergers & 

Acquisitions Department of CibC world markets, a Canadian investment bank. between late 2001 

and end of 2004, she held positions in corporate development and strategic planning at norigen 

Communications, a telecommunications start-up and maple leaf foods, a large publicly-listed 

Canadian food company. in 2005, sonja rossteuscher completed her mbA at the university of st. 

gallen (hsg) in switzerland. in 2006, she joined robert bosch gmbh in stuttgart as part of the 

strategic planning unit, and later as director, new business Areas where she was responsible for 

negotiating and setting up a joint venture with a samsung subsidiary in korea. in 2009, she joined 

the Company as Chief financial officer. in late 2010, she left the Company and joined tristone 

flowtech germany gmbh as managing director and Chief financial officer at its global headquar-

ters. tristone flowtech had been recently carved out of a swedish conglomerate by a german 

private equity company and required a transitional Cfo to set up finance and treasury processes, 

as well as corporate tax and legal functions. in January 2013, sonja rossteuscher returned to the 

Company, initially as interim Cfo, and as member of the management board from January 2014.

supErvisOry BOarD1

alastaiR nEwton

chaiRman of thE sUpERvisoRy BoaRD

Alastair newton was an advisor to the ADC group in early 2008 and joined the supervisory board 

a few months later. from 1985 to 2005 he was a diplomat with the british diplomatic service. he 

served in ssA, paris (at the oeCD) and the united states. in london, he worked in intelligence 

co-ordination (including during the 1990/91 gulf war), policy planning and economic relations, as 

well as running the british prime minister‘s g7/8 team from 1998 to 2000. he was on secondment 

from the diplomatic service to lehman brothers from 2000 to 2002. he served as vice Chairman 

from 2009 to 2012 and was elected Chairman in January 2013. Alastair newton is currently a se-

nior political analyst/managing director at nomura international, a position he has held since sep-

tember 2008. prior to this position he worked for lehman brothers international for three years 

1 on 31 march 2014 Arnold ekpe resigned from the supervisory board of ADC.

in the same capacity. Alastair newton is also working on periodical publications and on studies on 

China, india, indonesia, north korea and iran/israel. he is also a frequent commentator on current 

politics on television and radio and a regular speaker at conferences and other events worldwide.

oltmann siEmEns

mEmBER of thE sUpERvisoRy BoaRD

oltmann siemens has been active in emerging markets since 1976, working as a lawyer with Deg 

and continuing his career with the ifC starting in 1979. oltmann siemens was the world bank 

group representative in germany and special representative of the ifC in europe from 1997 to 

2007 and has most recently worked as general counsel for the international fund for Agricultural 

Development (ifAD). he has worked in approximately 65 countries around the world over the 

course of his career and is familiar with the development and canes within the banking system 

in Africa.

vERna EgglEston

mEmBER of thE sUpERvisoRy BoaRD

verna eggleston has worked in social development in the usA and Africa for more than 30 years. 

most recently verna eggleston has worked for michael bloomberg starting in August 2001, at first 

in the capacity as a senior advisor for his first campaign as mayor of new york City and as part of 

the team developing a social development plan for the city of new york. in 2002 she was appoin-

ted as the Commissioner of social Development of new york City. in April 2007, at the request of 

the founder, michael bloomberg, she joined bloomberg‘s philanthropic organization to research 

and develop philanthropic investments in Africa which includes a portfolio of investments in libe-

ria, south Africa, uganda, Zimbabwe, nigeria, rwanda, Congo, sierra leon, and sudan.

piERRE loRinEt

mEmBER of thE sUpERvisoRy BoaRD

following his career in the banking sector with merrill lynch in london and with the banque indo-

suez in bahrain, pierre lorinet joined trafigura in 2002. he is the Chief financial officer of trafigura 

beheer b.v., Amsterdam, the netherlands. in his capacity as Cfo of the globally active trafigura 

group, mr. lorinet is the director of trafigura beheer b.v., Amsterdam, the netherlands and of a 

series of subsidiaries within the trafigura group. in addition, he sits on the leadership committee 

of gtsA (geneva trade and shipping Association) and is a supervisory board member of gDe 

s.A., rocquancourt, france. he studied at the ecole de Commerce supérieure de paris and com-

pleted his msc in finance from the university of lancaster (great britain) with distinction.
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ADC BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES  

finAnCiAl CAlenDAR

finAnCiAl CAlenDAR
coRpoRatE calEnDER DatE EvEnt

28 May 2014 Interim Report Q1 2014

02 July 2014 Annual General Meeting 2014

29 August 
2014

Interim Report H1 2014

28 November 
2014

Interim Report Q3 2014

analyst mEEtings & othER EvEnts

05 – 07 May 
2014

DVFA, 5th SCF_ Small Cap Forum / Spring Conference, 
Frankfurt, Germany

07 – 09 May 
2014

World Economic Forum Africa 2014, 
Abuja, Nigeria

14-15 May
2014

5th Annual African Alliance East Africa Investor Conference,
Nairobi, Kenya

19 May
2014

Bank of America Merrill Lynch, 3rd Africa Conference, 
London, Great Britain

27 – 30 May 
2014

Imara Edwards 6th Annual Investor Conference 2014, 
Harare, Zimbabwe

04 – 05 June 
2014

EMRC, Africa Finance & Investment Forum 2014,
Cologne, Germany

01 – 03 Sep-
tember 2014

DVFA, 12th SCC_ Small Cap Conference, 
Frankfurt, Germany
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ADC BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES  

ContACt infoRmAtion
aDc african DEvELOpMEnT cOrpOraTiOn aG

gERman hEaDqUaRtER:

grueneburgweg 18

60322 frankfurt am main

germany

t  +49 69 719 12 80 119

f  +49 69 719 12 80 115

investor-relations@african-development.com

www.african-development.com

managEmEnt BoaRD (voRstanD)

Dirk harbecke, Chairman
karima ola

sonja rossteuscher

sUpERvisoRy BoaRD

Alastair newton, Chairman
oltmann siemens

pierre lorinet

verna eggleston

afRican REpREsEntation:

ADC financial services & Corporate Development gbl1

1003 Alexander house

35 ebène Cybercity

republic of mauritius

ContACt infoRmAtion




